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.'ITHAIRMAN’S STATEMENT

=

IRHREE

Dear Shareholders

On behalf of the Board, | hereby present the Group’s consolidated financial results for
the 2020 Financial Year and give an overview of the Group's strategy and business
outlook.

FINANCIAL AND BUSINESS REVIEW

As many other business corporations, the Group experienced certain turbulences
over the few months at around the close of financial year. The unprecedent epidemic
of COVID-19 has caught many by surprise. Facing the challenge, the management
team of the Company has responded proactively on the sudden event and at the
very early stage, a special task force was set up and led by the senior management to
take instant measures. For instance, getting timely statistics at hand on the workers
affected by the district closures or traffic conditions, re-arranging working procedures,
body temperature screening, dividing areas for necessary distance among workers,
preparing abundant face masks for use in work place, and other relevant measures as
precaution against the spreading of the epidemic. We are delighted that the Company
also received support from the Toray Group, our shareholder, in providing large
number of face masks in February when the global supply of masks was tight. All these
lead to the quick resumption of production of Panyu factory in February.

BUSINESS OUTLOOK

While we have confidence in our resourceful management team, the dedicated
team of staff and the quality of products and services of the Company, the business
prospect of this year also depends on other factors that are beyond our control. The
seemingly slowing down of global economic growth and customers conservative
spending trend may reduce the general demand for fabrics and restrict the sales
volume for the coming few months.

As a well-established textiles mill, the Group will stick to medium-to-long term plan
of working towards to set up a new factory in Vietnam for expanding production
capacity as well as diversification of production sites. In this year, the Company would
use its best endeavors to increase our market share in fabrics for sportswear and
explore new business opportunities as well as adopt disciplined budgetary control.

APPRECIATION

On behalf of the Board, | am pleased to express my sincere appreciation to our
customers, business partners, suppliers, stakeholders and bankers for their continuous
support to the Group during the period, | sincerely hope our employees will be able
to grow together with the Group, enjoy balanced life, and realize their potential in the
Group.

| would also thank our shareholders for their continuous support and confidence in
the Group during the past year.

On behalf of the Board
WAN Wai Loi

Chairman

Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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OVERVIEW

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited and its subsidiaries are principally engaged in
manufacturing and trading of textiles products, including high quality cotton and
synthetic knitted fabrics.

Revenue

During the year under review, revenue of the Group was approximately HK$5,476.2
million (2019: approximately HK$6,119.1 million) representing a decrease of 10.5% as
compared with the year ended 31 March 2019, due to the temporary 3 weeks' PRC
factory closure arising from 2019 novel coronavirus disease (“COVID-19").

Revenue generated from sales of goods from different geographical locations (as
determined by where the products were delivered to) is set out in note 5 to the
Financial Statements of the Company on page 103.

Other incomes comprising, among others, sales of residual materials and government
grants are set out in note 23 of the Financial Statements of the Company on page 133.

Cost of sales

The cost of sales of the Group was approximately HK$4,551.6 million (2019: HK$5,058.2
million) representing a decrease of 10.0% as compared with the year ended 31 March
2019 in line with the decrease in revenue during the year.

Profit

During the year under review, profit attributable to equity holders of the Company
was HK$743.5 million (2019: approximately HK$861.8 million) representing a decrease
of 13.7% as compared with last year because of the drop in sales revenue.

Selling and distribution expenses
During the year under review, selling and distribution expenses decreased to HK$64.0
million (2019: HK$65.9 million).

Administration expenses
The administration expenses slightly decreased to HK$189.9 million (2019: HK$192.0
million).
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRED T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)

Finance costs

Finance costs comprising of, among others, interest expenses on bank loan decreased
by approximately 19.7% to HKS$11.4 million (2019: HK$14.2 million) mainly due to
decrease in exchange loss on cash and cash equivalents.

Trade receivables and trade payables turnover days
Trade receivables turnover days was 49 days while trade payables turnover days was
49 days.

Income tax

The Group recorded an income tax expense from continuing operations of
approximately HK$103.0 million during the year under review (2019: HK$145.5 million).
The average effective tax rate of the Group was 11.8% which was lower than last year
(2019: 14.3%). The reduction in effective tax rate was mainly attributed to (i) lower tax
rate due to the tax holiday entitled by the Group’s subsidiary in Vietnam; and (ii) the
benefit of PRC tax incentives resulted from research and development projects.

Assets

As at 31 March 2020, the total assets of the Group were HK$4,813.2 million (2019:
HK$4,530.2 million) representing an increase of 6.2%. The total assets comprised
non-current assets of HK$1,912.4 million (2019: HK$2,001.3 million) and current assets
of HK$2,900.8 million (2019: HK$2,528.9 million). Such increase was a result of increase
in inventory, accounts receivables, and cash and bank balances.

Key financial ratios are set out below:

Gross Profit Margin® FEF|ZO
Return on Equity® FEZS B TR RO

Interest Coverage Ratio® MEBEH R
Notes:

(1) The calculation of Gross Profit Margin is based on gross profit divided by revenue and
multiplied by 100%.

(2) The calculation of Return on Equity is based on profit for the year divided by total
equity and multiplied by 100%.

(3) The calculation of Interest Coverage Ratio is based on profit before interest expenses on
bank loans and tax expenses divided by interest expenses on bank loans.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont’d)
Liquidity and financial resources and capital structure

As at 31 March 2020, the Group was in a net cash position of HK$66.5 million (2019:
HKS$274.7 million).

The Group's principal source of working capital was cash generated from sales of its
products, supplemented with bank borrowings and a shareholder’s loan contributed
by our joint venture partner for the Vietnam subsidiary.

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had total cash and bank balances of HK$928.8 million
(2019: HKS720.9 million) comprising of HK$50.6 million, the equivalent of HK$673.4
million denominated in USS, the equivalent of HK$200.8 million denominated in RMB,
the equivalent of HK$3.6 million denominated in VND and the equivalent of HK$0.4
million denominated in other currencies. The cash and bank balances and time
deposits were to finance the Group's working capital and capital expenditure plans.

The Group had bank loans of HK$737.2 million (2019: HK$300 million) and the
shareholder’s loan of HK$125.0 million (2019: HK$146.2 million) contributed by our
joint venture partner to the Vietnam subsidiary. The said shareholder’s loan was of
equity nature and was not repayable within one year. The Group did not pledge any of
its assets for bank borrowing (2019: Nil).

For the year ended 31 March 2020, the Group's total assets amounted to HK$4,813.2
million (2019: HK$4,530.2 million) representing an increase of 6.2%. Non-current assets
and current assets were HK$1,912.4 million and HK$2,900.8 million respectively. The
above assets were financed by current liabilities of HK$1,613.4 million, non-current
liabilities of HK$202.7 million and equity attributable to Shareholders of HK$2,985.9
million.

Capital expenditure and capital commitment

The Group had been adopting cautious measures and fine-tuned its capital
expenditure in response to the market demand. During the year under review, total
capital expenditure decreased by 31.9% to HK$151.9 million (2019: HK$223.2 million)
which was mainly used to purchase machinery and to finance the environmental
protection projects of Panyu factory and Vietnam factory.

Details on the land use rights, property, plant and equipment are set out on pages 104
to 106 of this annual report.

Details of the capital commitments are set out in note 32 to the Financial Statements
of the Company on page 142 of this annual report.
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEENRED T

OVERVIEW (Cont'd)
BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)
Key liquidity or leverage ratios:

BE (&)
7 5 B 2 (90
TERBAS LML E

As at 31 March
3A31H

2020
20204

Current Ratio® @ R @
Quick Ratio® RB) RO
Gearing Ratio® BARBREH RO
Debt to Equity Ratio"” B ERES RO

Notes:
(4) The calculation of Current Ratio is based on current assets divided by current liabilities.

(5) The calculation of Quick Ratio is based on current assets minus inventories divided by
current liabilities.

(6) The calculation of Gearing Ratio is based on total borrowings and bills payable divided
by total equity multiplied by 100%.

(7) The calculation of Debt to Equity Ratio is based on total liabilities divided by total equity
multiplied by 100%.

Risk Management on Foreign Exchange and Interest Exposure

The Group had been exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various currency
exposures with respect to the US Dollars, Renminbi and Vietnamese Dongs primarily.
The Group managed its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposures. The Group would hedge against certain of
its exposures in order to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

The Group mainly operated in Hong Kong, PRC, Macau and Vietnam. Except for certain
cash and bank balances and certain inter-company receivables denominated in
foreign currencies, transactions were generally conducted in a functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from recognised assets
and liabilities was considered by the Directors to be minimal.

The Group had been using forward foreign currency contracts to hedge part of its
foreign exchange risk. These forward foreign currency contracts did not qualify for
hedge accounting and were accounted for at fair value through profit or loss.

Operating Lease Commitments
Details of the operating lease commitments are set out on pages 142 to 143 of this
annual report.
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OVERVIEW (Cont'd)

BUSINESS AND FINANCIAL REVIEW (Cont'd)

Pledge of Assets

No assets were pledged to obtain financing as at 31 March 2019 and 31 March 2020
respectively.

Segmental Information
Details of segmental information are set out in note 5 to the annual financial
information.

Material Acquisitions and Disposals of Subsidiaries, Associates and Joint
Ventures

There was no material acquisition or disposal of the Company’s subsidiaries, associates
and joint ventures during the year ended 31 March 2020.

Contingent Liabilities
As at 31 March 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2019: Nil)

Events Subsequent to the Period
Save as disclosed in this annual report, there was no significant event undertaken by
the Company or by the Group after 31 March 2020 and up to the date of this report.

ENVIRONMENTAL AND SOCIAL REPORTING

The Group had spared no effort to continuously invest in the environmental
protection, energy consumption and reduction of wastage, and the achievements
were well recognized. During the year under review, the Company’s subsidiary in
Panyu had received the following awards:

“Bank of China (Hong Kong) Corporate Environmental Leadership Awards —
EcoChallenger”, granted by the Federation of Hong Kong Industries and Bank of China
(Hong Kong) in May 2019.

"Exemplary Enterprises - green design of industrial products (1st batch)”,
recommended by Department of Industry and Information Technology of Guangdong
Province and further honoured by the Ministry of Industry and Information
Technology of PRC in November 2019*.

“Top 10 Energy-Saving Enterprises 2019" granted by Guangzhou Energy Conservation
Association in December 2019

“Provincial Prize for Progress in Science and Technology - Second Class Award”
granted by People’s Government of Guangdong Province in February 2020
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MANAGEMENT DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS
EEERED N

PRODUCT RESEARCH AND DEVELOPMENT

During the year under review, the Company contributed to develop innovative
products to meet the market needs. The Company has received awards for its new
products, such as:

A lightweight and smooth underwear fabric was honored 2019 First Class Award
of excellent fabric by China Dyeing and Printing Association (“CDPA") in April
2019%,

A glossy light-and-dark, warp-knitted fabric was honored 2019 First Class Award of
excellent fabric by CDPA in April 2019%.

A high-grade, warp-knitted fabric with anti-slip function was awarded 2019
Second Class Award of excellent fabric by CDPA in April 2019%

A two-tone jacquard cloth with diamond pattern was awarded 2019 Second Class
Award of excellent fabric by CDPA in April 2019

The development and industrialization of glossy light-and-dark, warp-knitted
fabric was awarded the “Textile Light” — Innovation Contribution Award of Knitted
Underwear by China National Textile & Apparel Council ("CNTAC") in September
2019%,

The English translated version is for reference only. If there is any inconsistency
between the Chinese and English versions, the Chinese version shall prevail.

EMPLOYEES AND REMUNERATION POLICIES

As at 31 March 2020, the Group had 5,197 full-time employees (2019: 5,688). There was
no significant change in the Group’s remuneration policy. The Group’s remuneration
package for its employees included salary, bonuses, allowances and retirement
benefits based on the performance, skills and knowledge of each employee. The
Group also provided additional benefits to its employees, for instances subsidized
accommodation and meals for those working in production facilities, accident and
medical insurance, etc.

The Group will continue to provide regular trainings and competitive remuneration
package to the employees in order to enhance their incentive and motivation to work.

DIVIDENDS

The Board proposed to pay a final dividend of HK18 cents (2019: HK25 cents) per
share for the 2020 Financial Year, subject to the approval of the Shareholders at the
forthcoming AGM. Together with an interim dividend of HK26 cents (2019: HK32 cents)
per share, the total dividend for the 2020 Financial Year amounted to HK44 cents
(2019: HK57 cents) per share.
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PROSPECT AND OUTLOOK

The financial performance for the year ended 31 March 2020 has been hit by few
factors, including the 2019 warm winter which lowered the demand on synthetic
fabrics for thermal innerwear, and the unexpected production disruption of the Panyu
plant in early 2020 due to the pandemic of unprecedented COVID-19. The net profit
attributable to equity holders of the Company for the year under review has recorded
a decrease of 13.7%.

The temporary production halt started from Chinese New Year holidays until
mid-February 2020 and the below normal production capacity due to subdued
labour force after re-opening of Panyu factory, has led to decrease in sales revenue
for February. Although the Group's factory in Panyu swiftly resumed to original
production level in late February, the Company’s short-term financial performance in
March was hindered by postponement on delivery requested by customers arising
from adjustment of their own production schedules to cope with the shops closure or
lockdown in certain cities.

The business environment for the year 2020/21 is full of challenges and uncertainty.
The time taken for full resurrection of the global economy is unknown, but it is
estimated that the customers’ demand for fabrics (generated by consumers’ demand
for clothing) in the first half of the financial year 2020/21 would be lower than the
same period of last year. The management expect that the demand on fabrics would
rebound when most of the global economic activities are back to normal and the
effect of stimulus packages of various major economies kick in.

On the cost front, although the cost on yarns, dye stuff, and other raw materials are
expect to fall in this financial year due to poor global economic performance due to
COVID-19, the Company’s cost on achieving greener production and keeping high
environmental standard would be similar as previous years. The management will
continue to adopt cost efficiency measures to control production cost at reasonable
level. The Company constantly improves its production efficiency by streamlining of
working procedures and reduce manual work by wider use of information technology.

Last year, the sales on sportswear rose by HK$100 million, representing approximately
19.4% growth as compared with the financial year 2018/19. The management expect
that the income from sales of fabrics for sportwear would comprise higher portion
on the overall revenue. As disclosed previously, the Company's strategy in exploring
more business on fabrics for sportswear and increasing long term production capacity
by setting up a new production site in Nam Dinh, Vietnam remain unchanged. The
factory is expected to be in use by end of 2022.

Since August 2019, the Company has repurchased 2.4% of its shares to improve the
earning per shares (“EPS") of the Company. The Company may further repurchase
the Company's shares when the management thinks fit. Although lower profit was
recorded for the year ended 31 March 2020, the management stick to its dividend
practice in maintaining higher than market payout ratio to provide favorable return to
its investors and shareholders as a gratitude to their long-term support.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
SEREHEEAREN

o

EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. WAN Wai Loi, aged 70, co-founded the Group in 1997 and has been appointed
as a Director of the Company since 2004. He is currently an executive Director,
Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Group. Moreover, he is a director of
various subsidiaries of the Group and a non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc,
an associated company of the Group, whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange in Sri Lanka. He is responsible for leading the management team to oversee
the overall production and operation of the Group, providing corporate directions and
formulating business strategies of the Group. Mr. Wan obtains a Bachelor of Science
Degree in Chemical Engineering from National Cheng Kung University in Taiwan. He
has over 49 years of experience in the textiles industry.

Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI, aged 62, joined the Group on 1 July 2019 as executive
Director and the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Okutomi holds a bachelor’s degree
in law from Hitotsubashi University in 1981 and after his graduation, he joined the
merchandise sales department (textiles) of Toray. Toray is a company listed on the
Tokyo Stock Exchange and is a substantial shareholder of the Company. He has been
the managing director of Toray Industries (South China) Co., Ltd. and Toray Industries
(H.K) Ltd. from May 2016 to 30 June 2019, and the deputy managing director of Toray
Industries (China) Co., Ltd. from May 2016 to 30 June 2019. Mr. Okutomi has extensive
experience in management of textiles business.

Mr. TOU Kit Vai, aged 57, joined the Group in 2013 and became Chief Financial
Officer on 1 April 2014. Mr. Tou has been appointed as an executive Director from
1 July 2017. Moreover, he is a director of various subsidiaries of the Group and a
non-executive director of Teejay Lanka Plc., an associated company of the Group,
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka. Mr. Tou
has extensive experience in factory operations, financial management, project
management and ERP system. He is responsible for overseeing the corporate financial
management, information technology, group administration and human resources,
and back office operations. Mr. Tou is a fellow member of The Hong Kong Institute of
Certified Public Accountants and The Association of Chartered Certified Accountants.
He was an executive director of a company listed on the Stock Exchange during the
period from 2007 to 2012.

Mr. Toshiya ISHII, aged 57, joined the Group in 2017 as an executive Director. Mr. Ishii
is responsible for the Group’s budgetary control and setting up of key performance
indicators for fulfilling corporate goal and targets. Mr. Ishii was employed by Toray
after graduation from Keio University in 1985. Prior to joining the Group, he was a
general manager of controller's department of Toray and he has extensive experience
in the textiles industry.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2019/ 2020 Annual Report
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NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong, aged 72, joined the Group in 1997 and became a Non-executive
Director in 2007. He has been re-designated as an executive Director and appointed
as the Vice Chairman of the Group from 1 July 2017. From 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has
been re-designated as Non-executive Director of the Company and ceased to act as
the Vice Chairman of the Board. Mr. Lau holds a Higher Diploma in Textile Technology
from Hong Kong Polytechnic University (formerly known as The Hong Kong Technical
College). He has over 43 years of experience in the textiles industry, and he was the
Chairman of Group 3 (Dyeing and Finishing) of Federation of Hong Kong Industries.

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS

Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael, aged 68, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. He was the former chairman and
is currently the non-executive director of Cafe de Coral Holdings Limited, a Hong
Kong listed company which he joined in 1984, and has considerable experience in
planning and management. Dr. Chan has also been an independent non-executive
director of Starlite Holdings Limited since 1993, Tse Sui Luen Jewellery (International)
Limited since 2010, Modern Dental Group Limited since 2015 and Human Health
Holdings Limited since 2016, and a non-executive director of Tao Heung Holdings
Limited since 2007, the abovementioned companies are listed on the Main Board
of the Stock Exchange. Dr. Chan holds a Bachelor of Arts, a Master degree in City
Planning from the University of Manitoba, Canada, an Honorary Doctorate Degree
in Business Administration and is also bestowed as Honorary Fellow from Lingnan
University. He is currently the adviser of the Quality Tourism Services Association, the
Honorary Chairman of the Hong Kong Institute of Marketing and also a member of the
advisory committee of the department of management and marketing of the Hong
Kong Polytechnic University. Dr. Chan was the former chairman of Business Enterprise
Management Centre of The Hong Kong Management Association.

Mr. NG Ching Wah, aged 71, has been appointed as an Independent Non-executive
Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Ng has over 33 years of senior management
experience in the telecommunications industry. Mr. Ng was a director and a member
of the executive committee for Advanced Info Service Public Company Limited,
a Thailand listed company. He was an independent director of China Digital TV
Holding Co. Ltd, a New York Stock Exchange listed company and a non-executive
director of HKC International Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed company. He was
the chief executive officer of Hong Kong CSL Limited. He was the chief executive
officer of SmarTone Telecommunications Holdings Limited, a Hong Kong listed
company and the President of PCCW Mobility Services Limited. Mr. Ng was the
Honorary Advisor of the Communications Association of Hong Kong. Mr. Ng was a
member of the Digital 21 Strategy Advisory Committee (D21SAC) and a appointed
member of Communications Authority, an independent statutory body established
under the Communications Authority Ordinance in April 2012. Mr. Ng graduated
from the Chinese University of Hong Kong in 1975, with a Bachelor of Business and
Administration.
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PROFILES OF DIRECTORS AND SENIOR MANAGEMENT
ESRAREEASEN

INDEPENDENT NON-EXECUTIVE DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel, aged 63, has been appointed as an Independent
Non-executive Director of the Company since 2007. Mr. Sze has senior management
experience in the private and investment banking industry serving high net worth
clients and institutions. Mr. Sze is also an independent non-executive director of
Wecon Holdings Limited since 27 February 2019, which a company listed on the Main
Board of the Stock Exchange. He was the managing director, head of China and Hong
Kong of Julius Baer Bank; the chief executive officer of EFG Asset Management (Hong
Kong) Limited for Asia Pacific Region; the managing director, head of investment
of Citi Wealth Management for Asia Pacific region; the chief executive officer of
Asia-Pacific for Barclays Wealth and an executive director in the private clients division
at Morgan Stanley Asia Limited, Hong Kong. Mr. Sze holds a Master of Business from
the University of Newcastle, Australia. He is a Fellow of CPA Australia.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. CHAN Sau Yee, is the Company Secretary. Ms. Chan is a fellow member of
Chartered Governance Institute (ICSA) and The Hong Kong Institute of Chartered
Secretaries (HKICS) respectively. She has obtained dual qualifications as Chartered
Governance Professional and Chartered Secretary from ICSA and HKICS. She has also
obtained a Bachelor Degree in Economics and a Postgraduate Certificate in Laws
from the University of Hong Kong. She also holds a Bachelor of Law Degree from the
University of London. Ms. Chan has ample corporate secretarial experience gained
from international law firms, listed companies and large private groups. Ms. Chan
joined the Company in November 2017.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT

Mr. GAO Jinhua, aged 54, is the General Manager (Production) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who has worked for the Group for more
than 20 years and is experienced in operational and production management. Prior
to taking up the current position, Mr. Gao has been the head of dyeing factory and
Assistant General Manager of the Production Department. Mr. Gao graduated from the
Shanghai Normal University, major in Chemistry in 1988.

Mr. ZHAO Qizhi, aged 54, is the General Manager (Engineering) and a director of
some of the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1997 and has
over 25 years of experience in the textiles industry. He is responsible for managing
the engineering department of the factories. Mr. Zhao holds a Bachelor’s Degree in
Mechanical Engineering from Shanghai Jiaotong University, China.

Mr. LAI Chi Man, aged 54, is the General Manager (Sales) and a director of some of
the subsidiaries of the Company who joined the Group in 1998 and has over 25 years
of experience in the textiles industry. Mr. Lai holds a Bachelor of Arts Degree in Textile
and Clothing Marketing from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University. He also obtained
a Master of Business Administration Degree (The Kellogg — HKUST EMBA Program)
awarded by Northwestern University and The Hong Kong University of Science and
Technology jointly.

Mr. Koji ASADA, aged 51, is the General Manager (Marketing). Upon his graduation
from Faculty of Economics, Kwansei Gakuin University in 1991, Mr. Asada joined
Toray. Starting his career as a textiles salesman, he was later promoted as the section
manager of the fashion fabrics and was seconded to TSD (Toray Skai Dyeing &
Weaving) in Nantong City, China in 2008 where he had been a director for 6 years.
Mr. Asada also has experience as staple fiber general manager and sports textile
general manager.

Mr. TSANG Sian Chung, Hubert, aged 43, is the Chief Information Officer and a
director of a subsidiary of the Company. Mr. Tsang joined the Group in 2010 and now
leads the Group's digitalization initiatives. Mr. Tsang has over 20 years of experience
in the IT field, ranging from performing academic research on high performance
computing to building large scale Internet websites to building and maintaining
enterprise shared services. Mr. Tsang holds an MBA degree and Bachelor of Computer
Science, both from the University of Maryland, College Park.

Mr. CHUNG Chi Shing, aged 56, is the Assistant General Manager (Production
Technology) and a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group
in 1998 and has been serving for 22 years. He is responsible for dyeing and finishing
technology, fabric development, procurement of yarns, dyes and chemicals (DCA).
Mr. Chung graduated from The Hong Kong Polytechnic University in Textile Chemistry,
with over 30 years of experience in textiles industry. He is a holder of Chartered
Colourist granted by the Society of Dyers and Colourists.
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SENIOR MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)

Mr. WANG Sijie, aged 49, is the Assistant General Manager (Dyeing and Finishing) and
a director of a subsidiary of the Company who joined the Group in 1997. Mr. Wang
is responsible for the management of dyeing and finishing factory. Mr. Wang is a
professorate senior engineer and a holder of master degree. He is the Vice President
of Guangzhou Textile Engineering Society and a member of expert and technical
committee of China Knitting Industry Association (BIN44 TIRE2EeRBRERKF
B TEREERRIMEZEEZ 8). Mr. Wang was awarded as outstanding chief
engineer by China Knitting Industries Association and technical innovation award by
China Textile Engineering Society.

Mr. Masanobu SATO, aged 47, is the Assistant General Manager (Innovative
Merchandise Development) and he joined the Group as Assistant General Manager
(Research and Development) in 2017. Mr. Sato has over 20 years of experience in
textiles and related production technique development. Mr. Sato has studied material
engineering in Tokyo Metropolitan University. Upon his graduation, he joined Toray.
Prior to joining the Company, he has been working in different factory and laboratory
in Japan and China, such as Taltex (Zhuhai) Ltd. and Toray Fiber Research Center.

Mr. LAU Tak Ho Kevin, aged 46, is the Assistant General Manager (Finance, Human
Resources Management & Administration) who joined the Company in 2013. Mr. Lau
is responsible for group finance, human resources, administration, procurement
management in Hong Kong and Mainland China. Mr. Lau graduated with Eng (Hons.)
and MBA degree in Development & Industrialisation from the University of Liverpool
and a Postgraduate Certificate in Professional Accounting from the City University of
Hong Kong. He is a fellow member of Institute of Public Accountants in Australia. Prior
to joining the Group, he had worked in an international accounting firm and various
listed companies. He has extensive working experiences in finance, cost control,
human resources & administration and procurement management.

Mr. CHAN Kam Yuen, aged 52, is the Assistant General Manager (Sales) who joined
the Group in 1998 and has been serving for 22 years. Mr. Chan graduated from The
Hong Kong Polytechnic University with a Higher Diploma in Textile Chemistry, with
over 30 years of experience in textiles industry.
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The Board is pleased to present the annual report together with the audited
consolidated financial statements of the Group for the 2020 Financial Year.

PRINCIPAL ACTIVITIES

The Group is principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textiles products,
including high quality cotton and synthetic knitted fabrics.

An analysis of the performance of the Group for the 2020 Financial Year by
geographical locations of business operations is set out in note 5 to the consolidated
financial statements.

BUSINESS REVIEW

A review of the Group during the year and discussions on its future developments are
provided in the section headed "Management Discussion and Analysis” in this annual
report.

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES

The Group's financial condition, results of operations, business and prospects might be
affected by a number of risks and uncertainties. The followings were the key risks and
uncertainties identified by the Group for the 2020 Financial Year. There might be other
risks and/or uncertainties in addition to those outlined below which were unknown
to the Group or which might not be material during the period under review but will
turn out to be material in the future.

Business Risk

The macro-economic and political factors, such as potential trade barriers between
China and United States of America and the economic effect of COVID-19, posed
uncertainty to the business of the Group. Slowing down of global economic growth,
risk of stagflation and unstable foreign exchange rate and interest rate were also the
factors that adversely affected the financial performance of the Group.

Strategic Direction Risk

The success of future business depends on the achievement of our strategic
objectives including but not limited to acquisitions, joint ventures, disposals and/or
restructurings. The Group faced risk in its application of assets and capital towards
potential investments when business and investment opportunities had arisen.

Legal and Compliance Risk

Legal risk might be constituted due to unenforceable contracts, lawsuits or
unfavourable judgements which disrupted or negatively affected the business
operations or financial conditions of the Group.

Failing to oblige by relevant applicable laws and regulations might constitute
compliance risk. The Group might suffer from financial losses or losses in reputation
due to any possible legal risk or regulatory sanctions.
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BUSINESS REVIEW (Cont’d)

PRINCIPAL RISKS AND UNCERTAINTIES (Cont’'d)

Policy risk

The change in governmental policies and regulations in the countries in which the
Group operated, such as amended environmental protection policies, might result
in adjustment to production method or increase in cost in fulfilling those statutory
standards.

SUBSIDIARIES

Details of principal activities of the Company’s subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 are set
out in note 9 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESULTS AND DIVIDENDS

The results of the Group for the 2020 Financial Year are set out in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss on page 55 of this annual report.

An interim dividend of HK26 cents (2019: HK32 cents) per Share was paid on 18
December 2019 to the Shareholders. The Board has recommended the payment of
a final dividend of HK18 cents (2019: HK25 cents) per Share. Subject to the approval
of the Shareholders at the forthcoming AGM, the final dividend of HK18 cents will be
paid on 27 August 2020 to the Shareholders whose names appear on the Register of
Members of the Company on 17 August 2020.

The Board intends to maintain long term return for shareholders. In deciding
whether to propose a dividend and in determining the dividend amount, the Board
shall take into consideration of various factors, such as the financial results of the
operation, general financial condition of the Group, future funding requirements on
capital, business operations and development, general market conditions, interest
of shareholders as a whole, legal requirements, and other conditions that the Board
deems relevant.

CLOSURE OF REGISTER OF MEMBERS

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 3 August 2020 to
6 August 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to attend and vote at the forthcoming AGM, during which
period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order to qualify
for attending the forthcoming AGM, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 31 July 2020. The record date which determines the Shareholder’s voting right is
scheduled on 3 August 2020.

The Register of the Members of the Company will be closed from 13 August 2020 to
17 August 2020 (both days inclusive) for the purpose of determining the identity of
members who are entitled to the final dividend for the year ended 31 March 2020,
during which period no transfer of shares of the Company will be registered. In order
to qualify for the final dividend, all transfers accompanied by the relevant share
certificates must be lodged with the Company’s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar,
Computershare Hong Kong Investor Services Limited at Shops 1712-1716, 17/F,,
Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen'’s Road East, Wanchai, Hong Kong not later than 4:30 p.m.
on 12 August 2020.
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SHARE CAPITAL

Details of movements in the issued share capital of the Company during the 2020
Financial Year are set out in note 17 to the consolidated financial statements.

RESERVES

Details of movements in the reserves of the Group during the 2020 Financial Year are
set out in note 18 to the consolidated financial statements.

DISTRIBUTABLE RESERVES

As at 31 March 2020, the distributable reserves of the Company amounted to
approximately HK$2,319 million (2019: HK$2,739 million) comprising share premium,
share-based reserve, retained earnings, and offsetting the treasure shares of the
Company.

Under the Companies Law (Cap. 22) of the Cayman Islands, in addition to the retained
earnings of the Company, the share premium and capital reserves of the Company are
also available for distribution to the Shareholders provided that the Company will be
able to pay its debts as they fall due in the ordinary course of business immediately
following the date on which any such distribution is proposed to be paid.

PRE-EMPTIVE RIGHTS

There are no provisions for pre-emptive rights under the Articles, or the laws of the
Cayman Islands, being the jurisdiction in which the Company is incorporated, which
oblige the Company to offer new Shares on a pro-rata basis to existing Shareholders.

MANAGEMENT CONTRACTS

No contracts concerning the management and administration of the whole or any
substantial part of any business of the Company were entered into or existed during
the 2020 Financial Year.

DONATIONS

During the year under review, the Group made charitable and other donation totalling
approximately HK$2,090,000 (2019: HK$556,000).

PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT

Expenditure of approximately HK$152 million (2019: HK$223 million) was incurred
during 2020 Financial Year primarily to expand the production capacity of the Group.

Details of movements in property, plant and equipment of the Group are set out in
note 7 to the consolidated financial statements.

CAPITALISED INTERESTS

During the 2020 Financial Year, no interest had been capitalised (2019: Nil).
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PURCHASE, SALE OR REDEMPTION OF SHARES

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased a total of 33,091,000
Shares on the Stock Exchange at an aggregate consideration of (excluding expenses)
HK$141,801,580. Among those repurchased shares, 11,000,000 Shares were cancelled
during the year ended 31 March 2020, and 22,091,000 Shares were subsequently
cancelled in April 2020. The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the
par value thereof. Details of the repurchases of shares were as follows:

Number of
Shares

Month of repurchase

repurchased

fBE A% BEROHE

August 2019 20194F8 A 1,300,000
September 2019 20194F9 A 664,000
October 2019 2019610 A 132,000
January 2020 20204F1 A 3,371,000
February 2020 202042 A 2,370,000
March 2020 202043 A 25,254,000

Subsequent to the end of the reporting period and up to the date of this report,
the Company repurchased a total of 2,124,000 Shares on the Stock Exchange at an
aggregate consideration of (excluding expenses) of HK$7,707,010. Such repurchased
shares were subsequently cancelled on 1 April 2020 and 17 April 2020. The issued
share capital of the Company was reduced by the par value thereof. Details of the
repurchased after the end of the reporting period are as follows:

Number of
Shares

Month of repurchase repurchased

JBE A B

BERGEE

April 2020 20204 A 2,124,000

The repurchase of shares was made by the Directors, pursuant to the general mandate
granted by the Shareholders at the annual general meeting held on 8 August 2019
with a view to benefiting shareholders as a whole by enhancing the net asset value
per share and earnings per share.

Save as disclosed above, neither the Company, nor any of its subsidiaries purchased,
redeemed or sold any of the Company’s listed securities during the year ended 31
March 2020 and up to the date of report.
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MAJOR CUSTOMERS AND SUPPLIERS

During the 2020 Financial Year, sales to the Group's five largest customers accounted
for approximately 70.0% of the Group's total sales and sales to the Group's largest
customer included therein amounted to approximately 37.0%. Purchases from the
Group's five largest suppliers accounted for approximately 49.3% of the Group's total
purchases and purchase from the Group'’s largest supplier included therein amounted
to approximately 31.5%.

Except as disclosed below, none of the Directors, their associates or any Shareholders
of the Company (which to the knowledge of the Directors had owned more than
5% of the Company's issued Shares) had any interests in the Group's five largest
customers or suppliers noted above:-

Toray, a substantial shareholder of the Company, accounted for approximately 4.3%
of the Group's total purchases. The purchase from Toray constituted continuing
connected transactions, details of which are set out in note 33 to the consolidated
financial statements.

FINANCIAL SUMMARY

A summary of the consolidated results and consolidated balance sheet of the Group
for the last five financial years is set out on page 150 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS

The list of Directors during the 2020 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 July 2019)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Directors

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung (resigned on 12 June 2019)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (re-designated as Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel
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DIRECTORS (Cont'd)

Pursuant to article 130 of the Articles, at every AGM one-third of the Directors for the
time being, or, if their number is not three or a multiple of three, then the number
nearest to, but not less than, one-third, shall retire from office by rotation provided
that every Director (including those appointed for a specific term) shall be subject to
retirement by rotation at least once every three years.

Accordingly, Mr. TOU Kit Vai, Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael and Mr. SZE Kwok Wing,
Nigel will retire by rotation from the Board at the forthcoming AGM and will, being
eligible, have offered themselves for re-election as Directors.

PROFILES OF DIRECTORS

Profiles of the Directors are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report.

DIRECTORS’ SERVICE CONTRACTS

Each of the executive Directors had entered into a service agreement with the
Company for an initial term of two years, renewable thereafter until terminated by
either party by giving at least six months’ prior notice to another party in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors had
been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation in accordance with the Articles and
the Listing Rules.

None of the Directors proposed for re-election at the forthcoming AGM had a
service contract with the Company or any of its subsidiaries not determinable by the
Company within one year without payment of compensation (other than statutory
compensation).

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited 2019/ 2020 Annual Report
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REMUNERATION OF THE DIRECTORS

The remuneration of the Directors are reviewed and determined by the Remuneration
Committee on the basis of each Director’s experience, responsibility and the time
commitment to the business of the Group.

Details of emoluments of every Director for the 2020 Financial Year are set out in note
35 to the consolidated financial statements.

DIRECTORS" MATERIAL INTERESTS IN TRANSACTIONS, ARRANGEMENTS
OR CONTRACTS

No transaction, arrangement, or contract of significance in relation to the business of
the Group to which the Company or any of its subsidiaries was a party and in which
a Director or his or her connected entity had a material interest, either directly or
indirectly, subsisted at any time during or at the end of the 2020 Financial Year.

COMPETING INTEREST

None of the Directors had, either directly or indirectly, an interest in a business which
caused or might cause any significant competition with the business of the Group and
any other conflicts of interest which any such person had or might had with the Group
during the year under review.

TAX RELIEF AND EXEMPTION

The Directors were not aware of any tax relief and exemption available to the
Shareholders of the Company by reason of their holdings of the Shares.

ARRANGEMENTS TO PURCHASE SHARES OR DEBENTURES

At no time during the 2020 Financial Year was the Company, its holding companies, or
any of its subsidiaries or fellow subsidiaries a party to any arrangements to enable the
Directors of the Company to acquire benefits by means of the acquisition of Shares in,
or debentures of, the Company or any other body corporate.

PERMITTED INDEMNITY PROVISION

Pursuant to the Articles of Association, every director shall be entitled to be
indemnified out of the assets of the Company against all losses or liabilities which he
may sustain or incur in or about the execution of the duties of his office or otherwise
in relation thereto.
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DIRECTORS’ INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND EENRANEBRA ZERRAR
UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the interests and short positions of the Directors and chief
executives (Note 1) of the Company in the Shares, underlying Shares and debentures

202083 A318 » ARRIEZERESITHRA
8 (M&E1) AR Rl sk B a5 A E (Kl s
DR G, - BERD REFT - BEERE
BHE R EEOEISAUFETFEENZE LM
Frac ek sk B Mg AR a) R R ATy i e oAk

of the Company or any of its associated corporations (Note 1) as recorded in the

register required to be kept under section 352 of the SFO, or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange were as follows:

BT :
LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES BRIB2HRE
Number of Issued Shares Held and Nature of Interests
FEERTROBERERLE
Corporate Approximate
Personal Family Interests percentage of
Interests Interests (interests of Trusts and issued share
Name of Directors/ (beneficial (interests of a controlled similar Total capital of the
Chief Executives owner) spouse) corporation) interests Interests Company
EEER RADH
BAE RS REES b= FrER BEBRTRAE
EX BETBABES (EREEA) (BEZER) BilEs EEAE ZHABSH
(Note 4)
(Bt =£4)
Wan Wai Loi 10,295,000 1,030,000 = = 11,325,000 0.79%
FEK (Note 2)
(PH#E2)
Tou Kit Vai 707,000 - - = 707,000 0.05%
T 45 R
Lau Yiu Tong 53,393,000 - - - 53,393,000 3.72%
e
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel 400,000 - - - 400,000 0.03%
Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert 450,000 - - - 450,000 0.03%
B (Note 3)
(BFEE3)
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DIRECTORS" INTERESTS AND SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND
UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d)
Notes:

1. Within the meaning of Part XV of the SFO.

2. The Shares are held by Ms. Chiu Bo Lan, the spouse of Mr. Wan Wai Loi.

3. Mr. Tsang Sian-Chung, Hubert is the Chief Information Officer of the Company who was
granted share options of the Company. A summary of Share Option Scheme is set out
on pages 27 to 29 of this annual report.

4. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the Directors/Chief
Executives.

Save as disclosed above, as at 31 March 2020, no Directors nor chief executives of the
Company had any interests or short positions in the Shares, underlying Shares and
debentures of the Company or any of its associated corporations as recorded in the
register required to be kept under Section 352 of the SFO or as otherwise notified to
the Company and the Stock Exchange.

At no time during the year under review were the rights to acquire benefits by
means of the acquisition of Shares in the Company granted to any Directors or
their respective spouses or minor children, or were any such rights exercised by
them; or was the Company, its holding company or any of its subsidiaries a party to
any arrangement to enable the Directors to acquire such rights in any other body
corporate.

SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES

As at 31 March 2020, the following persons (other than a Director or chief executive
of the Company) had interests or short positions in the Shares or underlying Shares of
the Company as recorded in the register required to be kept under section 336 of the
SFO were as follows:-
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS” INTERESTS AND

SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES

TERRREMATRRONBERS 2

B@ kKR (B)
BG2HR

Approximate
percentage of
issued share

Capacity in which Number of capital of the
ordinary shares were held ordinary shares Company
RAERTE 8T
RIAREERZEH ZERBE REAZHBOBIL
(Note 6)
(Bt3Te)
Toray Beneficial Owner 405,394,000 (L) 28.03%
BEREAA
Schroders Plc Investment Manager 129,509,000 (L) 8.97%
REKIE
Lam Wing Tak Beneficial Owner 14,566,000 (L)
e EnfEA A
Interest of Spouse 718,000 (L)
e BER
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000(L)
EREGEREZEIMA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(BF&ES)
Wong Bik Ha Beneficial Owner 718,000 (L)
"HEE EREAA
Interest of Spouse 14,566,000 (L)
e {8 7 o1
Founder of a discretionary trust 69,243,000(L)
R ZEIPA
84,527,000 5.85%
(Note 5)
(B 3E5)
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SUBSTANTIAL SHAREHOLDERS" AND OTHER PERSONS’ INTERESTS AND
SHORT POSITIONS IN SHARES AND UNDERLYING SHARES (Cont'd)

LONG POSITIONS IN SHARES (Cont’d)

Notes:

5. Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the spouse of Ms. Wong Bik Ha, vice versa. For the purpose of the
SFO, Mr. Lam Wing Tak is the founder of the family trust.

6. Based on the information and the total number of issued Shares of the Company on
the date of relevant event per notification to the Company made by the respective
Shareholders.

SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Pursuant to the written resolutions of Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, the

Company adopted the Share Option Scheme subject to the terms and conditions

therein.

Options enabling the exercise of 22,820,000 Shares were granted on 18 July 2007
("Tst Grant”) and expired on 17 July 2017. Options enabling the exercise of 10,000,000
Shares were granted on 11 October 2013 (“2nd Grant”) will expire on 10 October 2023.
The closing price of the share of the Company immediately before the dates of the 1st
Grant and the 2nd Grant were HK$4.86 and HK$10.06 per share respectively.

A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME

Uo

Purpose

The purpose of the Share Option Scheme is to provide the Company
with a flexible means of retaining, incentivising, rewarding, remunerating,
compensating and/or providing benefits to eligible participants (as defined in
paragraph 2 below).

Participants

The Board may grant options to any eligible participants, namely an employee,
Director or Non-executive Director (including INED) of any Member of the
Group.

“Member of the Group” means the Company, any holding company,
subsidiaries or affiliates of the Company or other companies or associated
companies of the Company which the Board determines will be subject to the
Share Option Scheme.

Maximum number of Shares

The total number of Shares which may be issued upon exercise of all options
to be granted under the Share Option Scheme and any other schemes must
not in aggregate exceed 10% of the Shares in issue as at the date of Listing
of the Shares on the Stock Exchange on 18 May 2007 (the “Listing Date”),
representing 143,293,600 Shares or 30% of the Shares of the Company in issue
from time to time.
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd)
A. SUMMARY OF THE SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont’d)
4. Maximum entitlement of each participant

The total number of Shares issued and to be issued upon exercise of the

options granted to each eligible participant (including exercised and

outstanding options) in any 12-month period must not exceed 1% of the

Shares in issue at the date of grant of the options.

5. Time of exercise of options and duration of Share Option Scheme

(a)

(o)

General vesting period

The general vesting period for options granted under the Share Option
Scheme is 5 anniversary of grant date unless the Board specifies a different
vesting period under the terms of the offer. The option period will not be
more than 10 years from the date of grant.

An option may be exercised to the extent that it has vested and any
performance conditions or targets set by the Board have been met.

Duration of the Share Option Scheme
The duration of the Share Option Scheme shall be 10 years from the
Listing Date.

6. Exercise price and payment on grant

(a)

()

Exercise price

The exercise price for the Shares under the Share Option Scheme shall
be the price determined by the Board and notified to the option holder
which shall not be less than the highest of:

(i) the average closing price of the Shares for the five business days
immediately preceding the date of grant of the option as stated in the
Stock Exchange’s daily quotation sheets;

(i) the closing price of the Shares as stated on the Stock Exchange’s daily
quotations sheet of the Shares on the date of grant of the option; and

(i) the nominal value of the Shares.

Payment on grant

Eligible Persons are not required to pay for the acceptance of an option
granted to them.

7. Life of the Share Option Scheme
The Share Option Scheme was terminated automatically at midnight on the
day immediately before the 10th anniversary of the Listing Date, in other
words, the Share Option Scheme was terminated as at 17 May 2017.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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SHARE OPTION SCHEME (Cont'd) BRETE (E)
B. OPTIONS GRANTED BY THE COMPANY B. Zl&'aaaﬁtﬂz,ﬁﬁﬂ’ﬂ’é
The share options issued under Tst Grant were fully exercised. The movement of — AR BTNERED ERHIT
2nd Grant as at 31 March 2020 was as follows: ﬁ ° FA20209F3A31H  EZRTH
BIIRMAT :
Percentage ~ Number
Number oftotal  of Share
of Share Share  Options
Exercise  Options Vesting Options  Vested/to Exercisable As at As at
Dateof Grant  Grantee Price.  Granted  Tranche  Date Granted  beVested Period 01/04/2019  Exercised Lapsed  Cancelled 31/03/2020
HERY CEER/
ERLE BRE4AY GBER 20195 A2020%
RiLB# ERA ik HKEHE FEER  MAEAL REHR KE 4818 % 3A31B
11/10/2013 Eligible Employees  HK$9.98 10000000 1st 11/10/2016 30% 3000000 11/10/2016-
REREE  9mET i 10/10/2023
nd 11/10/2019 35% 3500000 11/1002019- 9050000 100000 8050000
b 10/10/2023 o o o
3rd 1171072022 35% 3500000 11/10/2022-
2=it 10/10/2023
The fair value of options of the 2nd Grant is approximately at an average of BE_—_BABEETEEX([EFERE
HK$1.85 per Share on the basis of binomial model (the “Model”). The significant A BZARBEZEREZARET
inputs into the Model were the closing price of the Share of the Company at the VRSB 8SET - R EBRAETER
date of grant of HK$9.98 per Share, annual risk-free interest rate of approximately %%%ﬂﬁﬁfﬁﬁ@f‘x '-'ujf‘%%% B2 K
2.09%, an expected option life of approximate 10 years, expected volatility of EEHXQ%;%E ) ig@fﬂ’?%ﬁ"]%@
45% and annual dividend yield of 9%. HK$1,174,000 amortised fair value of share ) = - %@10@\51’\] %;E"H”ﬁ;ﬁ%ﬁx*gﬁﬁg’q )

4 o . 4 45%5’]5&3%@%Iﬁ'»&‘i'ﬁﬁ&ti%ﬁ’]ﬂﬁ%@
options for the 2020 Financial Year was charged to the consolidated income HREFE o 20205 B REERT + 1,174,000
statement (2019: HK$1,695,000). /%EE%HXEEZ{%%&E&#] Z\\j_ﬁ {E =h; A %?\é\ﬂﬁl

=mRAARR (20195 1,695,000 7T) °
The Model was developed for use in estimating fair value of traded options that TEEAZATHAESH ] REEE
are fully transferable. The Model requires input of highly subjective assumptions, HENAREMR ZEBEN P REK
including the expected stock price volatility. Since the Company’s share options EXERE RDEEHAREERD - HR
have characteristics significantly different from those of traded options, and ARRIMERREMEENREAAT
because change in the subjective input assumptions can materially affect the fair [ bﬂtg/%ﬁfﬁ: R E BA] RE A S fE AR
value estimate, the Model does not necessarily provide a reliable measure of the ifﬁij{ﬁ%ﬂﬁflﬂz ”Ziﬁft:{j
fair value of the share options. BEHAIRAO AR EIFE A AR -
EAHBERERLT | 2019/ 2020 3k 29
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS

Certain related party transactions set out in note 33 to the consolidated financial
statements also constituted continuing connected transaction under the Listing Rules.

During the 2020 Financial Year, the Group had the following continuing connected
transactions, which were subject to reporting, and announcement requirements but
are exempt from the independent shareholders’ approval requirement under Chapter
14A.33 of the Listing Rules:

(1) SALE AND PURCHASE OF KNITTED FABRIC TO CRYSTAL GROUP

During the 2020 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 29 March 2018 in relation to the sale and purchase of knitted
fabric manufactured and owned by the Group to Crystal International Group
Limited (“Crystal” together with its subsidiaries, referred to as “Crystal Group”) with
its term up to 31 March 2021 (“Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric
New Master Agreement”). The annual cap for each of the three years ended 31
March 2019, ending 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2021 shall be HK$2,000 million.
Details of the Crystal Group Sale and Purchase of knitted Fabric New Master
Agreement were set out in the Company’s announcement dated 29 March 2018.

During the 2020 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Crystal
Group and the Group was approximately HK$1,001 million which was within the
relevant annual cap.

According to the Listing Rules, by virtue of its shareholding in PCGT Limited, an
indirect non-wholly-owned subsidiary of the Company, Crystal is a substantial
shareholder (as defined in the Listing Rules) of a subsidiary of the Company and
hence a connected person of the Company at the subsidiary level. Crystal Group is
therefore also regarded as connected person of the Company.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)
(2) SALE OF YARNS BY TORAY TO THE GROUP

During the 2020 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 28 July 2017 in relation to sale of yarns by manufactured or
owned by Toray Industries, Inc. (“Toray”, together with its subsidiaries, “Toray
Group”) to the Group for a period ending 31 March 2020. The annual cap for each
of the three years ended 31 March 2018 and 31 March 2019 and ending 31 March

2020 shall be HK$230 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2020 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray Group
and the Group was approximately HK$154 million which was within the relevant
annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) inthe ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;
(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and
(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair

and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.
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CONTINUING CONNECTED TRANSACTIONS (Cont'd)

(3) SALE OF FABRICS BY THE GROUP TO TORAY GROUP
During the 2020 Financial Year, the Group conducted business pursuant to an
agreement dated 27 February 2019 in relation to sale of fabrics by the Group to
Toray Group for a term of three financial years. The annual cap for each of the
three financial years ending 31 March 2021 shall be HK$100 million.

According to the Listing Rules, Toray is a substantial shareholder of the Company
and hence a connected person of the Company. Toray Group is therefore also
regarded as connected person of the Company.

During the 2020 Financial Year, the total transaction amount between Toray Group
and the Group was approximately HK$47 million which was within the relevant
annual cap.

In accordance with Rule 14A.55 of the Listing Rules, the Independent
Non-executive Directors of the Company reviewed the continuing connected
transactions in the paragraph above and confirmed that the transactions were
entered into:

(i) in the ordinary and usual course of business of the Group;

(i) on normal commercial terms or better; and

(i) according to the relevant agreement governing them on terms that are fair
and reasonable and in the interests of the shareholders of the Group as a
whole.

Pursuant to Rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules, the Company’s external auditor,
PricewaterhouseCoopers ("‘PwC") was engaged to report on the Group's continuing
connected transactions in accordance with Hong Kong Standard on Assurance
Engagements 3000 (Revised) “Assurance Engagements Other Than Audits or Reviews
of Historical Financial Information” and with reference to Practice Note 740 “Auditor’s
Letter on Continuing Connected Transactions under the Hong Kong Listing Rules”
issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants. PwC had issued
an unmodified letter containing findings and conclusions in respect of the above
continuing connected transactions (1) to (3) as disclosed by the Group in accordance
with rule 14A.56 of the Listing Rules. A copy of the auditor’s letter was provided by the
Company to the Stock Exchange.
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AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Company has established an audit committee (the “Audit Committee”) with
written terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code contained in Appendix
14 to the Listing Rules. The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael (who are Independent
Non-executive Directors). Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the
chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee had reviewed the financial statements of the Group for the 2020
Financial Year and discussed with the management and the auditor of the Company
on the accounting principles and practices adopted by the Group and internal
controls and financial reporting matters.

Pursuant to the recent development of CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to the
Listing Rules, an amended and restated terms of reference for Audit Committee was
effective from 1 January 2019.

CORPORATE GOVERNANCE

Principal corporate governance practices adopted by the Company are set out in the
Corporate Governance Report on pages 34 to 48 of this annual report.

ENVIRONMENTAL, SOCIAL AND GOVERNANCE REPORT

Discussion on the Group's environmental policies and performance, relationships with
its key stakeholders and compliance with relevant laws and regulations which have
a significant impact on the Group will be provided in the Environmental, Social and
Governance Report which will be published on the websites of the Company and the
Stock Exchange no later than three months after the publication of this annual report.

SUFFICIENCY OF PUBLIC FLOAT

Based on the information that is publicly available to the Company and within the
knowledge of the Directors, as at the latest practicable date prior to the issue of this
annual report, there was sufficient public float of more than 25% of the issued shares
of the Company as required under the Listing Rules.

AUDITOR

The consolidated financial statements for the 2020 Financial Year have been audited
by PricewaterhouseCoopers. A resolution to re-appoint PricewaterhouseCoopers as
auditor of the Company will be proposed for approval by the Shareholders of the
Company at the forthcoming AGM.

On behalf of the Board

WAN Wai Loi
Chairman
Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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34

The Board is committed to maintaining high standard of corporate governance
to enhance transparency and accountability and to safeguard the interests of
Shareholders of the Company. The Group reviews corporate governance practices
from time to time to ensure that business activities and decision making processes are
properly regulated.

A. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE PRACTICE OF THE COMPANY

The Company complied with the applicable code provisions and certain
recommended best practices set out in the CG Code contained in Appendix 14 to
the Listing Rules where suitable to the Company so as to enhance the corporate
governance standard of the Company throughout the 2020 Financial Year.

Mr. Wan Wai Loi had served as the Chairman and the Chief Executive Officer of
the Company during the year, hence the Company did not comply with the code
provision A.2.1 of the CG Code which requires that the roles of chairman and
chief executive should be separate and should not be performed by the same
individual. While the dual role arrangement has provided strong and consistent
leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group’s business strategies,
the Company will nevertheless review the structure from time to time in light of
the prevailing circumstance.

B. THE BOARD

1. RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD

The Board is responsible for leadership and control of the Company, the
Board is responsible for formulation of strategic, management and financial
objectives of the Group and ensuring that Shareholders’ interests are
protected. Daily operations and administration of the Group are delegated
to the Executive Directors and the management. The Board has established
Board committees and has delegated various responsibilities to these
committees as set out in their respective terms of reference. All relevant terms
of reference are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Company and the Board require each Director to keep abreast of
the responsibilities as a Director of the Company and of the business
and operating activities and development of the Group. Every Director is
committed to devoting sufficient time and involvement in the affairs of the
Board and material matters of the Company and serving the Board with such
degree of care and due diligence given his own expertise, qualification and
professionalism.

Executive Directors are responsible for managing different aspects or functions
of the business of the Group. The Non-executive Directors advise on business
strategies of the Group and review its financial and operational performance.
The INEDs serve the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee and provide independent reviews on the issues of
strategic direction, development, performance and risk management of the
Group.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

1.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

All Directors had been updated and briefed relevant changes in legal and
regulatory matters to ensure that they had a proper understanding of the
operations and business of the Group and that they were fully aware of their
responsibilities under applicable laws and regulations.

DELEGATION OF MANAGEMENT FUNCTION

The Board is responsible for making all major decisions of the Company,
including approving and monitoring all major policies, overall strategies
and budgets, internal control, risk management framework, significant
financial and operational matters as well as nomination of directors. The
day-to-day management and operation of the Company are delegated to the
management team of the Company under the supervision of the Executive
Directors. The Executive Directors normally meet on an informal basis and
participate in senior management meetings on a regular basis to keep abreast
of the latest operations and performance of the Group and to monitor and
ensure the management carrying out all directions and strategies set by the
Board appropriately.

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD

Profiles of current Directors are set out on pages 12 to 14 of this annual report
and are available on the website of the Company. The list of Directors during
the 2020 Financial Year was as follows:

Executive Directors
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairman and Chief Executive Officer)
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice Chairman)
(appointed with effect from 1 July 2019)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial Officer)
Mr. Toshiya ISHII

Non-executive Director

Mr. CHOI Kin Chung (resigned on 12 June 2019)

Mr. LAU Yiu Tong (re-designated as Non-executive Director
with effect from 1 June 2019)

Independent Non-executive Directors
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael

Mr. NG Ching Wah

Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel

There is no financial, business, family or other material relationships among
the Directors. The list of Directors and their roles and functions are published
on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

COMPOSITION OF THE BOARD (Cont’d)

The composition of the Board is well-balanced with the Directors having
sales and marketing experience and technical knowledge in textiles business,
administrative and managerial experience in PRC factories and financial
and accounting skill. Taking into account the nature and scope of business
operations and development of the Group, such balance of skills, experience
and diversity of perspectives is appropriate for effective decision making. The
Board considers that the Non-executive Director and each of the INEDs bring
their own relevant expertise to the Board.

As permitted under the Articles, the Company has arranged Directors and
Officers Liability Insurance in respect of any legal actions which may be taken
against Directors and management in execution and discharge of their duties
or in relation thereto.

APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS

The Board is empowered under the Articles to appoint any person as a
Director either to fill a casual vacancy or as an additional member of the Board.
Suitable candidates who are experienced and competent and able to fulfil
fiduciary duties and duties of skill, care and diligence would be recommended
to the Board.

If a Shareholder wishes to propose a person for election as a Director at
the AGM, the Shareholder can deposit a written notice to that effect at the
registered office of the Company for the attention of the Company Secretary.
Procedures for shareholders to propose a person for election as a director are
published on the website of the Company.

Each of the Executive Directors was appointed for an initial term of two years

and each service agreement is renewable thereafter until terminated by either
party by giving to the other party at least six months’ prior notice in writing.

Each of the Independent Non-executive Directors and Non-executive Directors
had been appointed for a term of two years and are renewable thereafter.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

4. APPOINTMENT, RE-ELECTION AND REMOVAL OF DIRECTORS (Cont’d)

All Directors are subject to retirement by rotation and are eligible for
re-election pursuant to the Articles. Pursuant to the Articles, any Director
appointed by the Board either to fill a casual vacancy or as an addition to
the Board shall hold office only until the next following AGM and then be
eligible for re-election at that AGM. In addition, at every AGM, one-third
of the Directors, including the chairman, shall be subject to retirement by
rotation and re-election by Shareholders at least once every three years.
The Directors appointed by the Board who are subject to retirement and
re-election as mentioned above shall be taken into account in calculating
the total number of Directors for the time being but shall not be taken into
account in calculating the number of Directors who are to retire by rotation.
All Directors eligible for re-election shall have their biographical details made
available to Shareholders to enable them to make an informed decision on
their re-election.

Any appointment, resignation, removal or re-designation of Director
shall be timely disclosed to Shareholders by announcement. Any reasons
for resignation given by the Director shall also be included in such
announcement.

INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS

Every newly appointed Director had been provided with comprehensive and
tailored induction of business operation of the Group, including a site visit of
our factory in China on the first occasion of his appointment.

All Directors are encouraged to participate in continuous professional
development to develop and refresh their knowledge and skills. The Company
from time to time updates the Directors on the latest development on the
Listing Rules and other applicable regulatory requirements to ensure their
contribution to the Board remains informed and relevant.
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5. INDUCTION AND CONTINUING DEVELOPMENT FOR DIRECTORS 5. EEZARNBREERR ()
(Cont’d)
According to the training records provided by the Directors, a summary of

RIBE R HAOF IR - 122020
FHBEFERRNEICEMERNT -

which during the 2020 Financial Year is as follows:

Topics on training covered

55 3 P 2 Y R

38 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Corporate Listing Rules and Risk and financial
governance regulatory updates management
tEER LTRAREZRESN RRRTEEE
Executive Directors Y1TE=S
Mr. WAN Wai Loi FEREE B B B
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI BEBEE AB AB B
(appointed with effect from 1 July 2019) (62019751 HEZF)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai HEREE B B B
Mr. Toshiya ISHII AHEREE B B B
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung BEEmis
(resigned on 12 June 2019) (R2019%6 /128 BFF)
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong ARREE B B B
(re-designated as Non-executive Director (62019651 HEHE A
with effect from 1 June 2019) HHTEE)
Independent Non-executive Directors B FHTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael R EEL AB AB B
Mr. NG Ching Wah m5ExRE B B
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel HE B &R 5% 4 B B B
Type of trainings HAIEE R
A. Attending briefings, seminars, webinar or training courses A 2NENE ERE BEHTE

B. Reading materials

| 2019/2020 Annual Report
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

6. THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS

NUMBER OF MEETINGS

The Board met at least 4 times per year and additional meetings are convened
when deemed necessary by the Board. The schedule of regular meetings for
the whole year had been informed to each Director. The attendance record of
the Directors is set out on page 40 of this annual report.

During the 2020 Financial Year, the Board held 6 meetings to approve interim
and final results announcements, interim report and annual report, to consider
dividend policy, to discuss significant issues and general operation of the
Company.

The Company held the AGM on 8 August 2019. All proposed Shareholders’
resolutions put forwarded were resolved by poll and were duly passed. The
poll result of each resolution was set out in the Company’s announcement
released on the even date.

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS

Notice of Board meeting will be served to all Directors at least 14 days before
the meeting. Notices and agenda of the Board meeting are prepared by the
Company Secretary as delegated by the chairman. All Directors are given the
opportunity to include any matters which they believe to be appropriate in
the agenda of the Board meetings.

Agenda and relevant information of Board meeting with adequate
background information and supporting analysis are made available to the
Directors at least 3 days before the intended date of the Board meeting. All
Directors are given separate and independent access to the Company’s senior
management for further information and enquiries. The Company Secretary
and relevant senior management members attend all the meetings of the
Board and Board committees to advise on corporate governance, statutory
compliance and financial matters.

Any material matters that would have conflict of interest between the
Directors or substantial Shareholders and the Company will be dealt with in
the Board meeting. Pursuant to the Articles, a Director is not entitled to vote
on (nor is counted in the quorum) any resolution of the Board in respect of
any contract or arrangement or any other proposal whatsoever in which he or
any of his associates (including any person who would be deemed to be an
“associate” of the Directors under the Listing Rules) has any material interest
except in certain special circumstances. The chairman of the Board meeting
is required to ensure that each Director is aware of such requirement at the
commencement of each Board meeting and declaration of interest is properly
made in the Board meeting where conflicts of interest arise.
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

6.

THE BOARD MEETINGS AND GENERAL MEETINGS (Cont’'d)

PRACTICE AND CONDUCT OF MEETINGS (Cont’d)

Directors have access to advice and services of the Company Secretary and
key officers of the Company in relation to the Board procedures. Draft minutes
of the Board or Board committee meetings recorded in sufficient details,
the matters considered by the participants of those meetings and decisions
reached are forwarded to the participants for comments within a reasonable
time after the meetings and final versions of minutes of Board or Board
committee meetings are kept by the Company Secretary, which are open for
inspection by any Directors at any reasonable time on reasonable notice.

Board members are provided with complete, adequate and timely information
to allow the Directors to fulfil their duties properly. Directors may seek
independent professional advice at the Company’s expenses with the
approval of the Board, if necessary.

ATTENDANCE OF MEETINGS

The attendance records of each Director at the meetings of the Board, the
Audit Committee, Remuneration Committee, Nomination Committee and
AGM during the 2020 Financial Year are set out as follows:

8. E2 (&)

6.

ESREBERRRAE (A)
ERERRER (H)
EXZARERARRR AR WEMTE
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HESEER
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Meetings attended/Meetings held
HEEERY ETEERE

Audit
Committee
ERZEES.
Executive Directors BITES
Mr. WAN Wai Loi (Chairmanand ~ FEIR L4 6/6 N/AREA
Chief Executive Officer) (ZEHTHAEZ)
Mr. Masaru OKUTOMI (Vice REBLE(FEE) (B 4/4 N/AT i F
Chairman) (appointed with 201975 1HEZ(F)
effect from 1 July 2019)
Mr. TOU Kit Vai (Chief Financial 4R 4 (BEHH 6/6 N/ATNER
Officer) e
Mr. Toshiya ISHII RHEREE 6/6 N/ATN i F
Non-executive Directors FHTES
Mr. CHOI Kin Chung BE@hLE 01 N/ATNEA
(resigned on 12 June 2019) (R2019%65 12A B F)
Mr. LAU Yiu Tong ARRS4E 6/6 /A F
(re-designated as Non-executive — (E20196/51H #5
Director with effect from EBHHTEE)
1 June 2019)
INEDs BUFYTES
Dr. CHAN Yue Kwong, Michael  BR#A ¢ 18+ 6/6 4/4
Mr. NG Ching Wah mEELE 6/6 3/4
Mr. SZE Kwok Wing, Nigel MRS % 4 5/6 4/4
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B. THE BOARD (Cont'd)

7. INEDS
The Board at all times met the requirements of the Listing Rules relating to the
appointment of at least 3 INEDs with at least one INED possessing appropriate
professional qualifications, or accounting or related financial management
expertise throughout the 2020 Financial Year.

As at 31 March 2020, the Board comprised eight members with three INEDs.
The number of INEDs met the minimum requirement prescribed under Rule
3.10A of the Listing Rules.

C. CHAIRMAN AND CHIEF EXECUTIVES

The Chairman of the Board provides leadership for the Board and is responsible
for chairing the meetings, managing the operations of the Board and ensuring
that all matters submitted for discussion are discussed by the Board in a timely
and orderly manner. The Chief Executive Officer is responsible for leading the
management team and overseeing the operations for the Group.

The Chairman and Chief Executive Officer of the Company are Mr. Wan Wai Loi,
hence the Company did not comply with the code provision A.2.1 of the CG Code
which requires that the roles of chairman and chief executive should be separate
and should not be performed by the same individual.

For the previous years, Mr. Wan has provided the Company with strong and
consistent leadership and facilitated the implementation of the Group’s business
strategies in an efficient manner. The Company will nevertheless review the
structure from time to time in light of the prevailing circumstance.

With the support of the Company Secretary, the Chairman ensures that all
Directors were properly briefed on the issues arising at the Board meetings and
provided with adequate information in a timely manner.

The Company received an annual written confirmation from each of the INEDs
of their independence pursuant to Rule 3.13 of the Listing Rules and considered
them to be independence of the management and free of any relationship that
could materially interfere with the exercise of their independent judgements.
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BOARD COMMITTEES

The Board has established three main Board Committees, namely the Audit
Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the Nomination Committee, each
chaired by different INED, to assist the Board in overseeing particular aspects of
the Company's affairs. Board Committees report to the Board of their decisions
and recommendations at the Board meetings.

The terms of reference (as revised) setting out the principles, procedures and
arrangements of the Audit Committee, the Remuneration Committee and the
Nomination Committee have been reviewed by the Board with reference to
the CG Code and are published on the websites of the Stock Exchange and the
Company respectively.

The Board Committees are provided with sufficient resources to discharge their
duties and, upon reasonable request, are able to seek independent professional
advice in appropriate circumstances at the Company’s expenses.

AUDIT COMMITTEE

The Audit Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written terms of
reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the Audit
Committee are reviewing, overseeing and supervising the effectiveness of the
Group's financial reporting process, risk management and internal control systems.

The members of the Audit Committee are Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching
Wah and Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael. All of them are INEDs. Mr. Sze Kwok Wing,
Nigel, a Fellow of CPA Australia, is the chairman of the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee has reviewed the audited annual consolidated financial
information of the Group for the 2020 Financial Year and the accounting principles
and practices adopted by the Group with the management in conjunction with
the auditor. The Annual Report for the 2020 Financial Year has been reviewed by
the Audit Committee.

The Audit Committee held 4 meetings during 2020 Financial Year. The major
work performed by the Audit Committee in respect of the 2020 Financial Year
included approving the terms of engagement (including the remuneration) of
the external auditor; reviewing the unaudited interim financial information and
interim results announcement for the six months ended 30 September 2019;
reviewing the audited annual consolidated financial information and final results
announcement for the 2020 Financial Year; reviewing the work of the Group's
internal audit department; assessing the effectiveness of the Group’s systems
of risk management and internal control and reviewing the effectiveness of the
whistleblowing policy and the incidents reported through such channel. The
attendance of the Directors for the Audit Committee meetings is set out in the
table on page 40 of this annual report.

fic Textiles Holdings Limited 2019/ 2020 Annual Report

). EERZES

EXZRERU=ETIEEZREZES
EZZES FHZBERRERZE
€ DHBETRABUIFRTESTHESE
B UBHEEREEARARAEHZE
BREHE EERZBENEZRE
FAEFRERLREMERZ -

EZEZBE FHZEEMRERZEE
ZRA BRI BESE (KE
FEREEREZREEXER TR
B - W TSN B P R AR R o

3

B

EERZECEREARERUETE
BE TRREHABERE AIREE
BRATSRBILEEER  BABAHLN
NAERIE -

EREEY
EBZZEER2007F48278 K - EE
M ESEESEERTRAR - Bix
ZEGUVIEBEARY BEREER
AEEZHBERETF BREERA
EREL T K 5 W AR A

BEREZEEZKERBESKEL M5
EEERRMAIEL - REHRBILIF
MITEF - RKEL  BIMNEMEF
MAEERER  RERZBEERF -

ERZESENEEEY R ZHEMEM
AEEDOVFHREE 2 EBEZFELS
EUBERRAEBAMFEMZ TREA]
KER - 2020FMRFE2FHREHE
REEEEHN -

EREECR2020F M B FEHM AT
TAREFH - FZRE B 2 R2020F 8 I
FECRBRITZEERK B IEIHEIIEZ
2RI ER(BENE) BHEE
2019F9 A 30 LE/N 8 A 2 RS T %+ 5
AR RPEESE NS  #H2020F
HHFEREREFRAVEER KRS
FEENE  BHASERNBETHDZ
Itk FEAEEZEBRERERZRFHENRN
HEZERA 2 RA R BBRBHRZK
MEBBLRERB B - EEHE
BEZZECERCHEHENAFREIOE
ZRA -



D. BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

AUDIT COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Audit Committee has reviewed the scope and results of the audit and its cost
effectiveness and the independence and objectivity of the Company’s external
auditor.

The fees in respect of audit and non-audit services provided by the Company’s
external auditor during the years under review (and the previous year) are as

follows:

Audit Services BEZR%
Non-audit Services I % AR5
— Tax consultation services — MG EER BR

The Audit Committee has undertaken a review of all non-audit services provided
by the Company’s external auditor and concluded that such services did not affect
the independence of the external auditor.

The Audit Committee recommended the Board about re-appointment of
PricewaterhouseCoopers as the Company’s external auditor for the ensuing year
and the related resolutions shall be put forth in the forthcoming AGM.

NOMINATION COMMITTEE

The Nomination Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of
the Nomination Committee are to make recommendations to the Board
on appointment of Directors with due regard to diversity of the Board and
management of the Board succession.

The majority members of the Nomination Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of the report, the members of the Nomination Committee are Mr. Ng Ching
Wah; Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Wan Wai Loi
and Mr. Masaru Okutomi. Mr. Ng Ching Wah, an INED, is the chairman of the
Nomination Committee.
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BOARD COMMITTEES (Cont'd)

NOMINATION COMMITTEE (Cont’d)

The Nomination Committee met twice during the 2020 Financial Year and
reviewed the implementation of the board diversity policy (“the Policy”). The
Policy sets out the approach to achieve diversity on the Board. In reviewing
and assessing the Board composition, the Nomination Committee will consider
a number of factors, including but not limited to educational background,
professional qualifications, skills, industry experience, age, gender and ethnic
origin, subject to the actual situation of the Company and relevant provisions
under the applicable laws. Restrictions like age, gender and ethnic origin will
not be set when short-listing the candidates. The major work performed by the
Nomination Committee in respect of the 2020 Financial Year included assessing
the independence of the INEDs and making recommendations in line with the
Policy on re-election of the Directors of the Company to be subject to rotation
requirements at the forthcoming AGM (including the new director(s) appointed by
the Board who is subject to re-election requirement under rule 114 of the Articles.
The attendance of the Directors for the Nomination Committee meeting is set out
in the table on page 40 of this annual report.

REMUNERATION COMMITTEE

The Remuneration Committee was established on 27 April 2007 with written
terms of reference in compliance with the CG Code. The primary duties of the
Remuneration Committee are to review and determine the terms of remuneration
packages, bonuses and other compensation payable to Directors and senior
management of the Group with reference to the nature of their works, complexity
of their responsibilities and performances and to make recommendations to
the Board. No director is allowed to take part in any discussion about his own
remuneration.

The majority members of the Remuneration Committee are INEDs. As at the date
of report, the members of the Remuneration Committee are Dr. Chan Yue Kwong,
Michael; Mr. Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel, Mr. Ng Ching Wah, Mr. Wan Wai Loi and
Mr. Masaru Okutomi. Dr. Chan Yue Kwong, Michael, an INED, is the chairman of the
Remuneration Committee.

The Remuneration Committee met three times during the 2020 Financial Year.
The major work performed by the Remuneration Committee for the 2020
Financial Year included reviewing the remunerations of the Directors and senior
management with reference to the remuneration levels of directors and senior
management of comparable listed companies. The attendance of the Directors for
the Remuneration Committee meeting is set out in the table on page 40 of this
annual report.

Details of the remunerations of the Directors disclosed pursuant to Section 161
of Hong Kong Companies Ordinance and Appendix 16 of the Listing Rules are
set out in note 35 to the consolidated financial statements. Executive Directors’
remunerations shall from time to time be determined by the Remuneration
Committee with reference to the Directors’ duties and responsibilities.

2019/ 2020 Annual Report

). EERZEE(R)

REZ8g (H)

REZE EER2020F 8 K FE HR 217
T2REZFU BN TEERZ T HBUR
(ZER]DWERER - ZBREIER
MABREZERS T - EiReT R E
EERMERN IREEESBEZAH
AEE  BEETRRAEES HE
BAS - Phiee TELER - TR ERR
ik WRERAQRAZERBR KRR
BERBEREZABRIE - BFBREEAR
B BT RENFEH  ERIMEK
HIARBR - IRBEBER2020FHHREE
ERITZEERK B IET B IENTT
EE2ENE URREERRBEFTK
e HIRBEHERTERARINES (B2
BEERETAETERMAUENMEE
TZEEETEIHES) B2 EHTKIE
ZBRIEHEZ EELEREETES
SRR AN FREI0BEZERNA °

FMZEESY

FHWEZ B EeR2007F48278B K EE
HEESERESEERTAMET - F o
ZEGZFEREALBALSEESER
BREBRABZIHENRE BENEME
MAERE  BHREEATFEREZEHH
BEGR - EAREMESNBE - W5t
HREERRLER AWNEETAR
B3 57 5 EL 8 A BB o

FMEE e s ABOKEHREIIEH
TEZ -RARESEY FHEEaL
FRERRBAEEL  BEKEL  MF
EEE FRREERREBLEE B
VHRRTEETRBABLRFTHNEZES
ERF e

N E 8 &R 2020F B IR F S B R R 1T
TIREZE - HIE B R 2020F M IERF
EEBOZETERBAELBRALE L
MARZEZEREBRERABHHKE
NEHNEEERSREEAEME B
HEFTHNEEeSBREANNERE
40BZKRNA °

KRB A RMRGIZE 16116 K& -1 557 BI K
BT AMBEECESTMSENFIIRNER
BHMBHRMES - ATEFTMEAA
FINZRELRESCREREEETE °



E. CORPORATE GOVERNANCE FUNCTIONS

The Board should be responsible for performing corporate governance duties as
follows:

(@) to develop and review the Company’s policies and practices on corporate
governance and make recommendations;

(b) to review and monitor the training and continuous professional development
of Directors and senior management;

(c) to review and monitor the Company’s policies and practices on compliance
with legal and regulatory requirements;

(d) to develop, review and monitor the code of conduct and compliance manual
(if any) applicable to employees and Directors; and

(e) to review the Company's compliance with the CG Code and disclosure in the
Corporate Governance Report.

COMPANY SECRETARY

Ms. Chan Sau Yee was appointed as Company Secretary on 23 November 2017
being a full-time employee of the Company to report directly to the Board. The
Directors have access to the advice and services of the Company Secretary to
ensure the Board procedures, and all applicable law, rules and regulations, are
followed. During the 2020 Financial Year, the Company Secretary complied
with Rule 3.29 of the Listing Rules by taking no less than 15 hours of relevant
professional training.

. DIRECTORS’ SECURITIES TRANSACTIONS

The Company has adopted the standard of Model Code as set out in Appendix
10 to the Listing Rules as its code of conduct regarding securities transactions by
the Directors. Having made specific enquiries of all Directors, all current Directors
confirmed that they had complied with the required standard set out in such
Code throughout the 2020 Financial Year.
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H. DIRECTORS’ RESPONSIBILITY FOR FINANCIAL REPORTING

The Board acknowledged its responsibility for preparing the Company’s financial
statements for 2020 Financial Year which gave a true and fair view of financial
position of the Group and in accordance with statutory requirements and
applicable accounting standards. The Company's interim report and annual report
were prepared and published in accordance with statutory requirements and
Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards in a timely manner required under the
Listing Rules. Directors were provided with adequate information to enable them
to make an informed assessment of financial and other information on matters for
their approval. Furthermore, Directors were provided with monthly updates on the
Group's performance to enable them to discharge their duties.

The statement of the external auditor of the Company regarding its reporting
responsibility to Shareholders on the consolidated financial statements of the
Group is set out in the Independent Auditor's Report on pages 49 to 54 of this
annual report.

RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL

The Group has established risk management and internal control systems
to safeguard shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Board
acknowledges its responsibility for the risk management and internal control
systems of the Group. From time to time and at least annually, the Board, through
the Audit Committee, reviews the effectiveness of the risk management and
internal control systems of the Group in order to ensure that they meet with the
ever-changing business environment as well as the requirements under the Listing
Rules. To enhance the objectiveness and credibility of the review, an independent
consultancy firm has been engaged to periodically conduct the appraisal of the
adequacy and effectiveness of the Group’s risk management and internal control
system.

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Board, assisted by the Audit
Committee, assessed the effectiveness of the risk management and internal
control system of the Group by reviewing the investigation results of management
report and internal audits, and considered that the risk management and internal
control system of the Group for the year ended 31 March 2020 was effective and
adequate.

The Group has in place the sound and effective internal controls to safeguard
shareholders’ investment and assets of the Group. The Company has from time to
time reviewed effectiveness of internal control systems and adopts corresponding
measures. Certain management committees were set up to set policies and
monitor potential internal control weakness in order to ensure that they meet with
the dynamic and ever-changing business environment.
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RISK MANAGEMENT AND INTERNAL CONTROL (Cont'd)

During the 2020 Financial Year, the Board has reviewed effectiveness of
the Group's internal control systems, including financial, operational and
compliance controls and risk management functions, adequacy of resources,
training programmes, budget, qualifications and experience of staff of the
Company'’s accounting and financial reporting function, through the Internal
Audit Department, the Audit Committee and with assistance of an international
independent risk consulting firm.

The Company has established a whistleblowing policy and system which enables
employees to raise concern, in confidence, about the possible improprieties in any
matter relating to the Company, reported case will be assessed with due care, with
top management oversight and for valid compliant, appropriate action will be
taken to address the concern.

COMMUNICATION WITH SHAREHOLDERS

The Board recognises the importance of continuing communications with
Shareholders and strives to ensure timeliness, completeness and accuracy
of information disclosure to Shareholders and to protect the interests of
Shareholders.

The Board has established a shareholders’ communication policy and reviews it
on a regular basis to ensure its effectiveness. As a channel to further promote
effective communication, the Group maintains a website allowing Shareholders
to access updates on the Company’s particulars where the Company’s
announcements, financial information, shareholders’ communication policy and
other information are posted.

The Board maintains an on-going dialogue with Shareholders through general
meeting of the Company to communicate with Shareholders. The chairman of the
Board, the representative of each committee and the external auditor attend the
general meeting to answer any questions from Shareholders. A separate resolution
shall be proposed at general meeting on each substantially separate issue. A
Shareholder is permitted to appoint any number of proxies to attend and vote in
his stead.

To promote effective communication, the Company maintains a website,
www.pacific-textiles.com. where information and updates on the Company’s
business developments and operations, financial information, corporate
governance practices and other information are available for public access.
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K. SHAREHOLDERS’ RIGHTS

PROCEDURES FOR CONVENING AN EXTRAORDINARY GENERAL MEETING
Any two or more shareholders or any one shareholder which is a recognised
clearing house (or its nominee(s)), holding not less than one-tenth of the paid-up
capital of the Company may, in accordance with requirements and procedures
set out in the Articles of the Company, make a written requisition to the Board
to convene an extraordinary general meeting of the Company and put forward
proposals at the meeting. The objects of the meeting must be stated in the
written requisition which must be signed by the requisitionist(s) and deposited at
the Company's principal place of business in Hong Kong.

There are no provisions allowing Shareholders to put forward new resolutions
at general meetings under Cayman Islands law or the Articles of the Company.
Shareholders who wish to put forward a resolution may request the Company to
convene an extraordinary general meeting in accordance with procedures set out
above.

NOTICE OF GENERAL MEETINGS

Notice of all general meetings shall be sent to Shareholders in accordance
with the Articles and the requirements of Listing Rules. Notice for AGM and all
other general meetings shall be sent at least 20 clear business days and 10 clear
business days prior to the meeting respectively.

VOTING BY POLL

At any general meetings, the chairman may exercise his power under the Articles
to put each resolution set out in the notice to be voted by way of poll, explain
detailed procedures for conducting a poll and answer any questions from
Shareholders on voting by poll. The results of the poll, if any, will be published on
the websites of the Stock Exchange and the Company respectively.

PROCEDURES FOR RAISING ENQUIRIES

Shareholders should direct their questions about their shareholdings to the
Company’'s Hong Kong Branch Share Registrar, Computershare Hong Kong
Investor Services Limited (Address: 17M/F., Hopewell Centre, 183 Queen’s Road
East, Wan Chai, Hong Kong and Telephone: (852) 2862 8555).

Shareholders who have any questions for the Board may send written enquiries
together with their detailed contact information, such as postal address or e-mail
address, by post to the Company’s principal place of business in Hong Kong or by
e-mail to ir@pacific-textiles.com.

The Board also encourages Shareholders to attend general meetings to make
enquiries directly.

CONSTITUTIONAL DOCUMENTS

The Articles is published on the website of the Stock Exchange and the Company
respectively. During the 2020 Financial Year, there was no change to the Articles of
the Company.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPOR
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TO THE SHAREHOLDERS OF PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED

(incorporated in Cayman Islands with limited liability)

OPINION

What we have audited

The consolidated financial statements of Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the
“"Company”) and its subsidiaries (the “Group”) set out on pages 55 to 149, which
comprise:

the consolidated balance sheet as at 31 March 2020;

the consolidated statement of profit or loss for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of comprehensive income for the year then ended;
the consolidated statement of changes in equity for the year then ended;

the consolidated statement of cash flows for the year then ended; and

the notes to the consolidated financial statements, which include a summary of
significant accounting policies.

Our opinion

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements give a true and fair view of
the consolidated financial position of the Group as at 31 March 2020, and of its
consolidated financial performance and its consolidated cash flows for the year then
ended in accordance with Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards (“HKFRSs") issued
by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants ("HKICPA") and have been
properly prepared in compliance with the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong
Companies Ordinance.

BASIS FOR OPINION

We conducted our audit in accordance with Hong Kong Standards on Auditing
("HKSAs") issued by the HKICPA. Our responsibilities under those standards are further
described in the Auditor's Responsibilities for the Audit of the Consolidated Financial
Statements section of our report.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to
provide a basis for our opinion.

Independence

We are independent of the Group in accordance with the HKICPA’s Code of Ethics
for Professional Accountants (“the Code"), and we have fulfilled our other ethical
responsibilities in accordance with the Code.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BAGRERE

KEY AUDIT MATTERS

Key audit matters are those matters that, in our professional judgment, were of most
significance in our audit of the consolidated financial statements of the current period.
We considered “Revenue recognition” as a key audit matter that was addressed in
the context of our audit of the consolidated financial statements as a whole, and
in forming our opinion thereon, and we do not provide a separate opinion on this

matter.

Key Audit Matter

BENER

Revenue Recognition

LON:

Refer to note 2.21 for the Group’s accounting policies on revenue
recognition and note 5 for the analysis of revenue from sales of
goods for the year ended 31 March 2020.

Bl BESERANHBARINESEE  F2HEME221 -
BRABE200F3ANBLEFEBEETMABRANDN - &
2B S -

Revenue from sales of goods for the year ended 31 March 2020
amounted to HK$5,476,196,000. The Group has operations in
several geographical locations, and derives revenue from sales to
multiple customers.

B 202053 A31 B L F R $5 & & an FT 15 W0 A 735,476,196,00078
Lo BERERZEMELLER WS EXPHEISKA -

Revenue is recognised when the control of the products has
transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customers have full discretion over the price to
sell the products and there is no unfulfilled obligation that could
affect the customers’ acceptance of the products. Delivery occurs
when the products have been shipped to the specified location
and the risks of obsolescence and loss have been transferred to the
customers.

EEMNEHREBEEFP AIRNERTERLE)  mEFP
HHEERWERERRENIEE  BUEARTEREFPEW
EmBARBEHNELR X S5EBRIAWA BERNEEET
wE - ARERBREREEBREREFSE - AEERM -

We focused on this area due to the large volume of revenue
transactions derived from sales to multiple customers in different
geographical locations such that we have incurred significant time
and resources in carrying out our work in this area.

BMEIZREERRREETRME R ZEF P HENBAR
ZER  BEMB/ETRZBENTELEE T RERKHERER
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How our audit addressed the Key Audit Matter
BENETNAEERRENSE

We understood, evaluated and tested management'’s key internal
controls that are present in the Group’s sales process from
end-to-end.

BMETH FHkRIEEEEE E£EESHAETNEH
oA EREE o

We tested samples of sales transactions against sales orders,
shipping documents, invoices and other supporting documents.
To the extent that those sales have been settled, we also
reviewed bank remittance advices and/or bank statements in
support of the payments made by the customers.
BMESHHETE  RESER BERAMIFEXHS
HERXZELMEAR - MZFSHEEHEE RN SRR
XRHEEENROBTERBME R HIRITRE -

Furthermore, we tested sales transactions that took place shortly
before and after the balance sheet date to assess whether sales
transactions were recognised in the correct reporting periods.
o HAEAAREREEABRADARELNHEER
7 URHAHER SR ENEENRE HIMER

Our work also included testing of a sample of revenue-related
journal entries by inquiring management of their nature and
inspecting the relevant supporting documents.

BN TEEBEABRAMERERERFIE REMEETE
MEX SRR B RSB AR E AT ORI o

We found that the Groups’ sales transactions being tested were
recognised in a manner consistent with the Group’s accounting
policy for revenue recognition.
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OTHER INFORMATION

The directors are responsible for the other information. The other information
comprises the information included in the annual report, other than the consolidated
financial statements and our auditor’s report thereon.

Our opinion on the consolidated financial statements does not cover the other
information and we do not express any form of assurance conclusion thereon.

In connection with our audit of the consolidated financial statements, our
responsibility is to read the other information identified above and, in doing
so, consider whether the other information is materially inconsistent with the
consolidated financial statements or our knowledge obtained in the audit, or
otherwise appears to be materially misstated.

If, based on the work we have performed, we conclude that there is a material
misstatement of this other information, we are required to report that fact. We have
nothing to report in this regard.

RESPONSIBILITIES OF DIRECTORS AND THE AUDIT COMMITTEE FOR THE
CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

The directors of the Company are responsible for the preparation of the consolidated
financial statements that give a true and fair view in accordance with HKFRSs issued
by the HKICPA and the disclosure requirements of the Hong Kong Companies
Ordinance, and for such internal control as the directors determine is necessary to
enable the preparation of consolidated financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

In preparing the consolidated financial statements, the directors are responsible for
assessing the Group's ability to continue as a going concern, disclosing, as applicable,
matters related to going concern and using the going concern basis of accounting
unless the directors either intend to liquidate the Group or to cease operations, or
have no realistic alternative but to do so.

The Audit Committee is responsible for overseeing the Group's financial reporting
process.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Our objectives are to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
financial statements as a whole are free from material misstatement, whether due to
fraud or error, and to issue an auditor’s report that includes our opinion. We report
our opinion solely to you, as a body, and for no other purpose. We do not assume
responsibility towards or accept liability to any other person for the contents of this
report. Reasonable assurance is a high level of assurance, but is not a guarantee
that an audit conducted in accordance with HKSAs will always detect a material
misstatement when it exists. Misstatements can arise from fraud or error and are
considered material if, individually or in the aggregate, they could reasonably be
expected to influence the economic decisions of users taken on the basis of these
consolidated financial statements.

As part of an audit in accordance with HKSAs, we exercise professional judgment and
maintain professional scepticism throughout the audit. We also:

Identify and assess the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error, design and perform audit procedures
responsive to those risks, and obtain audit evidence that is sufficient and
appropriate to provide a basis for our opinion. The risk of not detecting a material
misstatement resulting from fraud is higher than for one resulting from error, as
fraud may involve collusion, forgery, intentional omissions, misrepresentations, or
the override of internal control.

Obtain an understanding of internal control relevant to the audit in order to
design audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for
the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the Group's internal
control.

Evaluate the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness
of accounting estimates and related disclosures made by the directors.
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AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED

FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)
Conclude on the appropriateness of the directors’ use of the going concern basis
of accounting and, based on the audit evidence obtained, whether a material
uncertainty exists related to events or conditions that may cast significant doubt
on the Group's ability to continue as a going concern. If we conclude that a
material uncertainty exists, we are required to draw attention in our auditor’s
report to the related disclosures in the consolidated financial statements or, if
such disclosures are inadequate, to modify our opinion. Our conclusions are based
on the audit evidence obtained up to the date of our auditor's report. However,
future events or conditions may cause the Group to cease to continue as a going
concern.

Evaluate the overall presentation, structure and content of the consolidated
financial statements, including the disclosures, and whether the consolidated
financial statements represent the underlying transactions and events in a manner
that achieves fair presentation.

Obtain sufficient appropriate audit evidence regarding the financial information
of the entities or business activities within the Group to express an opinion
on the consolidated financial statements. We are responsible for the direction,
supervision and performance of the group audit. We remain solely responsible for
our audit opinion.

We communicate with the Audit Committee regarding, among other matters, the
planned scope and timing of the audit and significant audit findings, including any
significant deficiencies in internal control that we identify during our audit.

We also provide the Audit Committee with a statement that we have complied with
relevant ethical requirements regarding independence, and to communicate with
them all relationships and other matters that may reasonably be thought to bear on
our independence, and where applicable, related safeguards.
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR'S REPORT
BUGHMRE

AUDITOR’S RESPONSIBILITIES FOR THE AUDIT OF THE CONSOLIDATED
FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont’d)

From the matters communicated with the Audit Committee, we determine those
matters that were of most significance in the audit of the consolidated financial
statements of the current period and are therefore the key audit matters. We describe
these matters in our auditor’s report unless law or regulation precludes public
disclosure about the matter or when, in extremely rare circumstances, we determine
that a matter should not be communicated in our report because the adverse
consequences of doing so would reasonably be expected to outweigh the public
interest benefits of such communication.

The engagement partner on the audit resulting in this independent auditor’s report is
Leung Po Wah, Pauline.

PricewaterhouseCoopers
Certified Public Accountants

Hong Kong, 18 June 2020
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION ==
BHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF PROFIT OR LOSS REBRE
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020F3A31HIEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHERT FET
Revenue WA 5 5,476,196 6,119,081
Cost of sales 5 65 B AR 24 (4,551,618) (5,058,180)
Gross profit ER 924,578 1,060,901
Other income and other (losses)/gains — net Hiblg AR E M (FEE) Iz 23
— 5 146,741 183,223
Reversal of/(impairment loss) FEMW PR KB B, CREE1E)
on trade receivables 2,172 (2,722)
Distribution and selling expenses SHENREERX 24 (63,985) (65,864)
General and administrative expenses — R RITHEX 24 (189,919) (191,996)
Operating profit mERR 819,587 983,542
Finance income B A 26 25,435 11,673
Finance costs B 75 A 2R 26 (11,435) (14,166)
Share of profits of associates SaR () RAR/NE] | 10 37,340 34,738
Profit before income tax Fr 8 BiA =R 870,927 1,015,787
Income tax expense FriE8fifAx 27 (102,998) (145,528)
Profit for the year FERF 767,929 870,259
Profit attributable to: THIA A EF -
Equity holders of the Company RATERFBA 743,489 861,780
Non-controlling interests FEFE B MR = 24,440 8,479
767,929 870,259
Earnings per share attributable to equity FARQBIEZFTEA
holders of the Company for the year FEE B A F
(expressed in HKS per share) (ABRBITYIR)
~ basic —HAR 28 0.51 0.60
— diluted —#s 28 0.51 0.60

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial &M ZMiFE Ty S4RE M HRER DA ik 2
statements. ;W4 o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF COMPREHENSIVE INCOME FREEUER
For the year ended 31 March 2020 HE2020F3A8318IEFE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET FAT
Profit for the year FEBA 767,929 870,259
Other comprehensive income: Hi2mEA
Items that have been or may be reclassified to profit or loss: E B AJpEE# # B R 187 H) B H -

Currency translation differences SNEEIE = R (162,317) (212,734)
Total comprehensive income for the year FEZXEBAEE 605,612 657,525
Attributable to: TIA TR :

Equity holders of the Company ARARIERFTFR A 584,508 650,781

Non-controlling interests FE 122 Il 1 21,104 6,744

605,612 657,525

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial &Mt Z M=t T) bt 4R & B B o&X T A SR 2
statements. o o
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET GRBEARER
As at 31 March 2020 7202093 A31H
2020 2019
20204 201945
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FBT
ASSETS =43
Non-current assets RBEE
Land use rights 4 Hb {5 FA A 6 - 115,321
Property, plant and equipment W BE kA 7 1,410,037 1,520,210
Right-of-use assets FREEE 8 110,815 -
Interests in associates REEE RN A 2 = 10 323,487 320,572
Financial assets at fair value through BARET AR EERA 1
other comprehensive income HEmEE 853 853
Deferred income tax assets REFMISTHEE 20 19,579 15,843
Deposits for land use rights and prepayment THFEREZREMYE  BE 14
for property, plant and equipment R TR FIE 47,586 28,497
1,912,357 2,001,296
Current assets REEE
Inventories FE 12 1,133,792 947,353
Trade and bills receivables JEUBR A R E bR 13 741,994 735,882
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables Ee  BNREREA 14
J& Wk TE 66,701 63,676
Amounts due from associates JE Uk Bt = N B IR 10 29,542 52,799
Derivative financial instruments MTESBIA 15 - 8,339
Short-term bank deposits MHEIRITER 16 161,645 -
Cash and cash equivalents RekRE&SEHER 16 767,143 720,892
2,900,817 2,528,941
Total assets EEHAE 4,813,174 4,530,237
EQUITY B
Equity attributable to equity holders ARATERFEAEGER
of the Company
Share capital % 7N 17 1,435 1,446
Share premium f& 15 4 B 17 1,398,998 1,453,188
Treasury shares EFRG 07 (88,037) Al
Reserves E 18 1,673,528 1,824,977
2,985,924 3,279,611
Non-controlling interests GRS 11,132 (9,972)
Total equity R 2,997,056 3,269,639
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHER

& A = =
CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET (Cont'd) EOEEAER(B)
As at 31 March 2020 7202063 A31H
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
LIABILITIES =R
Non-current liabilities kRBEE
Borrowings ®B®E 19 125,049 146,225
Lease liabilities HEEE 8 373 -
Deferred income tax liabilities RERMSHAE 20 50,989 39,889
Other non-current provision H b IE R BB 22 26,305 22,934
202,716 209,048
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings ®BE 19 737,190 300,000
Trade and bills payables JEBRA R EE 21 645,691 568,485
Accruals and other payables FEETIE B K H fth F& 5 518 22 183,862 160,636
Lease liabilities HEBE 8 771 =
Derivative financial instruments TTESRT A 15 6,994 225
Current income tax liabilities BNEART S HE B (& 38,894 22,204
1,613,402 1,051,550
Towlliabiies _ Amew LBI6NIS 126059
Total equity and liabilities ERRAGEESE 4,813,174 4,530,237

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — BEFT < Mi &t Th it 4R & B A5 R T Al Sk 2
statements. o o

The consolidated financial statements were approved by the Board of Directors on 18~ EHE/REMN20205F6 A 18 B #t 4R & B F Wk

June 2020 and were signed on its behalf: WTREREEREE
Wan Wai Loi Tou Kit Vai
FER HER
Director Director
EE EoEa
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CHANGES IN EQUITY GEEREDX
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020F3A31HIEFE

Attributable to equity holders of the Company

AAAREHEAREES
Non-
Share Share Treasury controlling
capital premium shares Reserves Sub-totfl interests
Rx REE ERFRH il Nt FEHMES
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TiEn TiEn TER TER
(Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 17) (Note 18)
(17 (W&E17) (Wit17) (18
Balance at 1 April 2018 R018E4B 1A 28 1446 1453188 - 1,902,944 3357578 (16716) 3340862
Comprehensive income: 2EYA:
Profit for the year ERE - - - 861,780 861,780 8479 870259
Other comprehensive income: B 2ERA
Currency translation differences NEBEZE = - - (210999) (210999) (1739) 212734)
Total other comprehensive income, net of tax E2ERALE NkiE - - - (210,999) (210,999) (1,735) 212,734)
Total comprehensive income E 0N 1 - - - 650,781 650,781 6,744 657,525
Transactions with owners: HEAARS
Share-based compensation WRGBER M - - - 16% 16% - 169
Dividends RE - - - (730444) (730444) - (730444)
Total transactions with owners HEEARZAE - = - (728748) (728,749) - (728748)
Balance at 31 March 2019 R01953 8318 258 1446 1453188 = 1824977 329611 (9972 3,269,639
Balance at 1 April 2019 R201954R18 2 &6 1446 1,453,188 - 1,824,977 3,279,611 9972) 3,260,639
Comprehensive income: 2EYUA
Profitfor the year BRE - - - 743,489 743,489 24,440 767,929
Other comprehensive income: Afp2EUA
Currency translation differences NEREER - - - (158,981) (158,981) (3,336) (162,317)
Total other comprehensive income, netof tax ~— Et2EMALE -
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, MERE - - - s (s (336 (162317)
Total comprehensive income 2ERAEE - - - 584,508 584,508 21,104 605,612
Transactions with owners: REEARS:
Repurchase and cancellation of shares B RatsERh (1) (54,190) (88,037) - (142,238) - (142,238)
Share-based compensation IR BER ZHE - - - 1,174 1,174 - 1,174
Dividends &) - - - (737,131) (737,131) - (737,131)
Totaltansactionswithowners — REAARGEE o e @sesn)  sesn)  @mes) - (678,195)
Balance at 31 March 2020 R0205F3A318 268 1435 1,398,998 (88,037) 1,673,528 2,985,924 11,132 2,997,056
The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — B&Kf 2 MisE ot S 454 B RE Al sk 2
statements. R4 o

EXHBEREBRAF
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
MHER

CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS FERERER
For the year ended 31 March 2020 B ZE2020F3A31HIEFE
2020 2019
20205 201945
HK$’000 HK$'000
FERT FAT
Cash flow from operating activities KRETHAEEERE
Cash generated from operations BEEECHS 30(a) 948,683 1,221,163
Interest paid 2RHE (10,137) (8,010)
Hong Kong profits tax paid BEREEFEH (48,233) (45,149)
PRC and overseas tax paid BT RE EREINTIE (45,566) (85,100)
PRC tax refunded R ERIE 17,811 =
862,558 1,082,904
Cash flow from investing activities REFTEHFBHRERE
Purchases of property, plant and equipment BEVE BERXE (179,034) (210,346)
Increase in deposits for land use rights TR AR & 15 N (7,673) (9,278)
Proceeds from disposals of property, HEME  BERREZ 30(b)
plant and equipment Fr 1S 3 H 2,518 14,462
Dividends received from associates U B B = N\ 2 AR B 10(a) 26,217 21,683
Placement of short-term bank deposits TFARHRITER 16 (161,645) =
Release of short-term bank deposits iR bR R HASRIT 17 3K 16 - 43,875
Interest income received B F 2 WA 12,090 11,615
(307,527) (127,989)
Cash flow from financing activities METBHMBRENE
Repayment of bank borrowings BEERITEE (523,261) (513,264)
Repayment of loan to non-controlling interest  [A1FEER &I R EEE X (19,493) -
New bank borrowings IR ITEE 966,105 500,000
Payment of lease liabilities TNHEEEE (944) -
Dividends paid 2R AR S (737,131) (730,444)
Repurchase of shares 8 [ It (142,238) -
B e e e N e o (456962) (743,708)
Net increase in cash and cash equivalents RekBReEHEEBEREMBEE 98,069 211,207
Cash and cash equivalents at 1 April MAA1B RS RS EFEEEE 720,892 622,826
Currency translation differences GNEE B = B (51,818) (113,141)
Cash and cash equivalents at 31 March M3R3AZESRESEEER 16 767,143 720,892

The accompanying notes are an integral part of these consolidated financial — BEMI 2 MizE Yt 4R A B ISR T Al sk 2
statements. o o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

1

GENERAL INFORMATION

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited (the “Company”) and its subsidiaries (together,
the “Group”) are principally engaged in manufacturing and trading of textile
products. Its production bases are located in the People’s Republic of China (the
"PRC") and Vietnam.

The Company is a limited liability company incorporated in the Cayman Islands.
The address of its registered office is P.O. Box 309GT, Ugland House, South Church
Street, George Town, Grand Cayman, Cayman Islands.

The Company'’s shares are listed on the Main Board of The Stock Exchange of Hong
Kong Limited.

These consolidated financial statements are presented in Hong Kong Dollars
("HKS"), unless otherwise stated. These consolidated financial statements have
been approved for issue by the Board of Directors on 18 June 2020.

BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES

The basis of preparation and principal accounting policies applied in the
preparation of these consolidated financial statements are set out below. These
policies have been consistently applied for all of the years presented, unless
otherwise stated.

2.1 Basis of preparation
The consolidated financial statements of the Group have been prepared in
accordance with all applicable Hong Kong Financial Reporting Standards
("HKFRS") issued by the Hong Kong Institute of Certified Public Accountants
("HKICPA”"). The consolidated financial statements have been prepared under
the historical cost basis, except for financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income and derivative financial instruments which were
measured at fair value.
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BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d)
The preparation of financial statements in conformity with HKFRS requires

the use of certain critical accounting estimates. It also requires management

to exercise its judgement in the process of applying the Group's accounting

policies. The areas involving a higher degree of judgement or complexity, or

areas where assumptions and estimates are significant to the consolidated

financial statements are disclosed in Note 4.

(a) New standards, amendments to standards and interpretation to existing
standards adopted by the Group
The Group has applied the following standards and amendments for the

first time for their annual reporting period commencing 1 April 2019:

Amendments to Annual
Improvements Project

Amendments to HKFRS 9

Amendments to HKAS 19

Amendments to HKAS 28

HKFRS 16

HK(IFRIC)-Int 23

Annual improvements 2015-2017 cycle

Prepayment features with negative
compensation

Plan amendment, curtailment or
settlement

Long-term interests in associates and
joint ventures

Leases

Uncertainty over income tax
treatments

The Group changed its accounting policies for leases with effect from
1 April 2019 following the adoption of HKFRS 16 “Leases” (“HKFRS 16")
as disclosed in Note 2.2 below. All other amendments to standards and

interpretation listed above do not have significant effect on the Group's

accounting policies.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEmBRRNE(8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 HFHREEHEITEHHEHME(F)
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.1 Basis of preparation (Cont’d) 2.1 REEE (F)
(b) New standards and amendments to standards that have been issued but are (b) BEAEMEKEIZ FETER R E
not effective AIEET
The following new and amended standards and interpretations have been TH BB Z#HE] R&IET£E
issued but are not effective for the financial year beginning on 1 April BILA KR Z2HE - (B AR F2019F4 8
2019 and have not been early adopted by the Group: 1Rz R EEEREAEE
W AR R -
Effective for RATRH
annual periods A 3L
beginning on ZEE
or after HEEN
Amendments to HKFRS 3 Definition of a business 1 April 2020 BAMBHEEN FHzEE  200F4H18
£33 (BFTA)
Conceptual Framework for Revised conceptual framework for 1 April 2020 WISFHERER EEIHE 20054818
Financial Reporting 2018 financial reporting SER FEHS
EE
Amendments to HKAS 1 Definition of Material 1 April 2020 BRGENEY BAZEE 00E4A1H
and HKAS 8 REEgER
ik (BFA)
Amendments to HKAS 39, Hedge accounting 1 April 2020 BEGERE  HbEeH  00F4A18
HKFRS 7 and HKFRS 9 % EEUBR
ERAETRRE
R RS
£95% (BEFTA)
HKFRS 17 Insurance contracts 1 April 2021 ERBERLEE RRAX 20214818
F17%
Amendments to HKFRS 10 Sale or contribution of assets between Note EERERLEE  REEEH iz
and HKAS 28 an investor and its associate or joint BE0EREE  BEDA
venture SiERENY,  %AED
(B317) EvA i
BEME
Note:  To be announced by HKICPA Wi : BRBEBGTMASRM
None of the above new standards and amendments to standards a2 R S X Al 2 (8 5] T8 BA
is expected to have a material impact on the consolidated financial BT ANEBRE AT AR RE
statements of the Group in the current or future reporting periods and on HEAE NG BRRIARATR
foreseeable future transactions. BHRZGERERNTE -
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BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

The following explains the impact of the adoption of HKFRS 16 on the Group's
consolidated financial statements. As indicated in Note 2.1 above, the Group
has adopted HKFRS 16 from 1 April 2019, but has not restated comparatives
as permitted under the specific transition provisions in the standard. The
reclassifications and the adjustments arising from the new leasing rules are
therefore recognised in the opening balance sheet on 1 April 2019. The new
accounting policies are disclosed in Note 2.24.

On adoption of HKFRS 16, the Group recognised lease liabilities in relation
to leases which had previously been classified as ‘operating leases’ under
the principles of HKAS 17 “Leases”. These liabilities were measured at the
present value of the remaining lease payments, discounted using the lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate as of 1 April 2019. The weighted average lessee’s
incremental borrowing rate applied to the lease liabilities on 1 April 2019 was
3.92%.

(i) Practical expedients applied
In applying HKFRS 16 for the first time, the Group has used the following
recognition exemptions and practical expedients permitted by the
standard:

- applying a single discount rate to a portfolio of leases with reasonably
similar characteristics
- relying on previous assessments on whether leases are onerous

- accounting for operating leases with a remaining lease term of less
than 12 months as at 1 April 2019 as short-term leases

- exempting operating leases for which the underlying assets are of low
value

- excluding initial direct costs for the measurement of the right-of-use
asset at the date of initial application, and

- using hindsight in determining the lease term where the contract
contains options to extend or terminate the lease.

The Group has also elected not to reassess whether a contract is, or
contains a lease at the date of initial application. Instead, for contracts
entered into before the transition date the Group relied on its assessment
made applying HKAS 17 and HK(IFRIC) -4 “Determining whether an
Arrangement contains a Lease”.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HaRBRENEE (8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 GRABEERFITESTHBEBE (F)

POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(i) Measurement of lease liabilities

22 B BEEDH (M)
(i) FTEHERE

Operating lease commitments disclosed as at 31 March 2019

R2019F3A31BHEZ
RS TH B R IE 1,442

Discounted using the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate at

RAABARNKAERBRZ

the date of initial application I 18 ORI 2 BE IR 1,292
Lease liability recognized as at 1 April 2019 MR2019F481BERRZ
HEAE 1,292
Of which are: Hr o
— Current lease liabilities - nBHEEAR 662
- Non-current lease liabilities —JERBHERRE 630
1,292
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)

(iii)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Measurement of right-of-use assets

The associated right-of-use assets for property leases were measured at
the amount equal to the lease liabilities, adjusted by the amount of any
prepaid or accrued lease payments relating to that lease recognised in the
balance sheet as at 31 March 2019. There were no onerous lease contracts
that would have required an adjustment to the right-of-use assets at the
date of initial application. Right-of-use assets recognised upon the date
of initial application were measured at the amount equal to the lease
liabilities.

Land use rights, previously presented as a separate item on the
consolidated balance sheet, and leasehold land, previously included in
property, plant and equipment, are grouped as part of right-of-use assets
with effect from 1 April 2019.

The recognised right-of-use assets relate to the following types of assets:

HaRBRENEE ()

2

RAEEETEEHBERE (H)

22 B BEEDH (M)
(iii) ;T EEHEEE

MEREZBAFERAEEETIIR
HERHEAGBZEBETE I
FMER2019F3A3BREERARE
KERZMER M2 EMER K
BAHENRSBELAE - R
VIXERBE BMEZEEHES
HMBELFEREEEEDAE -
RYLRFER B R 2 FREE
ENERAENEEaBZ &8

=
B @

BARGEEEARBRRESAE
SNIEHB 2z T fE AR RBE R A
M BERREZHE LA
2019F4A 1 BEEGRAFERESR
EZ—&%5 o

ERRZEREEELEIATER
BEAH:

As at As at

31 March 1 April

2020 2019

7420205 20195

3A31H 4H1H

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

Office premises MANEYE 1,129 1,292
Leasehold land HE i 2,632 2,728
Land use rights + Hh {5 P A 107,054 115,321
110,815 119,341
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.2 Changes in accounting policies (Cont’d)
(iv) Adjustments recognised on the adoption of HKFRS 16

Changes in accounting policies affected the following items in the
consolidated balance sheet on 1 April 2019:

Consolidated balance sheet (extract)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HaRBRENEE (8)

2 FREEETZEFRERE (H)

22 Bt HREE (&)
(iv) BLERA & BB 7R & 2E R 1655
iR &
T TR # ) ¥ 20194818
ZEREEEABRPUATIEES
P82

SAEERER(BR)

As at
31 March
2019

As at

Effects of 1 April

as originally

presented
20195
3A31H
BREZ5I

the adoption
of HKFRS 16

RRES
Bt 7 R o5 22 Bl
BT E

2019
Restated
R2019%
4A1H
RE5

Non-current assets IRBEE
Land use rights T A
Property, plant and equipment ERE L
Right-of-use assets ERESE
Current liabilities REAE

Lease liabilities HEAE
Non-current liabilities ¥RBER
Lease liabilities HEAE

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TAT

HK$'000
TAT

115,321 (115,321) =
1,520,210 (2,728) 1,517,482
= 119,341 119,341

= 662 662

= 630 630

EAHBERERLT | 2019/ 2020 £
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BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3 Subsidiaries

2.3.1

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Consolidation

Subsidiaries are entities (including a structured entity) over which the
Group has control. The Group controls an entity when the Group is
exposed to, or has rights to, variable returns from its involvement with
the entity and has the ability to affect those returns through its power
over the entity. Subsidiaries are consolidated from the date on which
control is transferred to the Group. They are deconsolidated from the
date that control ceases.

(a) Business combinations

The Group applies the acquisition method to account for business
combinations. The consideration transferred for the acquisition of
a subsidiary is the aggregate fair values of the assets transferred,
the liabilities incurred to the former owners of the acquiree and the
equity interests issued by the Group. The consideration transferred
includes the fair value of any asset or liability resulting from a
contingent consideration arrangement. Acquisition related costs
are expensed as incurred. Identifiable assets acquired and liabilities
and contingent liabilities assumed in a business combination are
measured initially at their fair values at the acquisition date. The
Group recognises any non-controlling interest in the acquiree on
an acquisition-by-acquisition basis, either at fair value or at the
non-controlling interest's proportionate share of the recognised
amounts of acquiree’s identifiable net assets. All other components
of non-controlling interests are measured at their acquisition date
fair value, unless another measurement basis is required by HKFRS.

The excess of the consideration transferred, the amount of any
non-controlling interest in the acquiree and the acquisition-date fair
value of any previous equity interest in the acquiree over the fair
value of the identifiable net assets acquired is recorded as goodwiill.
If the total of consideration transferred, non-controlling interest
recognised and previously held interest measured is less than the
fair value of the net assets of the subsidiary acquired in the case
of a bargain purchase, the difference is recognised directly in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

231
(a)

(b)

(©)

Consolidation (Cont'd)

Business combinations (Cont'd)
Intra-Group transactions, balances and unrealised gains on
transactions between Group companies are eliminated. Unrealised
losses are also eliminated. When necessary, amounts reported
by subsidiaries have been adjusted to conform with the Group's

accounting policies.

Changes in ownership interests in subsidiaries without change in
control

Transactions with non-controlling interests that do not result in
loss of control are accounted for as equity transactions - that is,
as transactions with the owners in their capacity as owners. The
difference between the fair value of any consideration paid and
the relevant share acquired of the carrying value of net assets of
the subsidiary is recorded in equity. Gains or losses on disposals to
non-controlling interests are also recorded in equity.

Disposal of subsidiaries

When the Group ceases to have control, any retained interest in
the entity is re-measured to its fair value at the date when control
is lost, with the change in carrying amount recognised in profit or
loss. The fair value is the initial carrying amount for the purposes of
subsequently accounting for the retained interest as an associate,
joint venture or financial asset. In addition, any amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income in respect of that entity
are accounted for as if the Group had directly disposed of the
related assets or liabilities. This may mean that amounts previously
recognised in other comprehensive income are reclassified to profit
or loss.
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BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING

POLICIES (Cont'd)
2.3 Subsidiaries (Cont’d)

2.3.2 Separate financial statements
Interests in subsidiaries are accounted for at cost less impairment. Cost
also includes direct attributable costs of investment. The results of
subsidiaries are accounted for by the company on the basis of dividends
received and receivable.

Impairment testing of the interests in subsidiaries is required upon
receiving dividends from these investments if the dividend exceeds
the total comprehensive income of the subsidiary in the period the
dividend is declared or if the carrying amount of the investment in
the separate financial statements exceeds the carrying amount in the
financial statements of the investee’s net assets including goodwill.

2.4 Associates

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Associates are all entities over which the Group has significant influence but
not control, generally accompanying a shareholding of between 20% and 50%
of the voting rights. Interests in associates are accounted for using the equity
method of accounting. Under the equity method, the investment is initially
recognised at cost, and the carrying amount is increased or decreased to
recognise the investor’s share of the profit or loss of the investee after the date
of acquisition and the investor's share of movements in other comprehensive
income of the investee in other comprehensive income. The Group's interests
in associates include goodwill identified on acquisition. Upon the acquisition
of the ownership interest in an associate, any difference between the cost
of the associate and the Group's share of the aggregate fair value of the
associate’s identifiable assets and liabilities is accounted for as goodwill.

If the ownership interest in an associate is reduced but significant influence is
retained, only a proportionate share of the amounts previously recognised in
other comprehensive income is reclassified to profit or loss where appropriate.

The Group's share of post-acquisition profit or loss is recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss, and its share of post-acquisition
movements in other comprehensive income is recognised in other
comprehensive income with a corresponding adjustment to the carrying
amount of the investment. When the Group’s share of losses in an associate
equals or exceeds its investments in the associate, including any other
unsecured receivables, the Group does not recognise further losses, unless it
has incurred legal or constructive obligations or made payments on behalf of
the associate.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEmBRRNE(8)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.4 Associates (Cont’d)

RAEEHETEEHARERE (H)

2.4 BE QT (&)

The Group determines at each reporting date whether there is any objective
evidence that the investments in associates are impaired. If this is the case,
the Group calculates the amount of impairment as the difference between
the recoverable amount of the associate and its carrying value and recognises
the amount adjacent to “share of profit of an associate” in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Profits and losses resulting from upstream and downstream transactions
between the Group and its associate are recognised in the Group's financial
statements only to the extent of unrelated investor's interests in the
associates. Unrealised losses are eliminated unless the transaction provides
evidence of an impairment of the asset transferred. The financial information
of associates has been changed where necessary to ensure consistency with
the accounting policies adopted by the Group.

Gain or losses on dilution of equity interest in associates are recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

2.5 Segment reporting

Operating segments are reported in a manner consistent with the internal
reporting provided to the chief operating decision-maker. The chief operating
decision-maker, who is responsible for allocating resources and assessing
performance of the operating segments, has been identified as the executive
directors collectively, who make strategic decisions.

2.6 Foreign currency translation

(a) Functional and presentation currency
Items included in the financial statements of each of the Group's entities
are measured using the currency of the primary economic environment
in which the group entity operates (the “functional currency”). The
consolidated financial statements are presented in HKS$, which is the
Company’s functional and the Group’s presentation currency.

2.5

2.6
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BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)

(b)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Transactions and balances

Foreign currency transactions are translated into the functional currency
using the exchange rates prevailing at the dates of the transactions or
valuations where items are re-measured. Foreign exchange gains and
losses resulting from the settlement of such transactions and from the
translation at year-end exchange rates of monetary assets and liabilities
denominated in foreign currencies are recognised in the consolidated
statement of profit or loss.

Foreign exchange gains and losses that relate to borrowings and cash and
cash equivalents are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “finance income” or “finance costs”. All other foreign exchange
gains and losses are presented in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss within “other income and other gains/(losses) — net”.

Changes in the fair value of monetary securities denominated in
foreign currency classified as financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are analysed between translation differences
resulting from changes in the amortised cost of the securities and other
changes in the carrying amount of the securities. Translation differences
related to changes in amortised cost are recognised in profit or loss, and
other changes in carrying amount are recognised in other comprehensive
income.

Translation differences on non-monetary financial assets and liabilities
such as equities held at fair value through profit or loss are recognised in
profit or loss as part of the fair value gain or loss. Translation differences on
non-monetary financial assets, such as equities classified as financial assets
at fair value through other comprehensive income, are included in other
comprehensive income.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.6 Foreign currency translation (Cont’d)
(c) Group companies

The results and financial position of all the group entities (none of which
has the currency of a hyperinflationary economy) that have a functional
currency different from the presentation currency are translated into the
presentation currency as follows:

(i) assets and liabilities for each balance sheet presented are translated at
the closing rate at the date of that balance sheet;

(i) income and expenses for each statement of profit or loss are
translated at average exchange rates (unless this average is not
a reasonable approximation of the cumulative effect of the rates
prevailing on the transaction dates, in which case income and
expenses are translated at the rate on the dates of the transactions);
and

(iii) all resulting exchange differences are recognised in other
comprehensive income.

Goodwill and fair value adjustments arising on the acquisition of a
foreign entity are treated as assets and liabilities of the foreign entity and
translated at the closing rate. Exchange differences arising are recognised
in other comprehensive income.

2.7 Property, plant and equipment
Buildings comprise mainly factories and offices. All other property, plant
and equipment other than construction in progress are stated at historical
cost less depreciation and impairment losses, if any. Historical cost includes
expenditure that is directly attributable to the acquisition of the items. Cost
may also include transfers from equity of any gains/losses on qualifying cash
flow hedges of foreign currency purchases of property, plant and equipment.

Subsequent costs are included in the asset’s carrying amount or recognised as
a separate asset, as appropriate, only when it is probable that future economic
benefits associated with the item will flow to the Group and the cost of
the item can be measured reliably. The carrying amount of the replaced
part is derecognised. All other repairs and maintenance are charged to the
consolidated statement of profit or loss during the period in which they are
incurred.
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Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

BBER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.7 Property, plant and equipment (Cont’d)

Depreciation on other assets other than construction in progress are
calculated using the straight-line method to allocate their costs (less
estimated residual values, if any) over their estimated useful lives at the annual
rates, as follows:

4% - 5%
10% — 20%
20% — 33% or shorter of the lease terms

Buildings
Plant and machinery
Leasehold improvements

20% - 33%
20% - 25%
Computer software 10%

Furniture and equipment
Motor vehicles

The assets' useful lives are reviewed, and adjusted if appropriate, at each
balance sheet date.

An asset's carrying amount is written down immediately to its recoverable
amount if the asset's carrying amount is greater than its estimated recoverable
amount.

Construction in progress represents buildings, plant and machinery and
leasehold improvements, furniture and equipment on which construction
work has not been completed. It is carried at cost which includes
construction expenditures and other direct costs less any impairment losses.
On completion, construction in progress is transferred to the appropriate
categories of property, plant and equipment at cost less accumulated
impairment losses if any. No depreciation is provided for construction in
progress until the asset is completed and available for use.

Gains and losses on disposals are determined by comparing proceeds with the
carrying amount and are recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss.

2.8 Impairment of non-financial assets

Assets that are subject to amortisation are reviewed for impairment whenever
events or changes in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may
not be recoverable. An impairment loss is recognised for the amount by which
the asset’s carrying amount exceeds its recoverable amount. The recoverable
amount is the higher of an asset’s fair value less costs to sell and value in use.
For the purposes of assessing impairment, assets are grouped at the lowest
levels for which there are separately identifiable cash flows (cash-generating
units). Non-financial assets other than goodwill that suffered an impairment
are reviewed for possible reversal of the impairment at each reporting date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets

0]

(ii)

Classification
The Group classifies its financial assets in the following measurement
categories:

those to be measured subsequently at fair value (either through other
comprehensive income, or through profit or loss), and

those to be measured at amortised cost.

The classification depends on the entity’s business model for managing
the financial assets and the contractual terms of the cash flows.

For assets measured at fair value, gains and losses will either be recorded
in profit or loss or other comprehensive income. For investments in
debt instruments, this will depend on the business model in which the
investment is held. For investments in equity instruments, this will depend
on whether the Group has made an irrevocable election at the time
of initial recognition to account for the equity investment at fair value
through other comprehensive income.

The Group reclassifies debt investments when and only when its business
model for managing those assets changes.

Recognition and derecognition

Regular way purchases and sales of financial assets are recognised on
trade-date, the date on which the group commits to purchase or sell the
asset. Financial assets are derecognised when the rights to receive cash
flows from the financial assets have expired or have been transferred
and the group has transferred substantially all the risks and rewards of
ownership.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d)

(iii)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Measurement

At initial recognition, the Group measures a financial asset at its fair value
plus, in the case of a financial asset not at fair value through profit or loss,
transaction costs that are directly attributable to the acquisition of the
financial asset. Transaction costs of financial assets carried at fair value
through profit or loss are expensed in the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income.

Debt instruments

Subsequent measurement of debt instruments depends on the Group's
business model for managing the asset and the cash flow characteristics of
the asset. There are three measurement categories into which the Group
classifies its debt instruments:

Amortised cost: Assets that are held for collection of contractual cash
flows where those cash flows represent solely payments of principal
and interest are measured at amortised cost. A gain or loss on a debt
investment that is subsequently measured at amortised cost and is
not part of a hedging relationship is recognised in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income when the asset is derecognised
or impaired. Interest income from these financial assets is included in
finance income using the effective interest rate method.

Fair value through other comprehensive income: Assets that are held
for collection of contractual cash flows and for selling the financial
assets, where the assets’ cash flows represent solely payments of
principal and interest, are measured at fair value through other
comprehensive income (OCl). Movements in the carrying amount are
taken through OCI, except for the recognition of impairment gains
or losses, interest revenue and foreign exchange gains and losses
which are recognised in profit and loss. When the financial asset is
derecognised, the cumulative gain or loss previously recognised
in OCl is reclassified from equity to the consolidated statement of
comprehensive income and recognised in ‘other income and gains —
net'. Interest income from these financial assets is included in finance
income using the effective interest rate method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUMBHRRMTE (E)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING 2 GFHEEESAIFTSHBEHME ()
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.9 Financial assets (Cont’d) 29 EREE (#)
(iii) Measurement (Cont'd) (iii) &= (%)
Debt instruments (Cont'd) EFETAE)

Fair value through profit or loss: Assets that do not meet the criteria
for amortised cost or financial assets at fair value through other
comprehensive income are measured at fair value through profit
or loss. A gain or loss on a debt investment that is subsequently
measured at fair value through profit or loss and is not part of a
hedging relationship is recognised in profit or loss and presented
net in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income within
“other income and gains — net” in the period in which it arises. Interest
income from these financial assets is included in the “finance income”.

Equity instruments

The Group subsequently measures all equity investments at fair value.
Where the Group’s management has elected to present fair value
gains and losses on equity investments in OCI, there is no subsequent
reclassification of fair value gains and losses to the consolidated statement
of comprehensive income. Dividends from such investments continue to
be recognised in the consolidated statement of comprehensive income as
other income when the Group's right to receive payments is established.

Changes in the fair value of financial assets at fair value through profit
or loss are recognised in “other gains/(losses), net” in the consolidated
statement of comprehensive income as applicable.

(iv) Impairment

The Group assesses on a forward looking basis the expected credit losses
associated with its financial assets carried at amortised cost and financial
assets at fair value through other comprehensive income. The impairment
methodology applied depends on whether there has been a significant
increase in credit risk.

For trade and bills receivables and amounts due from associates, the
Group applies the simplified approach permitted by HKFRS 9, which
requires expected lifetime losses to be recognised from initial recognition
of the receivables.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.10 Offsetting financial instruments

2.12

22118

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Financial assets and liabilities are offset and the net amount reported in
the balance sheet when there is a legally enforceable right to offset the
recognised amounts and there is an intention to settle on a net basis
or realise the asset and settle the liability simultaneously. The legally
enforceable right must not be contingent on future events and must be
enforceable in the normal course of business and in the event of default,
insolvency or bankruptcy of the Group or the counterparty.

Derivative financial instruments

Derivatives are initially recognised at fair value on the date a derivative
contract is entered into and are subsequently re-measured at their fair
value. The method of recognising the resulting gain or loss depends on
whether the derivative is designated as a hedging instrument, and if so, the
nature of the item being hedged.

Derivative instruments which do not qualify for hedge accounting are
accounted for at fair value through profit or loss. Changes in the fair
value of these derivative instruments are recognised immediately in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss.

Inventories

Inventories are stated at the lower of cost and net realisable value. Cost
is determined using the weighted average method. The cost of finished
goods and work-in-progress comprises raw materials, direct labour, other
direct costs and related production overheads (based on normal operating
capacity). It excludes borrowing costs. Net realisable value is the estimated
selling price in the ordinary course of business, less applicable variable
selling expenses.

Trade, bills and other receivables

Trade receivables are amounts due from customers for goods sold or
services performed in the ordinary course of business. If collection of trade
and other receivables is expected in one year or less (or in the normal
operating cycle of the business if longer), they are classified as current
assets. If not, they are presented as non-current assets.

Trade, bills and other receivables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method, less provision for impairment.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.14

Cash and cash equivalents
In the consolidated statement of cash flows, cash and cash equivalents
include cash in hand and deposits held at call with banks.

Share capital

Shares are classified as equity. Incremental costs directly attributable to the
issue of new shares or options are shown in equity as a deduction, net of
tax, from the proceeds.

When any Group company purchases the Company’s equity share capital
(treasury shares), the consideration paid, including any directly attributable
incremental costs (net of income taxes) is deducted from equity attributable
to owners of the company until the shares are cancelled or reissued.

Trade, bills and other payables

Trade, bills and other payables are obligations to pay for goods or services
that have been acquired in the ordinary course of business from suppliers.
Trade, bills and other payables are classified as current liabilities if payment
is due within one year or less (or in the normal operating cycle of the
business if longer). If not, they are presented as non-current liabilities.

Trade, bills and other payables are recognised initially at fair value and
subsequently measured at amortised cost using the effective interest
method.

Borrowings

Borrowings are recognised initially at fair value, net of transaction costs
incurred. Borrowings are subsequently carried at amortised cost; any
difference between the proceeds (net of transaction costs) and the
redemption value is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or
loss over the period of the borrowings using the effective interest method.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.17

2.18

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Borrowings (Cont’d)

Fees paid on the establishment of loan facilities are recognised as
transaction costs of the loan to the extent that it is probable that some or
all of the facility will be drawn down. In this case, the fee is deferred until
the draw-down occurs. To the extent there is no evidence that it is probable
that some or all of the facility will be drawn down, the fee is capitalised as
a pre-payment for liquidity services and amortised over the period of the
facility to which it relates.

Borrowings are classified as current liabilities unless the Group has an
unconditional right to defer settlement of the liability for at least 12 months
after the balance sheet date.

Current and deferred income tax

The tax expense for the period comprises current and deferred tax. Tax
is recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss, except to
the extent that it relates to items recognised in other comprehensive
income or directly in equity. In this case the tax is also recognised in other
comprehensive income or directly in equity, respectively.

The current income tax charge is calculated on the basis of the tax laws
enacted or substantively enacted at the balance sheet date in the countries
where the Company’s subsidiaries and associates and joint ventures
operate and generate taxable income. Management periodically evaluates
positions taken in tax returns with respect to situations in which applicable
tax regulation is subject to interpretation. It establishes provisions where
appropriate on the basis of amounts expected to be paid to the tax
authorities.

Deferred income tax is recognised, using the liability method, on temporary
differences arising between the tax bases of assets and liabilities and their
carrying amounts in the financial statements. However, the deferred income
tax is not accounted for if it arises from initial recognition of an asset or
liability in a transaction other than a business combination that at the time
of the transaction affects neither accounting nor taxable profit or loss.
Deferred income tax is determined using tax rates (and laws) that have
been enacted or substantively enacted by the balance sheet date and are
expected to apply when the related deferred income tax asset is realised or
the deferred income tax liability is settled.

Deferred income tax assets are recognised only to the extent that it is
probable that future taxable profit will be available against which the
temporary differences can be utilised.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.18

Current and deferred income tax (Cont’d)

Deferred income tax is provided on taxable temporary differences arising
on investments in subsidiaries and associates, except for deferred income
tax liability where the timing of the reversal of the temporary difference is
controlled by the Group and it is probable that the temporary difference
will not reverse in the foreseeable future. Generally the Group is unable to
control the reversal of the temporary difference for associates. Only when
there is an agreement in place that gives the Group the ability to control
the reversal of the temporary difference in the foreseeable future, deferred
tax liability in relation to taxable temporary differences arising from the
associate’s undistributed profits is not recognised.

Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally
enforceable right to offset current tax assets against current tax liabilities
and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or
different taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances
on a net basis.

Employee benefits

(a) Employee leave entitlements
Employee entitlements to annual leave are recognised when they
accrue to employees. A provision is made for the estimated liability for
annual leave as a result of services rendered by employees up to the
balance sheet date. Employee entitlements to sick leave and maternity
leave are not recognised until the time of leave.

(b) Retirement benefits

The Group participates in various defined contribution retirement
benefit schemes. A defined contribution plan is a retirement benefit
scheme under which the Group pays fixed contributions into a separate
entity. The Group has no legal or constructive obligations to pay further
contributions if the fund does not hold sufficient assets to pay all
employees the benefits relating to employee service in the current and
prior periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.19 Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(b) Retirement benefits (Cont’d)

(©)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

The schemes are generally funded through payments to state/
trustee-administered funds. The Group pays contributions to publicly
or privately administered funds on a mandatory, contractual or
voluntary basis. The Group has no further payment obligations once
the contributions have been paid. The contributions are recognised as
employee benefit expense when they are due. Prepaid contributions are
recognised as an asset to the extent that a cash refund or a reduction in
the future payments is available.

Share-based compensation
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions

The Group operates an equity-settled, share-based compensation
plan, under which the entity receives services from employees as
consideration for equity instruments (options) of the Group. The fair
value of the employee services received in exchange for the grant of the
options is recognised as an expense. The total amount to be expensed
is determined by reference to the fair value of the options granted:

including any market performance conditions (for example, an
entity's share price);

excluding the impact of any service and non-market performance
vesting conditions (for example, profitability, sales growth targets
and remaining an employee of the entity over a specified time
period); and

including the impact of any non-vesting conditions (for example,
the requirement for employees to save).

Non-market vesting conditions are included in assumptions about
the number of options that are expected to vest. The total expense is
recognised over the vesting period, which is the period over which all
of the specified vesting conditions are to be satisfied. At each balance
sheet date, the entity revises its estimates of the number of options that
are expected to vest based on the non-marketing vesting conditions. It
recognises the impact of the revision to original estimates, if any, in the
statement of profit or losss, with a corresponding adjustment to equity.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.19

2.20

Employee benefits (Cont’d)
(c) Share-based compensation (Cont'd)
Equity-settled share-based payment transactions (Cont'd)

When the options are exercised, the Company issues new shares. The
proceeds received net of any directly attributable transaction costs are
credited to share capital (nominal value) and share premium.

Share-based payment transactions among group entities

The grant by the Company of options over its equity instruments to
the employees of subsidiary undertakings in the Group is treated as
a capital contribution to the subsidiary. The fair value of employee
services received, measured by reference to the grant date fair value,
is recognised over the vesting period as an increase to investment in
subsidiary undertakings, with a corresponding credit to equity in the
parent equity accounts.

(d) Bonus plan
The expected cost of bonus payments is recognised as a liability when
the Group has a present legal or constructive obligation as a result
of services rendered by employees and a reliable estimate of the
obligation can be made.

Provisions

Provisions are recognised when the Group has a present legal or
constructive obligation as a result of past events; it is probable that an
outflow of resources will be required to settle the obligation; and the
amount has been reliably estimated. Provisions are not recognised for future
operating losses.

Where there are a number of similar obligations, the likelihood that an
outflow will be required in settlement is determined by considering
the class of obligations as a whole. A provision is recognised even if the
likelihood of an outflow with respect to any one item included in the same
class of obligations may be small.

Provisions are measured at the present value of the expenditures expected
to be required to settle the obligation using a pre-tax rate that reflects
current market assessments of the time value of money and the risks
specific to the obligation. The increase in the provision due to passage of
time is recognised as interest expense.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.21 Revenue and income recognition

(a)

(b)

(©)

(d)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Sales of goods

The Group is principally engaged in the manufacturing and trading of
textile products. Revenue are recognised when control of the product
to has transferred, being when the products are delivered to the
customers, the customer has accepted the products and there is no
unfulfilled obligation that could affect the customers’ acceptance of
the products. Delivery occurs when the products have been shipped to
the specified location and the risk of obsolescence and loss have been
transferred to the customers.

Revenue from sales of goods is recognised based on the price specified
for each order, net of customer claims. Accumulated experience is used
to estimate and provide for the claims and revenue is only recognised
to the extent that it is highly probable that a significant reversal will
not occur. Provision for customer claims (included in accruals and other
payables) is recognised for expected claims payable to customers in
relation to sales made until the end of the reporting period.

A receivable is recognised when the goods are delivered as this is the
point in time that the consideration is unconditional because only the
passage of time is required before the payment is due.

A contract liability is recognised when a customer pays consideration
before the Group recognises the related revenue. The Group recognised
its down payments from customers under other payables and accruals
in the consolidated balance sheet.

Sub-contracting income
The Group provides ad-hoc sub-contracting service to customers.
Sub-contracting income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Handling income
The Group provides handling service for purchases of raw materials on
behalf. Handling income is recognised when the services are rendered.

Rental income
Rental income under operating leases is recognised on a straight-line
basis over the lease periods.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)

2.22

2.23

2.24

Interest income

Interest income on financial assets at amortised cost calculated using
effective interest method is recognised in consolidated statement of profit
or loss. Interest income is presented as finance income where it is earned
from financial assets that are held for cash management purposes. Interest
income is calculated by applying the effective interest rate to the gross
carrying amount of a financial asset.

Dividend income
Dividend income is recognised when the right to receive payment is
established.

Leases

As explained in Note 2.2 above, the Group has changed its accounting
policy for leases where the Group is the lessee. The new policy is described
below and the impact of the change is disclosed in Note 2.2.

Until 31 March 2019, leases in which a significant portion of the risks and
rewards of ownership were not transferred to the Group as lessee were
classified as operating leases. Payments made under operating leases (net of
any incentives received from the lessor) were charged to profit or loss on a
straight-line basis over the period of the lease.

From 1 April 2019, leases are recognized as a right-of-use asset and a
corresponding liability at the date at which the leased asset is available for
use by the Group.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.24 Leases (Cont'd)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Assets and liabilities arising from a lease are initially measured on a present
value basis. Lease liabilities include the net present value of the following
lease payments:

fixed payments (including in-substance fixed payments), less any lease
incentives receivable (if any);

variable lease payment that are based on an index or a rate, initially
measured using the index or rate as at the commencement date;

amounts expected to be payable by the Group under residual value
guarantees;

the exercise price of a purchase option if the Group is reasonably certain
to exercise that option; and

payments of penalties for terminating the lease, if the lease term reflects
the Group exercising that option.

Lease payments to be made under reasonably certain extension options are
also included in the measurement of the liability.

The lease payments are discounted using the interest rate implicit in the
lease. If that rate cannot be readily determined, which is generally the case
for leases in the Group, the lessee’s incremental borrowing rate is used,
being the rate that the individual lessee would have to pay to borrow
the funds necessary to obtain an asset of similar value to the right-of-use
asset in a similar economic environment with similar terms, security and
conditions.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.24 Leases (Cont'd)
To determine the incremental borrowing rate, the Group:

where possible, uses recent third-party financing received by the
individual lessee as a starting point, adjusted to reflect changes in
financing conditions since third party financing was received;

uses a build-up approach that starts with a risk-free interest rate
adjusted for credit risk for leases held by the Group, which does not
have recent third party financing; and

makes adjustments specific to the lease, such as term, country, currency
and security.

The Group is exposed to potential future increases in variable lease
payments based on an index or rate, which are not included in the lease
liability until they take effect. When adjustments to lease payments based
on an index or rate take effect, the lease liability is reassessed and adjusted
against the right-of-use asset.

Lease payments are allocated between principal and finance cost. The
finance cost is charged to profit or loss over the lease period so as to
produce a constant periodic rate of interest on the remaining balance of the
liability for each period.

Right-of-use assets are measured at cost comprising the following:

the amount of the initial measurement of lease liability;
any lease payments made at or before the commencement date less
any lease incentives received (if any);
any initial direct costs; and
restoration costs.
Right-of-use assets are generally depreciated over the shorter of the
asset’s useful life and the lease term on a straight-line basis. If the Group is

reasonably certain to exercise a purchase option, the right-of-use asset is
depreciated over the underlying asset’s useful life.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont'd)

2.24

2.25

2.26

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Leases (Cont'd)

Payments associated with short-term leases and leases of low-value
assets are recognized on a straight-line basis as an expense in profit or
loss. Short-term leases are leases with a lease term of 12 months or less.
Low-value assets comprise small items of office equipment.

Lease income from operating leases where the group is a lessor is
recognized in income on a straight-line basis over the lease term (Note
32(b)). Initial direct costs incurred in obtaining an operating lease are added
to the carrying amount of the underlying asset and recognized as expenses
over the lease term on the same basis as lease income. The respective
leased assets are included in the consolidated balance sheet based on their
nature. The Group did not need to make any adjustments to the accounting
for assets held as lessor as a result of adopting the new leasing standard.

Government grants

Grants from the government are recognised at their fair value where there
is a reasonable assurance that the grant will be received and the Group has
complied with all attached conditions.

Government grants relating to costs are deferred and recognised in the
consolidated statement of profit or loss over the period necessary to match
them with the costs that they are intended to compensate.

Government grants relating to property, plant and equipment are included
in non-current liabilities as deferred government grants and are credited to
the consolidated statement of profit or loss on a straight-line basis over the
expected lives of the related assets.

Contingent liabilities

A contingent liability is a possible obligation that arises from past events
and whose existence will only be confirmed by the occurrence or
non-occurrence of one or more uncertain future events not wholly within
the control of the Group. It can also be a present obligation arising from
past events that is not recognised because it is not probable that outflow of
economic resources will be required or the amount of obligation cannot be
measured reliably.

A contingent liability is not recognised but is disclosed in the consolidated
financial statements. When a change in the probability of an outflow occurs
so that outflow is probable, it will then be recognised as a provision.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

2 BASIS OF PREPARATION AND SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING
POLICIES (Cont’d)
2.27 Dividend distribution
Dividend distribution to the Company’s shareholders is recognised as a
liability in the Group's consolidated financial statements in the period
in which the dividends are approved by the Company’s shareholders or
directors, where appropriate.

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT
3.1 Financial risk factors
The Group’s activities expose it to a variety of financial risks: market risk
(including foreign exchange risk, and cash flow and fair value interest rate
risk), credit risk and liquidity risk. The Group's overall risk management focuses
on the unpredictability of financial markets and seeks to minimise potential
adverse effects on the Group's financial performance.

(a) Market risk
(i) Foreign exchange risk
The Group is exposed to foreign exchange risk arising from various
currency exposures, primarily with respect to US Dollars (“US$”),
Renminbi (“RMB”) and Vietnamese Dongs (“VYND"). The Group
manages its foreign exchange risks by performing regular review and
monitoring its foreign exchange exposure. The Group hedges certain
of its exposure to reduce the risk involved as appropriate.

As HKS is pegged to USS$, management believes that the exchange
rate risk for translations between HKS and USS$ do not have material
impact to the Group.

The Group mainly operates in Hong Kong, the PRC, Macau and
Vietnam. Except for certain cash and bank balances and certain
inter-company receivables denominated in foreign currencies,
transactions are mainly conducted in the functional currency of
the respective group entity. The foreign currency risk arising from
recognised assets and liabilities is considered by the Directors to be
minimal.

The Group uses forward currency contracts to economically hedge
part of its foreign exchange risk. These forward currency contracts do
not qualify for hedge accounting and are accounted for at fair value
through profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd)

(i)

(ii)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Foreign exchange risk (Cont'd)

The table below illustrates the sensitivity as at the end of the reporting
period to a reasonably possible change in the respectively exchange
rates against the functional currency of the respective group entities,
with all other variables held constant, to the profit for the year ended
31 March 2020, mainly as a result of net foreign exchange impact
on translation of cash and bank balance, trade and bills receivables,
deposits and other receivables, trade and bills payables and accruals
and other payables denominated in these foreign currencies.

2020 20204

If US$ strengthens/weakens against RMB s o ¥ A REEFHE / B2 fE
If US$ strengthens/weakens against YND ~ fisE e S iR B FHE,/ B2 &
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS i A R BB T FHE/ B2 fE
2019 20195

If US$ strengthens/weakens against RMB ~ fifiss e ¥t A REEFHE / B2 B
If US$ strengthens/weakens against YND ~ fiss e iR B FHE,/ B2 &
If RMB strengthens/weakens against HKS — fifi A R B ¥ B L FHE,/ B2 E

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk

Except for bank deposits and bank loans, details of which are
disclosed in Note 16 and Note 19 respectively, the Group has no other
significant interest-bearing assets or liabilities.

The Group's bank deposits and bank loans are subject to variable rates
which expose the Group to cash flow interest rate risk. The Group
manages its interest rate risk by performing regular reviews and
continually monitoring its interest rate exposures. The Group has not
used any interest rate swaps to hedge its exposure to interest rate risk.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(a) Market risk (Cont'd)

(ii)

Cash flow and fair value interest rate risk (Cont'd)

If the market interest rates for cash and bank balance and bank loans
had been 50 basis points (2019: 50 basis points) higher/lower with all
other variables held constant, the Group's profit for the year ended
31 March 2020 would have been approximately HK$958,000 (2019:
HK$2,104,000) higher/lower.

(b) Credit risk
Credit risk arises from trade and bills receivables, deposits and other

receivables, amounts due from associates, derivative financial instruments

and cash and bank balances.

(i)

(ii)

Risk management

Substantially all of the cash and bank balances, as detailed in Note
16, are held in major financial institutions located in Hong Kong, the
PRC, Macau and Vietnam. All derivative financial instruments are also
entered into with major financial institutions, which management
believes are of high credit quality. Management does not expect any
losses arising from non-performance by these financial institutions.

The Group monitors the outstanding debts from its customers
individually due to the concentration of credit risk. Management
assesses the credit quality of the customers, taking into account
its financial position, past experience and other factors. The
compliance with credit limits by customers is regularly monitored by
management.

Impairment of financial assets
Trade and bills receivables and amount due from associates

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measure
expected credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance
for all trade and bills receivables. To measure the expected credit
losses, trade and bills receivables has been grouped based on shared
credit risk characteristics and trade and bills receivables by due date.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)

Trade and bills receivables and amount due from associates (Cont'd)

The expected loss rates are based on the payment profiles of sales
over a period of 12 months before 31 March 2020 respectively and
the corresponding historical credit losses experienced within this
period. The historical loss rates are adjusted to reflect current and
forward-looking information on macroeconomic factors affecting the
ability of the customers to settle the receivables.

The Group has identified the Gross Domestic Products (“GDP") of
the countries in which it sells its goods and services to be the most
relevant factor, and accordingly adjusts the historical loss rates based
on expected changes in these factors.

According to above mentioned consideration, the Group assessed the
loss allowance of trade and bills receivables past due for less than 60
days are immaterial, whereas expected default and loss rate for trade
and bills receivables past due over 60 days is 100%.

Impairment losses on trade receivables is presented as provision for
impairment of trade receivables within operating profit. Subsequent
recoveries of amounts previously written off are credited against the
same line item.

Other financial assets at amortised cost

The directors of the Group consider the probability of default upon
initial recognition of the assets and whether there has been significant
increase in credit risk on an ongoing basis. To assess whether there
is a significant increase in credit risk, the Group compares risk of a
default occurring on the assets as at the reporting date with the risk of
default as at the date of initial recognition. The following indicators are
considered:

actual or expected significant adverse changes in business,
financial economic conditions that are expected to cause a
significant change to the company’s ability to meet its obligations;

actual or expected significant changes in the operating results of
the company;

significant changes in the expected performance and behavior
of the company, including changes in the payment status of the
third party.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) SABBEHEMT (E)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 HEERERER(E)

3.1 IR KREE (F)
(b) 1ZER R (&)

3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(b) Credit risk (Cont'd)

(i) Impairment of financial assets (Cont'd)
Other financial assets at amortised cost (Cont'd)

Financial assets are written off when there is no reasonable
expectation of recovery, such as a debtor failing to engage in a
repayment plan with the Group. The Group categories a receivable for
write off when a debtor fails to make contractual payments/repayable
demanded greater than 365 days past due. Where the receivables
have been written off, the Group continues to engage in enforcement
activity to attempt to recover the receivable due. Where recoveries are
made, these are recognised in profit or loss.

Other financial assets at amortised cost include certain deposits and
other receivables. These financial assets are considered to be low
credit risk primarily because they had no history of default and the
counterparties had a strong capacity to meet their contractual cash
flow obligations in the near term. The Group has assessed that the
expected credit losses for these receivables are immaterial under 12
months expected losses method. Thus, the loss allowance provision
recognised for these balances is close to zero.

(c) Liquidity risk

Prudent liquidity risk management includes maintaining sufficient cash
and the availability of funding through adequate committed credit
facilities. The Group’s primary cash requirements are for additions and
upgrades to property, plant and equipment, purchases of land, capital
injections into subsidiaries, payments for purchases and operating
expenses and unexpected cash outflow due to the COVID-19 pandemic
or other unforeseen crisis. The Group finances its working capital
requirements through funds generated from its operations, bank loans
and other borrowings.

The Group’s policy is to monitor current and expected liquidity
requirements regularly to ensure it maintains sufficient cash and cash
equivalents and has available funding through adequate amount of
committed credit facilities to meet its working capital requirements.

The tables below analyse the Group’s financial liabilities into relevant
maturity groupings based on the remaining period at the consolidated
balance sheet date to the contractual maturity date. The amounts
disclosed in the tables are the contractual undiscounted cash flows.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 HBEARER(E)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d) 3.0 BMBEAKBER (&)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd) (© JEEt/E G (&)
2020 2020 2020 2020
2020 2020 2020 20204
Ondemand  Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
RER 1FR 10 E st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
THET THET THET THET
Bank loans RITE® 737,190 - - 737,190
Loan from a non-controlling — M B 2 7] JEFE 1
interest of a subsidiary =R ER - - 125,049 125,049
Trade and bills payables FET BRI R 4R - 645,691 - 645,691
Derivative financial instruments  $T4 & @l T & - 6,994 - 6,994
Lease liabilities HEBE - 854 387 1,241
Accruals and other payables fEEtIE B K EAth & 708 - 54,864 - 54,864
737,190 708,403 125,436 1,571,029
2019 2019 2019 2019
20194F 20194 2019%F 20194F
On demand Within 1 year Over 1 year Total
T 15/ 1A E et
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FHIT FHIT FHIT FHIT
Bank loans RITER 300,000 - - 300,000
Loan from a non-controlling — T B & &) JEHE 15
interest of a subsidiary EmEHEER = = 146,225 146,225
Trade and bills payables ERAEREEER - 568,485 - 568,485
Derivative financial instruments ~ $T4E 4 @ T A - 225 = 225
Accruals and other payables FERTIE B & E A FE A F0A - 53,203 - 53,203
300,000 621,913 146,225 1,068,138
The table below summarises the maturity analysis of the Group's bank TRFERIEE 5153 Pl 2 8L
loans with repayable on demand clause based on agreed scheduled EEFBRE AEEESRE
repayments set out in the loan agreements. The amounts included interest RKEEGRZBITER 2D
payments computed using contractual rates. As a result, these amounts *ﬁ RENBBIEAE BRI R
were greater than the amounts disclosed in the “on demand” time band in B2 RBA - Bt - ZFHE

R EXMEIASNF[RE
Sk | B [ 6 B 9 P 32 B8 2 FROR -

the maturity analysis contained above.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.1 Financial risk factors (Cont’d)
(c) Liquidity risk (Cont'd)

Taking into account the Group's financial position, the Directors do not
consider that it is probable that the banks will exercise their discretions to
demand immediate repayment. The Directors believe that such loans will
be repaid in accordance with the scheduled repayment date as set out in
the loan agreements.

Maturity Analysis — bank borrowings subject to a repayable on demand
clause based on scheduled repayments (including related interest
payable):

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HaRBRENEE (8)

3 MBEREE (&)
3.1 M EkE R ()

(c) BB (&)
FARAREZMBRR  EFY
TRABIRITH AT REITE ELAEFI LA
BRANEFER EFZRRZE
KRB RIBE R H AP ZBEE
ERERRER

BHI T — RIFELEE R R
BEREBREEGARZRITEE
(BREEBEEMNFE)

Less than Between 1 Between 2
On demand 1 year and 2 years and 5 years Over 5 year Total
RER 15/ 1226 255% SERE #st
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TAL TET TAL TR
31 March 2020 2020F3A31H - 745,635 - - - 745,635
31 March 2019 20193 H31H = 304,400 = = = 304,400

The table below analyses the Group's derivative financial instruments
which will be settled on a gross basis into relevant maturity groupings
based on the remaining period at the balance sheet to the contractual
maturity date. The amounts disclosed in the table are the contractual
undiscounted cash flows.

TRABRBBIFAER I RALE
BEEHEANT SR 2R
BZAERELEEE 2 ITETR
TRZOWM -RRPBEEZER
RAEKNERTERERE -

Between Between
Less than 1and3 3 months Over
1 month months and 1 year 1 year Total
SR1ER 12388 fBAZEIE 1A E #5t
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR THET THRT THERT
At 31 March 2020: 2020634318 :
Forward currency contracts:  REFEHAH)
Inflow mA - - - - -
Outflow i (1,986) (2,558) (2,450) - (6,994)
At 31 March 2019: R2019%3A318 :
Forward currency contracts: ~ =HIEE A4
Inflow A 225 924 7,190 = 8,339
Outflow s = (225) - - (225)

BEAHBEZERERAT | 2019/ 2020 £8K 95
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.2 Capital risk management

96

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

The Group's objectives when managing capital are to safeguard the Group's
ability to continue as a going concern in order to provide returns for
shareholders and benefits for other stakeholders and to maintain an optimal
capital structure to reduce the cost of capital. In order to maintain or adjust
the capital structure, the Group may adjust the amount of dividends paid to
shareholders, return capital to shareholders, issue new shares, draw down or
repay debt.

Consistent with others in the industry, the Group monitors capital on the
basis of the gearing ratio. This ratio is calculated as total debt divided by
total capital. Total debt includes borrowings and bills payables as shown in
the consolidated balance sheet, and total capital is the amount of “equity” as
shown in the consolidated balance sheet. The gearing ratios were as follows:

= AR
ey

3

M ERE

3.2

IR ERME (R)

2 (%)

EcRBER
$E.Z;§§M@E’fﬁﬁﬂ%ﬁﬁ$$.
BRAEIE L E  ARIRRIBMHE R - A
H%%Eﬁﬁi\ﬂﬂx%ﬁﬁ/\Zﬂﬁn 3 #E
BREZEAREBUREESEA
RTHEFFAEEREE  REEA
BEERERRARRENZRESE - |
BREFEEES - BITHR - IREEE
BE -

HEMREAR - AEREAEAAE
HRERER - I RIBREBK AR

fﬁ%uﬁ$%@%ﬁia+ﬁ BRBRERRR
REERBRMIIZEERENRE
NEERBBERGEEERBRMY
2t - ERBELERET :

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T FHET

Borrowings =1 862,239 446,225
Bills payables R 16,379 22,727
Total debt (S k- 878,618 468,952
Total capital B 2,997,056 3,269,639
Gearing ratio BARBELX 29.3% 14.3%

The increase in gearing ratio was mainly due to the increase in bank
borrowings in the current year.

| 201972020 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont'd)
3.3 Fair value estimation

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

HaRBRENEE (8)

3 BEEREE(E)
3.3 AAEMEE

The table below analyses the Group's financial instruments carried at fair
value as at 31 March 2020, by level of inputs to valuation techniques used to
measure fair value. Such inputs are categorised into three levels within a fair
value hierarchy as follows:

Quoted prices (unadjusted) in active markets for identical assets or
liabilities (level 1).

Inputs other than quoted prices included within level 1 that are
observable for the asset or liability, either directly (that is, as prices) or
indirectly (that is, derived from prices) (level 2).

Inputs for the asset or liability that are not based on observable market
data (that is, unobservable inputs) (level 3).

The following table presents the Group’s assets and liabilities that are
measured at fair value at 31 March 2020.

TREHIEE QA E TR ER
B ABEE RS TASER2020F3A8
JIHUAAARBIREZEBMTA - A
BEUATZEAAREBREHE :

HREEXRBEELEMSZ R
B(REHAE) (F1E) -

BRTEIEMBRIEEN  ZE
EXRBEZABRHEMBA
A REE (AP ER) M
(AR B E1%) (F2/8) -

BESAEIIFKEANHERETS
HEz@mA (AIErTEREA) (5
3E) -

TRYRAEBER2020F3A318 1%
PRhEFEZEERAE-

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FE1E H2E #3E gt
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FH&xT F&xT FExT TERT
Assets BE
Financial assets at fair value through R AR EFFAEMEE
other comprehensive income WAREEE
(Note 11) (PR EE11)
— Club debentures —28ES 853 - - 853
853 - - 853
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
FEE H2[E H3E et
HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000
FExT FHExT FBT TET
Liabilities a8fE
Derivative financial instruments MESBIE
— Forward foreign currency —RHINEE L
contracts (Note 15) (HF5E15) - 6,994 - 6,994
- 6,994 - 6,994
EAHBERERLT | 2019/ 2020 £
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)
3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d) 3 HBEARER(E)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d) 3.3 AAEME (&)
The following table presents the Group's assets and liabilities that are TRIRAE ER2019F3H31 B %
measured at fair value at 31 March 2019. ARBEFEZEERAE-
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
EE Epl= =3[E s
HK$'000 HKS$'000 HKS$'000 HK$'000
FET FAT FET FHET
Assets BE
Derivative financial instruments TESRTA - 8,339 - 8,339
~ Forward foreign currency —RESINES L
contracts (Note 15) (FfFEE15)
Financial assets at fair value through AR BT AHME2E
other comprehensive income WARESREE
(Note 11) (MFzET1)
— Club debentures —BREES 853 - - 853
853 8,339 - 9,192
Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 Total
£1 o= 3= #Et
HKS$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AT FAET AT FHET
Liabilities =81
Derivative financial instruments PTESRBIA
— Forward foreign currency —RHINEE L
contracts (Note 15) (PfF7E15) - 225 = 225
- 225 - 225
There were no transfers between levels during the years ended 31 March 2020 B E2020% M2019F3A31BH IEFE
and 2019. BEER 2B mEE -
The fair values of financial instruments traded in active markets are based on EETRTSEENSRIENARE
quoted market prices at the balance sheet date. A market is regarded as active WIEEEANTIERESEE - ZHE
if quoted prices are readily and regularly available from an exchange, dealer, AERFMERRELSRGH X5
broker, industry Group, pricing service, or regulatory agency, and those prices B &R ERAL - EERSES
represent actual and regularly occurring market transactions on an arm'’s EEREBEES  MxIEHRERRER
length basis. The quoted market price used for financial assets held by the ERXSEELATHERMERTER
Group is the closing bid price. These instruments are included in level 1. S ZHMBEEATER - ANERF

ENEREENTSRE/KRTET
BE HETABRERESIE -
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

3 FINANCIAL RISK MANAGEMENT (Cont’d)
3.3 Fair value estimation (Cont’d)
The fair value of financial instruments that are not traded in an active market
(for example, over-the-counter derivatives) is determined by using valuation
techniques. These valuation techniques maximise the use of observable
market data where it is available and rely as little as possible on entity specific
estimates. If all significant inputs required to fair value an instrument are
observable, the instrument is included in level 2.

If one or more of the significant inputs is not based on observable market
data, the instrument is included in level 3.

Specific valuation techniques used to value financial instruments include:

Quoted market prices or dealer quotes for similar instruments.

The fair value of forward foreign exchange contracts is determined using
forward exchange rates at the balance sheet date, with the resulting value
discounted back to present value.

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS
Estimates and judgements are continually evaluated and are based on historical
experience and other factors, including expectations of future events that are
believed to be reasonable under the circumstances.

The Group makes estimates and assumptions concerning the future. The resulting
accounting estimates will, by definition, seldom equal the related actual results.
The estimates and assumptions that have a significant risk of causing a material
adjustment to the carrying amounts of assets and liabilities within the next
financial year are addressed below.

(a) Impairment of interests in associates
Management regularly reviews the recoverability of the Group's interests in
associates, in particular when they consider objective evidence of impairment
exists, such as the quoted market value of listed associate fell below its
carrying amount or significant adverse changes in the market environment,
including, amount others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 on the associates and the countries in which they operate.
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-
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)

(a)

Impairment of interests in associates (Cont’d)

In determining the recoverable amounts of interest in associates,
management considered the higher of the value in use and fair value less
cost to disposal. In determining value-in-use, an entity estimates either: (a) its
share of the present value of the estimated future cash flows expected to be
generated by the associates and proceeds on disposal, or (b) the present value
of estimated future cash flows expected to arise from dividends to be received
and proceeds on disposal. Any impairment loss is recognised by writing down
the interests in associates. Any reversal of that impairment loss is recognised
to the extent that the recoverable amount of the investment subsequently
increases.

(b) Income taxes, deferred taxes and other taxes

(c)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

The Group is subject to income taxes in the jurisdictions where its subsidiaries
operate. Significant judgement is required in determining provisions for
income taxes. There are certain transactions and calculations for which the
ultimate tax determination is uncertain. The Group recognises liabilities for
anticipated tax audit issues based on estimates of whether additional taxes
will be due. Where the final tax outcome of these matters is different from the
amounts that were initially recorded, such differences will impact the current
and deferred income tax assets and liabilities in the period in which such
determination is made.

The Group is also exposed to other taxes and duties. Significant judgement
is required in determining these provisions. Where the final outcomes of
these matters differ from the actual results, such difference will impact the
provisions made and the earnings stated in the statement of profit or loss.

Recognition of deferred tax assets, which principally relate to tax losses,
depends on the expectation of future taxable profit that will be available
against which tax losses can be utilised. The outcome of their actual utilisation
may be different. Management has performed an assessment on the
recoverability of these deferred tax assets and consider that the realisation of
these tax losses probable and no impairment provision is required as at year
end.

Provision for impairment of trade and other receivables

The Group makes provision for impairment of receivables based on
assumptions about risk of default and expected loss rates (Note 3.1(b)). The
Group uses judgement in making these assumptions and selecting the inputs
to the impairment calculation, based on the Group's past history, existing
market conditions as well as forward-looking estimates at the balance sheet
date.

2019/ 2020 Annual Report
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

4 CRITICAL ACCOUNTING ESTIMATES AND JUDGEMENTS (Cont’d)
(d) Net realisable value of inventories

(e)

(f)

Net realisable value of inventories is the estimated selling price in the ordinary
course of business, less estimated costs of completion and selling expenses.
These estimates are based on the current market condition and the historical
experience of manufacturing and selling products of similar nature. It could
change significantly as a result of changes in customer taste and competitor
actions in response to severe industry cycle. Management reassesses these
estimates at each balance sheet date.

Useful lives of property, plant and equipment

The Group’s management determines the estimated useful lives and related
depreciation charges for its property, plant and equipment. These estimates
are based on the historical experience of the actual useful lives of property,
plant and equipment of similar nature and functions. Management will
increase the depreciation charge where useful lives are less than previously
estimated lives, it will write-off or write-down technically obsolete or
non-strategic assets that have been abandoned or sold. Actual economic lives
may differ from estimated useful lives. Periodic review could result in a change
in depreciable lives and therefore depreciation expense in the future periods.

Impairment of non-current assets

Non-current assets are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes
in circumstances indicate that the carrying amount may not be recoverable,
including, among others, the economic impact of the unprecedented
COVID-19 pandemic on the operations of the Group and the countries in
which it operates. The recoverable amounts have been determined based on
the higher of value-in-use calculations or fair values less cost to disposal. These
calculations require the use of judgements and estimates.

Management judgement is required in the area of asset impairment
particularly in assessing: (i) whether an event has occurred that may indicate
that the related asset values may not be recoverable; (ii) whether the carrying
value of an asset can be supported by the recoverable amount, being the
higher of fair value less costs to sell or net present value of future cash flows
which are estimated based upon the continued use of the assets in the
business; and (iii) the appropriate key assumptions to be applied in preparing
cash flow projections including whether these cash flow projections are
discounted using an appropriate rate. Changing the assumptions selected
by management in assessing impairment, including the discount rates or
the growth rate assumptions in the cash flow projections, could materially
affect the net present value used in the impairment test and as a result affect
the Group's reported balance sheet and results of operations. If there is a
significant adverse change in the projected performance and resulting future
cash flow projections, it may be necessary to take an impairment charge to the
statement of profit or loss.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BAMBRRM:T (B)
5 SEGMENT INFORMATION 5 oHEHR
The chief operating decision-maker (“CODM") has been identified as the executive BEKCERARECHBERRARANT
directors of the Company collectively, who review the Group's internal reporting T2 REHEAEEZALR2HK - AT
in order to assess performance and allocate resources. ERBESEER -
As all of the Group's business operations relate to the manufacturing and HRAEBAEERYEZENRESTA
trading of textile products with similar economic characteristics, the executive EHEULBERENSNBRER HTE
directors review the performance of the Group as a single segment, which covers ERBE S (BERES - B - &
operations conducted by subsidiaries in Hong Kong, Macau, the PRC and Vietnam. B B2 R O BT B R RIS B A X TS ) 226
The executive directors review resources allocation and assess performance of the NEB 7RI - H1TEESIRERATE
Group on a regular basis based on the following financial information: BER FTHEEHAEENERSEX
HEITRIBAAE
2020
20204
HK$’000
FHET
Revenue (recognised at a point in time) WA (AT REE R 5,476,196 6,119,081
Gross profit ES| 924,578 1,060,901
Gross profit margin (%) F I 2 (%) 16.9% 17.3%
Operating expenses LER 251,732 260,582
Operating expenses/Revenue (%) KEREZ A% 4.6% 43%
EBITDA (Note (i) B - BIIE - P8 R A
(BEEG)) 1,014,926 1,176,897
EBITDA/Revenue (%) ME - BIE - T8 REHAT
EF WA %) 18.5% (g
Finance income RN 25,435 11,673
Finance costs B 765 BK AR 11,435 14,166
Depreciation and amortisation (included in cost EEENEGIAHEENAR
of sales and operating expenses) MERR) 157,999 158,617
Share of profits of associates pak ey AWNCIb | 37,340 34,738
Income tax expense FriSHiF X 102,998 145,528
Profit attributable to equity holders of the Company ZAN‘A Rz A A FE5 & R 743,489 861,780
Net profit margin (%) 4 7 2R (%) 13.6% 14.1%
Total assets EEME 4,813,174 4,530,237
Equity attributable to equity holders of the Company ZNA BI#Ez5#EH A BIHHER 2,985,924 3,279,611
Cash and bank balances & BIRTT A B 928,788 720,892
Borrowings BE 862,239 446,225
Inventories FE 1,133,792 947,353
Inventory turnover days (Note (i) 75 B B8P RE) 83 73
Trade and bills receivables G N E 741,994 735,882
Trade and bills receivables turnover days (Note (iii))  FEURBR ZX K Z & @ B £ (P 5% (ii)) 49 49
Trade and bills payables P BR R R B AR 645,691 568,485
Trade and bills payables turnover days (Note (ii)) FEAST BRI I = 45 A B A 2 (BT i) 49 49
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont‘d)

Notes:

() EBITDA is defined as profit for the year before finance income, finance costs,
income tax expense, depreciation and amortisation.

(i) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the

year and the end of the year balances over cost of sales.

(iii) The turnover days are calculated by the simple average of the beginning of the
year and the end of the year balances over revenue.

A reconciliation of EBITDA to total profit before income tax is provided as follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEN

HaRBRENEE (8)

5

2 PR ()
GES
() FUB - BUE - T8 RBHARFIRES

RARGHBEA -~ BMFEKA - PR
X PrE B AT E A o

(i B¥ B EIRFRFRERBEFY
BRAHERAGE -

(i) B8 B B F Y A FRAE MR 2 B E T
BERARAGTE -

B HIE - TERBHEAENEMRE
AT M BB 2 RAE RN T

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FE T T T

EBITDA FME - BiIE - EREHEATEN 1,014,926 1,176,897
Depreciation e (157,999) (155,190)
Amortisation i 5H - (3,427)
Finance income B # UL A 25,435 11,673
Finance costs B 7% AR AR (11,435) (14,166)
Profit before income tax FT 18 % B i 870,927 1,015,787

The Group's revenue represents sales of goods. An analysis of revenue by
geographical location, as determined by the destination where the products were
delivered, is as follows:

AEEMKATEEREE o HigiaE (B4
EmXfz BNt A%E) 5 2 WANS
T

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FH& T
PRC R 1,091,888 1,250,196
Vietnam o] 2,280,111 2,478,934
Hong Kong B 466,141 646,258
America E 196,208 187,278
Other Asian countries (Note (i)) HAth 55 OMBIZR (PR () 648,219 983,965
Sri Lanka CIENRS 371,999 255,167
India 0NE 80,529 47,097
Haiti 5 231,266 196,517
Africa FEM 75,130 39,652
Others H Aty 34,705 34,017
5,476,196 6,119,081

EXHHBERERAT | 2019/ 2020 &k
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)

5 SEGMENT INFORMATION (Cont'd) 5 SHER(E)
Note: B 5E -
(i) Other Asian countries mainly include Bangladesh, Indonesia, Cambodia and () EMmMNERREEBFELZMNA - EIE -

Thailand. SRIHRENTH -

For the year ended 31 March 2020, customer A and customer B accounted for HZ2020F3A31HIEFE  BRPARE
approximately 37% (2019: 43%) and 18% (2019: 18%) of the Group's revenue, FBH B4 E AR BUL A BI37% (20194F :
respectively. All other customers individually accounted for less than 10% of the 43%) F18% (20194 : 18%) ° & E£20204F

Group's revenue for years ended 31 March 2020 and 2019. K20195F3A3IB LS E - IEEMER

ZBEMHAEBRRAELRI0% °

The Group's non-current assets (excluding interests in associates and deferred REB ZIEREBEE (T RIEREZ A A
income tax assets) are located in the following geographical areas: R MRS A E) A A TR ¢

2020 2019

20204

HK$’000
FTEx

20194
HK$'000
T T

PRC 1,248,513 1,336,577
Hong Kong 10,865 13,009
Vietnam 309,913 315,295
1,569,291 1,664,881

6 LAND USE RIGHTS 6 TifERRE

The Group's interests in land use rights represent prepaid operating lease
payments in the PRC and Vietnam. Their net book values are analysed as follows:

B 0 I B AR R E R
WA (T B OE - 2B ERE

AT -
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T T
Net book amount at 1 April R4R1B 2 REFE 115,321 48,323
Adjustment for changes in accounting policies SEREEE) 2 A ([iE22)

(Note 2.2) (115,321) =
Restated net book amount at 1 April R4H18B 2 &K =5 REEE - 48,323
Transfer from prepayment for land use rights EEE T AR IR - 74,686
Amortisation # 5y - (3427)
Currency translation differences SNBSS = R - (4,261)
Net book amount at 31 March R3A31H ZEREFE - 115,321
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEBBBRNE (B)
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT 7 ME -BERRE
Leasehold
improvements,
Leasehold Plantand  furniture and Motor ~ Computer Construction
land  Buildings  machinery equipment vehicles software in progress Total
HENE
gL BT HEREE HKARRE RE  EHE#  ERIE @zt
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TER TER TER TER TEn TER TER TER
At 1 April 2018 R2018%4R18
Cost KA 4,260 1226279 2,508,043 350,706 35,168 98,660 138913 4362029
Accumulated depreciation 2itnE (1,435) (476301)  (2,041613) (235,885) (23428) (21,305) - (2,799,967)
Net book amount FARE 2825 749978 466,430 114821 11,740 77355 138913 1,562,062
Year ended 31 March 2019 B22019F3A31ALEE
Opening net book amount FOREFE 2825 749978 466430 114821 11,740 77,355 138913 1562062
Additions NE - 2482 15729 19334 3837 2337 179476 223,195
Disposals and write-off HE S - - (14302) (1427) (518) - (6) (16,253)
Depreciation ik (97) (52,505) (51,668) (36,520) (4,30) (10,091) = (155,190)
Transfers i - 16,357 117,966 28,306 - - (162,629) -
Currency translation differences ~ JMEHREZE - (44,846) (12872) (3.426) (1,026) (361) (31073) (93,604)
Closing net book amount EREESE 2728 671,466 521,283 121,088 9724 69,240 124681 1520210
At 31 March 2019 R201953831R
Cost R 4260 1,171,044 2408794 376,081 34,766 100,636 124,681 422062
Accumulated depreciation 2itE (1,532) (499578) (1,887,511 (254993) (25,042) (31,3%) - (2,700,052)
Net book amount FRHAFE 2728 671,466 521,283 121,088 9,724 69,240 124,681 1,520,210
Year ended 31 March 2020 B2202053831ALEE
Opening net book amount ENRAFE 2,728 671,466 521,283 121,088 9,724 69,240 124,681 1,520,210
Adjustment for changes in SHRRED 2 RE
accounting policies (Note 2.2 (Wi&k22) (2,728) - - - - - - (2,728)
Restated net book amount BES|REFE - 671466 521,283 121,088 9,724 69,240 124681 1,517,482
Additions RE - 1,310 11,919 13,241 1,775 614 123,077 151,936
Disposals and write-off HE B - (2,639) (6,774) (516) (335) - (295) (10,559)
Depreciation ik - (49,012) (56,253) (35,631) (3,459) (9,301) - (153,656)
Transfers B - 43,578 97,987 51,275 - - (192,840) -
Currency translation differences  SMNEBREZEE - (40,468) (38,925) (7,109) (534) - (8,130) (95,166)
Closing net book amount ERETEE - 624,235 529,237 142,348 7171 60,553 46,493 1,410,037
At 31 March 2020 2020538318
Cost X - 1,172,825 2,473,001 432,973 35,672 101,250 46,493 4,262,214
Accumulated depreciation 2inE - (548,590)  (1,943,764) (290,625) (28,501) (40,697) - (2,852,177)
Net book amount RRFE - 624,235 529,237 142,348 717 60,553 46,493 1,410,037
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER
NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)
7 PROPERTY, PLANT AND EQUIPMENT (Cont’d) 7 ME -BERRZRE(E)
Depreciation expense recognised in the consolidated statement of profit or loss is REEBRERABRZITER I ST
analysed as follows: TS 8
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Cost of sales 5 B AR 142,164 143,757
General and administrative expenses — B RITHAX 11,492 11,433
153,656 155,190
8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES 8 HRAREENRHEEASR
(a) Balance recognised in the consolidated balance sheet (a) REFEEEABRBERZER
Right-of-use assets EHEESE
Office  Leasehold Land use
premises land rights Total
WMAZEYE HELH ThEHRE Bt
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
THERT THERT TERT FET
Year ended 31 March 2020 HZE2020F3A31BIEFE
Opening net book amount FYIRHEFE = = = =
Adjustments for changes in SRR EE 2 AR (M22)
accounting policies (Note 2.2) 1,292 2,728 115,321 119,341
Restated net book amount as at R2019F4 A1 8 2 & E5BRHE
1 April 2019 FE 1,292 2,728 115,321 119,341
Additions INE 845 - - 845
Disposals HE (118) = = (118)
Depreciation e (891) (96) (3,356) (4,343)
Exchange differences MEZ5 1 - (4,911) (4,910)
Closing net book amount FREmFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 110,815
At 31 March 2020 7202043 4318
Cost (DN 2,019 4,260 143,460 149,739
Accumulated depreciation it E (890) (1,628) (36,406) (38,924)
Net book amount BRHEFE 1,129 2,632 107,054 110,815
Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited | 2019/ 2020 Annual Report



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

8 RIGHT-OF-USE ASSETS AND LEASE LIABILITIES (Cont‘d)

(a)

Balance recognized in the consolidated balance sheet (Cont’d)
Lease liabilities

Current portion

i S
S
& o

B 3

Non-current portion

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEN

HaRBRENEE (8)

8 HAREERMEESE(H)
() REREERBERBRZE&HK (B
HERE

2020
20204

HK$’000
TERT

771
373

1,144

(b) Amounts recognized in the consolidated income statement

(c)

ERREENE
HEHEEREZNE

Depreciation of right-of-use assets
Unwinding of interests on lease liabilities

(b) REERBERBRAZEHE

2020
20204

HK$’000
TEx

4,343
69

The total cash outflow of leases for the year ended 31 March 2020 was
approximately HK$944,000.

Depreciation of HKS$4,246,000 has been charged in ‘cost of sales’ and
HK$97,000 in ‘administrative expenses’ respectively during the year ended 31
March 2020.

The Group’s leasing activities and how these are accounted for

The Group leases land under land use right arrangements in the PRC and
Vietnam and owns leasehold land in Hong Kong. From 1 April 2019, these land
use rights and leasehold land were grouped as right-of-use assets.

The Group leases various office premises. Rental contracts are typically made
for fixed periods of 2 to 3 years.

Lease terms are negotiated on an individual basis and contain a wide range
of different terms and conditions. The lease agreements do not impose any
covenants, but leased assets may not be used as security for borrowing
purposes.

EXHBEREBRAF

REZ2020F3A31HIEFEABAE
EZIRE R BEEL) F944,000/8 T ©

RE Z2020F3A8318 EFEE D RIR
[PHERAIRITTHRAX I MNKRITE
4,246,0007% 7T 5&.97,00078 TT ©

(0 AEBZHETHREARSE
AN ER B R R B K i 7 AR B - it {58 PR A
ZHERA LI HMARNEEESHELS
o B2019F4 1B - ZELHMIE
FAESAHELT B AFTHAEELEER
Al

AEEERETHAEYE - HES
B —MRE R2E3F -

SERERER - FRRENHEE

AR - T E 1 3 e AN AR 225
HHEEEETARERRZERR -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)
9 SUBSIDIARIES 9 MEAF
The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and 2019: TR RR2020% K2019F3831HZ £
ZHBRF

Particulars of
Place of incorporation and issued share/ Equity interest
kind of legal entity paid up capital attributable to
Name of subsidiaries HMALER BRTRE/ the Group Principal activities

ol NGRS HEABRER BERAFE FEEEGREIEZEZ FEER
2020 2019
20205 20195

Shares held directly by the Company:

ARREERFERSD
Pacific Textured Jersey Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100%  Investment holding
liability company 1T REER
HERTHS BRAEAA
Pacific Textiles Overseas Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
liability company 1787 REER
RERTHS BREMCAA
Pacific HK & China Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
liability company 17T REZR
HERTHEES BREMTAA
Pacific SPM Holdings Ltd. British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
liability company 17T RE R
ABRUEE BREMELA
Solid Ally International Limited British Virgin Islands, limited HKS1 100% 100% Investment holding
liability company BT REER
RERTHES BREMCAA
Fast Right Group Limited British Virgin Islands, limited US$1,000 100% 100%  Investment holding
EREEERAR liability company 1,000 7T REER
HERTEHES BRATAA
Gain Trillion Limited Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000 100% - Investment holding
company 10,0007 7T RE R
EE BREERA
Product Champion Limited British Virgin Islands, limited Uss1 100% 100% Investment holding

liability company 1227 KA ZR
REBREZES  AREMELA
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont‘d)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

HEAREE

Shares held indirectly by the Company:
ARBBEEERSD

Fast Right Group (HK) Limited
EREE(FE)FRAA

Pacific Textiles Limited

ERGBBERAF]

Pacific SPM Investment Limited

ERAEHBEEBRAA

Pacific Overseas Textiles Macao
Commercial Offshore Limited

BRI ERPIBE RS 5
REARA A

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited (Note (a))

EX(ER)HBNRAERAF (MEE) B FEREELA

Particulars of
issued share/
paid up capital
BRTRE
BERAFE

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity

o BB L i B R
EAERER

Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000
company 10,0007 7T

EE BREERA

Hong Kong, limited liability HK$103,000,000
company 103,000,000 7T

BF BREERA

Hong Kong, limited liability HKS1
company 17T

EFE BREMERA

Macau, limited liability company ~ MOP1,030,000

B BREFAH 1,030,00032 F9 &
PRC, limited liability company US$89,700,000
89,700,000 7T

FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BBER

HaRBRENEE (8)

9 MKEAT (&)
TRFIRR2020% K2019F3A831HZ £
EHMBAT : (&)

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group
rEERERSER

2020
20204

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

EXHBEREBRAF

2019
20194

100%

100%

100%

100%

100%

Principal activities

EF3 3

Investment holding

Investment holding and
trading of textile
products in Hong Kong

REBETREZRK
DEmEH

Investment holding

REER

Trading of textile products
in Macau

RRFETHBRE S

Manufacturing and trading of
textile products in the PRC

A BT i m BE
KBS
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION

BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont‘d)

The following is a list of the principal subsidiaries at 31 March 2020 and 2019:

(Cont'd)

Name of subsidiaries

HEAREE

Particulars of
issued share/
paid up capital
BERTRE/
BERAFE

Place of incorporation and
kind of legal entity
AR L i B
EAERER

Shares held indirectly by the Company: (Cont'd)

FAREBEERG - (K)

Pacific GT Limited

PCGT Limited

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited ("PCTL")
(Note (0))/ (Fff &F(b))

South Shining Limited
HAEERAA

Joyful Wonder Limited

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information
Technology Limited (Note (c))
EMNBEEAREBRRF (M)

Top Textiles Limited (Note (d))/ (it &£(d))

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

British Virgin Islands, limited US$19,025,000
liability company 19,025,000% 7T
EERUHE BREMERA
Hong Kong, limited liability HK$3,900,000
company 3,900,000/ 7T
BE BREMAH
Vietnam, limited liability US$48,000,000
company 48,000,000 7T
Wi AREEAT
British Virgin Islands, limited Usst
liability company Ei
EERUHE BREMERA
Hong Kong, limited liability HK$10,000
company 10,0007 7T
EF BREERA
PRC, limited liability company RMB10,000,000
HE - AREERA AR
10,000,0007T
Vietnam, limited liability 1S$3,000,000
company 3,000,000 7T

BE - AREERA

| 201972020 Annual Report

HaRBRENEE ()

9 MKEAT (&)
TR RR2020% K2019F3831HZ £
EHBAT : (&)

Equity interest
attributable to

the Group
rEEELRAES

2020
20204

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

100%

2019
20194

95%

71.25%

71.25%

95%

100%

100%

Principal activities

FERE

Investment holding

Investment holding and
trading of textile products
in Hong Kong

REBETREZRK
mEmE S

Manufacturing and trading of
textile products in Vietnam

R R E T R EE
KRB

Investment holding

Investment holding

REER

Provision for information
technology service

RHERABRS

Manufacturing and trading of
textile products in Vietnam

REEETHBmEE
RES



NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

9 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont’d)
Notes:

(a

e

(e)

Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in the
PRC with registered capital of US$89,700,000 to be operated from July 1997 to July
2047. As at 31 March 2020, the Group has fully paid up the registered capital to this
subsidiary.

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in
Vietnam with registered capital of US$48,000,000 to be operated from April 2013
to January 2054. As at 31 March 2020, the Group has fully paid up the registered
capital to this subsidiary.

Guangzhou Gaozhuan Information Technology Limited is a limited liability
company incorporated in PRC with registered capital of RMB20,000,000 to be
operated from May 2016 to May 2046. As at 31 March 2020, the Group is yet to
pay up registered capital of RMB10,000,000 to this subsidiary.

Top Textiles Limited is a limited liability company incorporated in Vietnam
with registered capital of US$14,000,000 to be operated from December 2019
to December 2064. As at 31 March 2020, the Group is yet to pay up registered
capital of US$11,000,000 to this subsidiary. As at the date of report, the Group
has fully paid up the registered capital to this subsidiary.

Material non-controlling interests

The total non-controlling interest as at 31 March 2020 is HK$11,132,000 (2019:
HK$(9,972,000)), mainly comprised the Group's investment in Vietnam through
Pacific GT Limited, PCGT Limited and PCTL. The non-controlling interests in
respect of South Shining Limited are not material.

= A
;%/T\I:l/

[
| .
-

FINANCIAL INFORMATION \“

BBER

B ki at ()

o WA ()
fia

(a)

(d)

(e)

EXRHBHBERERLD A

BEXR(EB)HBOLABRARA R
RABREFMEI2ERETARA - &
&+ it & A /589,700,0003% 7T H11997
FE7ARIBEIET2047%7 8 © 12020
F3A31H  AEEEHATZWER
AIZEMER -

Pacific Crystal Textiles Limited & — 5 A
MEEMRZZBRETEAR - HiF
it & 7K /448,000,0003 JT * H120134F4
F %A & & £2054%F1 B © 12202043
A318 ' AEBEHEZWB AR Z
AR -

ENSEEARBZAERAGA R
REBEFMAIZBEREEQA
HFM&E AR A A R®20,000,0007T
201658 F A & i 2204645
B o 20206F3 318 @ NEE H K
BAZHBRARZAMERNARE
10,000,0007T °

Top Textiles Limited & — R 7 i/ 5 it
R ZBRETAR  HEMEARE
14,000,000 J© * 201912 A F 1A
2B F2064F 128 © A20205F3 A31
B ASESARBNZIEBRRZE
fit & 711,000,000 7T ° R AR & H
B AEEB AR B A R 2

BEARFEGIMESR

M2020F3 A318 2 FF 12 I 1 # 2%
4858 511,132,000 7T (20194 :
(9,972,000087T)  TEBEAEEE
#BPacific GT Limited * PCGT Limited &
PCTLR M mREITHRE -EEARA
AR FEESI MR BIEE X -
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRME ()

9 SUBSIDIARIES (Cont‘d)
(e) Material non-controlling interests (Cont‘d)

9 MEAR (&)
(e) EAFFIEHIMES (H)

112

Summarised financial information on subsidiaries with material non-controlling

interests

Set out below are the summarised financial information for each subsidiary
that has non-controlling interests that are material to the Group.

HHEEAFED B A FTZH

TR AEE TS BEAL
s P DAt
BHEE -

Pacific GT Limited PCGT Limited PCTL
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019%F 20206 20195 20206 20195
HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HKS'000  HK$'000  HK$'000
THET FTAET T TAEL TAT FAET
Summarised balance sheet EEEERME
Non-current assets FRBEE 2,925 2925 384,469 389902 277,605 314,783
Current assets MEEE 104,131 126233 259,969 238086 148,224 131,030
Non-current liabilities FRHEE - - 125,049 146,225 26,305 22,934
Current liabilities mEEE 5,816 8832 463,295 499,158 61,846 88,436
Net assets/(liabilities) BE/(AE)FE 101,240 120326 56,094 (17395) 337,678 334,443
Summarised statement of BRERBE
profit or loss
Revenue WA - - 1,209,675 817407 669,861 447,221
(Loss)/profit for the year FE(BR)/ HF (14,186) (9,730) 72,626 6,893 60,073 24,302
Other comprehensive (loss)/ FEEMEZA
income for the year (B18) /A - - - = (11,617) (5,134)
Total comprehensive (loss)/ FE2HE(BE),/
income for the year WA BZE (14,186) (9,730) 72,626 6,893 48,456 19,168
(Loss)/profit attributable to AN SN
non-controlling interests 2 (B1E) /& F (709) (488) 20,880 1,981 4,269 6,986
Dividends paid to non-controlling A1 ZE{Z &1t # %
interests R SRR B - = - - - -
Summarised cash flows BEREME
Net cash (used in)/generated from  #3&EE (FTH) /718
operating activities AL FE - - (17,688) 53,275 12,518 30,431
Net cash generated from/(used in) & EEFTE,/ (FT )
investing activities ReFH - - 2,051 988 (19,613) (39,630)
Net cash used in financing activities & /EBFTAE £ FH - i - u - _
Net (decrease)/increase in BehIHe%EEHEE
cash and cash equivalents (RD) /EnEE - - (15,637) 54,263 (7,095) (9,199)

The information above is the amount before inter-company eliminations.

As at 31 March 2020, cash and bank deposits of HK$2,957,000 (2019:
HK$10,052,000) of PCTL are held in Vietnam and are subject to local exchange
control regulations. These local exchange control regulations provide for
restrictions on exporting capital from the country, other than through normal

dividends.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

10 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ===

pHEsr

HaRBRENEE (8)

10 REFE DR 2R K EN—BEE A RRE
(@ PEEEFERBE

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000
TERT TAET

SPM Automotive Textile Co., Ltd. (“SPM Automotive”) {F;T 5 A (EM) /RE 4 4% E @

BRAB(MEIELXR] 37,649 39,291
Teejay Lanka PLC (“PT Sri Lanka”) Teejay Lanka PLC ([PTHT 2B R 1) 285,838 281,281
323,487 320,572

Movements in share of net assets of associates are as follows:

DIEBMELREEFEZEBWT

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

TERT FAT

At 1 April R4H1H 320,572 313,011
Dividends % & (26,217) (21,683)
Share of profits DAk 4 A 37,340 34,738
Currency translation differences SNEE S = R (8,208) (5,494)
At 31 March M3A31H 323,487 320,572
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10 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont‘d)

(a)

114

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont‘d)
The particulars of the associates at 31 March 2020 and 2019, which were held
indirectly by the Company, are as follows:

Particulars of
issued share
capital

Place of incorporation and

Name of associates  kind of legal entity

MR EARRER ERITRAFE

L Nt

SPM Automotive PRC, limited liability company US$7,500,000
FIEX FE - BEREERA 7,500,000 7T
Teejay Lanka PLC Sri Lanka, limited liability company RS2,749,266,000

HERFR AREEAHA 2,749,266,0008 £ 5 R E L,

SPM Automotive is an unlisted company in the PRC and there is no quoted
market price available for its shares.

At 31 March 2020, the quoted market value of the Group's interest in PT
Sri Lanka, which is listed on the Colombo Stock Exchange in Sri Lanka, was
approximately HK$170,624,000 (2019: HK$267,355,000).

As at 31 March 2020, management assessed the impairment of the Group's
interest in PT Sri Lanka and determined the recoverable amount of PT Sri Lanka
exceeded its carrying amounts. The recoverable amount of PT Sri Lanka was
determined based on value-in-use, taking into account PT Sri Lanka's financial
performance and expected future market condition, with a discount rate of
17% per annum.
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HeHERNE (8)

10 R AT 2SR EN —BBE QARFTE
(4&)
(a) PMEEEFEESE ()
20204 N2019F3 A31H 2 Bt & A
Al (AARRIMEREE) 280

Equity interest
attributable to
the Group
r&
FEfR R A #E 25
2020 2019
2020F 20194

Principal activities

FRER

33% 33%  Manufacturing and trading
of vehicles related textile
products in the PRC

PR B 1T E AR R

28%

28% Manufacturing and trading of

textile products in Sri Lanka
RET B RETH Bm
HEREH

ETEAR—HEPBEFLHRA -
It H B A I B AT A T A5 R AE -

M2020F3 8318 * NE B RAPTH 2
BR(—ERETERH REHe % F 2
REMETMH AR MEZRFTFHR™
B 49 170,624,000 7T (20194 :
267,355,000/ 7T ) °

MR20206F3 8318 EEEEFEHEA
SENPTHEFE MR 2 RE - I
EEPTHTEM RO ESEBRE
BREE - PTHIEE MR B £ 8E T)
KEET RPTHT B R BS R 36 R FBHA
RRTREREREBEMET » HAF
FERAMTREBTF17% o
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BAMBERM:T (B)
10 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont'd) 10 AEA& AR 2R R EN —REEE A BHIE
(48)
(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont‘d) (a) PIEEEFEHEDBE (F)
Summarised financial information for associates WA N SR E
Set out below are the summarised financial information for SPM Automotive AT EFI{E T B K & PTHT E 8 < AR
and PT Sri Lanka, which are accounted for using the equity method. FOEABEHNIEERE -
SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIEKR PTHTE B+ @gt
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20204 20196 20205 2019 20204 20195
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$'000
TR FHEL FTER THAT TERT FHT
Summarised balance sheet EEABREE
Non-current assets ERBEE 6,222 7295 419,980 401414 426,202 408,709
Current assets MEEE 183,961 202,779 671,211 600,586 855,172 803,365
Non-current liabilities FRBHER - - 80,264 68,264 80,264 68,264
Current liabilities mBAaG 76,095 91,009 363,501 307,430 439,596 398,439
Net assets BEFAE 114,088 119065 647,426 626306 761,514 745371
Summarised statement of BREAME
profit or loss
Revenue WA 409,724 452,483 1,468,652 1495137 1,878,376 1,947,620
Profit for the year F & A 24,751 31305 104,752 87930 129,503 119,235
Other comprehensive income FEEMEEKA
for the year - - - - - -
Total comprehensive income FE2EWRALE
for the year 24,751 31,305 104,752 87,930 129,503 119,235
EAHBMERERLTA | 2019/2020 £ 115
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10 INTERESTS IN ASSOCIATES AND AMOUNT DUE TO AN ASSOCIATE (Cont‘d)

(a) Share of net assets and goodwill (Cont’d)
Summarised financial information for associates (Cont'd)

Reconciliation of the above summarised financial information of the associates
to the carrying value of the Group's interest in associates is as follows:

HaRBRENEE ()

10 REFE DR 2 EEREN—HBE QA RNE

(#)

(a) DIEEEFEREE ()
BERFNHBEENEE ()
B R RIS B R R B AR [
REE NP ERREENEKRNAT

SPM Automotive PT Sri Lanka Total
FIEX PTHIEE+ st
2020 2019 2020 2019 2020 2019
20205 2019%F 2020 20195 20206 20194
HK$'000 HK$'000  HK$’000 HKS'000  HK$'000 HK$'000
FTEx FHT FTER THT TERT FET
Opening net assets at 1 April RARBENZEEFE 119,065 119451 626,306 598910 745,371 718,361
Currency translation differences NS = 5 (8,150) (9,858) (15,212) (8,660) (23,362) (18,518)
Profit for the year EREER 24,751 31,305 104,752 87,930 129,503 119,235
Dividends % & (21,578) (21,833)  (68,420) (51,874)  (89,998) (73,707)
Closing net assets at 31 March RIAIBFERZEESFE 114,088 119065 647,426 626306 761,514 745371
Net assets attributable to the Group A= B fE(LEEEE 37,649 39291 180,696 174802 218,345 214,093
Goodwill EES - - 108,021 109,358 108,021 109,358
Less: Unrealised gain on sale of o HEKET—/E
machinery to an associate BENTZ
REB W - = (2,879) (2,879) (2,879) (2,879)
Interests in associates N AN E 37,649 39291 285,838 281,281 323,487 320,572
Dividends received from associates B U Hi & 2 TR = 7,121 7,205 19,096 14,478 26,217 21,683

The information above reflects the amounts presented in the financial
statements of the associates adjusted for differences in accounting policies

between the Group and the associates.

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

As at 31 March 2020, the Group's share of contingent liability in respect
of a pending tax claim against PT Sri Lanka amounted to approximately
HK$7,248,000 (2019: HK$7,338,000). The Group has no contingent liabilities
relating to its interest in associates.

Cash and bank deposits of HK$61,993,000 (2019: HK$44,983,000) which
belongs to the Group’s associate in the PRC are held in the PRC and are
subject to local exchange control regulations. These local exchange control
regulations provide for restrictions on exporting capital from the country,
other than through normal dividends.

(b) Amounts due from associates

The amounts due from associates are unsecured, non-interest bearing,
repayable on demand and current in nature. The amounts are denominated in
Uss.
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R202083 83180 AEE G —EYH
PTHT B RIRH 2 F A SRR EG
R 8 A B & %) 57,248,0007 7T (2019
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

11 FINANCIAL ASSETS AT FAIR VALUE THROUGH OTHER COMPREHENSIVE

12
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HaRBRENEE (8)

pHEsr

1N RAAEFAHMZARANESRHEE

INCOME
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET T T
Club debentures eEES 853 853
At 1 April ®4H18 853 853
Fair value change N EE - -
At 31 March MR3H31H 853 853

The fair values of club debentures are based on second hand market prices.
See Note 3.3 for further information on fair value. The club debentures are
denominated in HKS.

EREFZIAAENIRE-_FHHE
HEE - RME33AMAREZE—TE

£ @REFRAETINIE

INVENTORIES 12 8
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THExT FAET
Raw materials R 735,063 564,429
Work-in-progress =2 135,015 142,961
Finished goods FIAY oh 263,714 239,963
1,133,792 947,353

The cost of inventories included in cost of sales during the year amounted to

approximately HK$3,897,936,000 (2019: HK$4,496,968,000).

EXHBEREBRAF

FRFABEERAZFERADN R
3,897,936,00078 7T (20194 : 4,496,968,000

BT e
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13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES 13 BERERAREE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FHET

Trade receivables FE YT BR 3R 680,870 702,862

Bills receivables W =& 62,686 36,831

743,556 739,693

Less: Provision for impairment of trade receivables & : J& U5 BR 7Rl (B # 18 (1,562) (3.811)

741,994 735,882
Majority of the Group's sales are with credit terms of 30 to 60 days. The aging REBKIBHEE ZEE BN F30E60
analysis of trade and bills receivables based on invoice date is as follows: XoBEBEZREAH BUREREEERZ

R DT -

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FET FHET

0 - 60 days 0- 60K 732,248 674,723

61 - 120 days 61 - 120K 10,239 61,535

121 days — 1 year 121K - 14F 1,069 3,435

743,556 739,693

Trade and bills receivables were denominated in the following currencies: FEWERREEZ A NEKT|E

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHET FHETT

HKS HBIT 69,734 157,992

Uss$ e 604,157 497,259

RMB AR 69,665 84,442

743,556 739,693
The top two customers accounted for approximately 35% (2019: 31%) and 19% BEMRMARPESRIAEAREEEWKER R
(2019: 21%), respectively, of the Group's trade and bills receivables; all other Z 2350 (20194 : 31%) EA19% (20194F
customers individually accounted for less than 10% of the Group’s trade and bills 21%) : 2020838318 * FTBEEMERFE
receivables as at 31 March 2020. 1 Bl AN 62 B R O BR X e AR DR 10% ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

13 TRADE AND BILLS RECEIVABLES (Cont‘d)
The fair value of trade and bills receivables approximate the net book carrying
amounts.

The Group applies the HKFRS 9 simplified approach to measuring expected
credit losses which uses a lifetime expected loss allowance for all trade and bills
receivables. Note 3.1(b) provides for details about the calculation of the allowance.

Movements in the Group's provision for impairment of trade receivables are as
follows:

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEN

HaRBRENEE (8)

13 BBRERARRRE (8)
EBRA R RIEZ QA ERKREFEN

4+

o

REBRBE B REERFHRAL
A ERMGEEER  UYHMmAERK
ERARREREAEEALHNBREE
B ME OB AFEREZFE -

AEERBRESIELRERBZES
wm

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HKS$'000

FHxT T T

At 1 April ®4A18 3,811 1,821
Currency translation differences SN E = (77) (57)

(Reversal of)/provision for impairment FE UG BR FORUE (B @) B

of trade receivables (2,172) 2,722
Written off 85 - (675)
At 31 March R3A318 1,562 3,811

The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the net book
carrying amounts of the receivables mentioned above. The Group does not hold
any collateral as security.

REER  FAEERR S i EWRK
HZEREFE - AEBEYERFEEAIE
o fEEIR o
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14 DEPOSITS, PREPAYMENTS AND OTHER RECEIVABLES 14 £ - BAREREAMERKRE
2020 2019
20204 201945
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHExT T T
Rental, utility and other deposits e ARk EAEMES 296 293
Prepayments for purchase of inventories i B 17 5 BOH # mTE T 50E
and consumables 26,317 28,506
Prepayments for purchase of machinery I8 B MBS TE T R 39,913 28,497
Deposits for land use rights T AR S 7,673 -
Other prepayments H b B FE 8,751 5,716
Value-added tax recoverable ] U [B] 1 (E B 11,987 16,623
Others H1th 19,350 12,538
114,287 92,173
Less non-current portion: BIERBNE D ¢
Prepayments for purchase of machinery BRI TE KB (39,913) (28,497)
Deposits for land use rights T AR S (7,673) -
(47,586) (ZeAem
Current portion MENEB D 66,701 63,676
Deposits, prepayments and other receivables are denominated in the following B~ TR RIE R H b B URGRIBIE T 5]
currencies: BHEE -
2020 2019
2020 20195
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHERT T T
uss =TT 30,479 16,087
VND WA 26,317 12,883
RMB AR 55,142 59,131
HK$ BT 1,612 548
MOP ks 737 3,524
114,287 92,1173
The book carrying amounts of deposits, prepayments and other receivables e - B ,TAIE&EMF%W I Z AR
approximate their fair values. BEEEAABEHEE
The maximum exposure to credit risk at balance sheet date is the book carrying REER  EAEERRARES REAM
value of deposits and other receivables. The Group does not hold any collateral as JEBGRIE 2 BREIE - AEE W EIFEF
security. AR B HER ©
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEBBBRNE (B)
15 DERIVATIVE FINANCIAL INSTRUMENTS 15 fTE€mMI A
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Assets: BE:
Forward foreign currency contracts REIIMNE S K - 8,339
Liabilities: =
Forward foreign currency contracts REIIMEE K (6,994) (225)
As at 31 March 2020, the notional principal amount of the Group’s outstanding 202063 A31H - AEB 2 KB HERH
forward foreign currency contracts was HK$234,016,000 (2019: HK$594,302,000). INE S 4 2 T AN BEA234,016,00078 7T
(20194F : 594,302,000 7T) °
The maximum exposure to credit risk of the derivative financial instruments REEH TTAESRITAZEAEER
at the balance sheet date is the book carrying value of the derivative financial BATASRMITAZEREE - BEE—
instruments. Refer to Note 3.1 for further information. FER - FLHEME3 -
16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS 16 BERACEEHEAUREHRTER
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Cash and cash equivalents ReRkREEEIER 767,143 720,892
Short-term bank deposits RHRITIER 161,645 =
928,788 720,892
The maximum exposure to credit risk at the balance sheet date is the book REER  SREERRARITRSZ
carrying value of the cash at banks. BRMEMA -
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16 CASH AND CASH EQUIVALENTS AND SHORT-TERM BANK DEPOSITS
(Cont'd)
Cash and cash equivalents and short-term bank deposits are denominated in the
following currencies:

RRRRRNE (B)

16 AERBEEEEAUAREHRTER

(%)
RekReFERBAREHRRITER
BIATERSIE

2020 2019

20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FHxT T T

uss$ ETT 673,432 391,278
HKS BT 50,628 103,286
RMB AR 200,828 225,907
VND HEE A 3,634 313
LKR MEBREL 29 33
Others Hih 237 75
928,788 720,892

The Group's cash and bank balances denominated in RMB and VND are primarily
deposited with banks in the PRC and Vietnam. The conversion of these RMB
and VND denominated balances into foreign currencies and the remittance
of funds out of the PRC and Vietnam are subject to rules and regulations on
foreign exchange control promulgated by the PRC Government and the Vietnam
Government, respectively.

Cash at banks earns interest at floating rates based on daily bank deposit rates
ranging from 0.8% to 2.51% per annum at 31 March 2020 (2019: 0.8% to 2.79% per
annum).

The effective annual interest rate and maturities of short-term bank deposits at 31
March 2020 and 2019 are as follows:

Effective annual interest rate B R F F &
Maturities EIHA B

AEEAARERBEEIEZRE R
RITEBRDEIBEFERRPBERBREZR
T BREARBLBEEIEZER
R RINE AR ERE S B K H I
A8 5T P BT R R BT 0 Bl 2B e 2
SIEE & IR A KRR E -

HITHESKRBRITEAFERMNELZER
BEELF] B 0 20203 A31H B RN T
FF08%E251% (2019%F : B F08%E
2.79%) ©

202045 201938318 » BHIRT1E
REBFFEREAREHAMT

2020 2019
20205 20194
1.61% =

94 - 184 days X =
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND TREASURY SHARES
(a) Share capital

17 BEX - ROBEEREERS
(a) B

Authorised
(Ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each)

Issued and fully paid
(Ordinary shares of
HK$0.001 each)

EE(BREE ERTRABE (BREE
0.0013& T 2 EER) 0.001 BT ZEER)
Number of Nominal Number of Nominal
shares value shares value
KRAEE H{E RBEE H{E
(thousands) HKS$’000 (thousands) HK$’000
(F35) FHET (F3h) FET
At 1 April 2018 M2018F4H1H 5,000,000 5,000 1,446,423 1,446
At 1 April 2019 MR2019F4H1H 5,000,000 5,000 1,446,423 1,446
Repurchase and cancellation i (] N2 5 85 3 Ak (P 55D
of ordinary shares (Note i) - (11,000) an
At 31 March 2020 120203 A31H 5,000,000 5,000 1,435,423 1,435
Note: B EE

(i)

(ii)

During the year ended 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased from
open market a total of 33,091,000 shares at an aggregate consideration
of HK$142,238,000. 11,000,000 shares repurchased at HK$54,201,000 were
cancelled during the year ended 31 March 2020. The remaining shares were
recorded as Treasury Shares as at 31 March 2020 and subsequently cancelled in
April 2020.

The issued share capital of the Company was reduced by the nominal value
of these shares and the premiums paid on these shares upon the repurchase
were charged against the share premium account. An amount equivalent to
the par value of the shares cancelled was transferred from the Company’s
retained earnings to the capital redemption reserve.

Subsequent to 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased an additional
2,124,000 shares at consideration of HK$7,725,000. Such shares were cancelled
in April 2020.

(ii)

EXHBEREBRAF

HZE2020F3A31BLLEE AR
Al ¢ A R T i5 8 |l & 33,091,000
B& B 1+ 48R (E A142,238,0005%8
JC ° BLE2020F3A31HILEFE - KA
54,201,0007% 7T % [2] #911,000,0000%
RDE LI - 88 AR 72020563 A
INASMEERFRD - H1% B 12020
FARFEH -

KRRBZBHITRABRZERN
ZHEERD - MstEEZERD X
N2 aEE R B EERMER - 48
EREEEROEEZSEEARN
R E) 2R 4 A R o
i o

202053 A31 8% « NABIARE
7,725,0007%8 7T # — 27 B 612,124,000
BRAR 1D o ZERRM B F20205F4 A 5%
3K ©
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17 SHARE CAPITAL, SHARE PREMIUM AND TREASURY SHARES (Cont‘d)
(b) Share premium

(c)

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

In accordance with the Companies Law, Cap.22 of the Cayman Islands, the
share premium is distributable to the shareholders of the Company, provided
that immediately following the date on which the dividend is proposed to be
distributed the Company will be in a position to pay off its debts as and when
they fall due in the ordinary course of business.

Share option scheme
The Group's share option scheme was approved and adopted by the
Company by means of a shareholders’ written resolution on 27 April 2007.

On 11 October 2013, the Board of Directors approved the granting of options
to eligible employees to subscribe for a total of 10,000,000 shares of the
Company at an exercise price of HK$9.98 per share with vesting period of 3-9
years. These share options are exercisable at any time during the period from
11 October 2016 to 10 October 2023.

The fair value of the options granted on 11 October 2013, determined using
the binomial model, was HK$18,529,000 at the grant date. The significant
inputs to the model were share price of HK$9.98 at the grant date, exercise
price of HK$9.98, volatility of 45%, expected annual dividend yield of 9%, an
expected option life of 10 years, and an annual risk free interest rate of 2.09%.
The volatility measured at the grant date was referenced to the historical
volatility of the Company.

Movements in share options are as follows:

HeHERNE (8)

17 BRAE - ROEEREFRS (8)
(b) B tEE

(c)

REASHERREENE - Ki)E
BRHDIRTFARBKER - EARA
REEZZRERSEAR  AHRE
NEEREXBEEDIHNHEER -

BT 2

7N & B BE % 5T &I 2 7R2007F4 A 27
BRBHRREMARZER 2 HAEAR
AL R ER AR o

MR20135FE10A11E  EER#LERE
Bt E ERMBRE - UHEEFIRT
F{E &5 [%0.987%8 LR & 2£10,000,000
EARRRIED  REBHA=ZNF -
ZEERAERR2016F10A11BE
202310810 B HAE AR R T(E ©

2 R2013F 108118 &% 2 #Y B8 i% 42
RE L A B & A 72 {E 518,529,000/
T WA ZEA BT ERAET -
ZEBREAETEENERHBHZR
B £9.98%8 T « 171 8 B9.98%5 T
R A45%  BHIFER B EHRE A
9% - TEAREE AR EHAMR B10F R FE &
[B B F R 52.09%t & - RIE L B 5
ZEEEE%%$@EZ@E&@H
M&rE °

BREEEBMT

Number of share options

BREHAE
2020 2019
20204 20194
At beginning of year RE A 9,050,000 9,050,000
Lapsed during the year FRRM (1,000,000) -
At end of year RER 8,050,000 9,050,000

The above outstanding share options have the following expiry date and
exercise price:

Exercise price

Expiry date

E|H B

10 October 2023 2023%F10A10H

per share

HKS$

BRITEE

BT

9.98

Lt M RITE B 2 2V A R AT
BT :

Number of share options
BREHE
2020
20204

2019
20194

8,050,000 9,050,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBRRME (E)

18 RESERVES 18 f#fE

Foreign
Capital Statutory currency Share-based Capital
reserve reserves  translation  compensation  redemption Retained
(Note (i) (Note (i) reserve reserve reserve earnings

RERA

Exfie  EEWHE P it X

(W@ (W)  REREE HeRE RORE  REEA )
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
AL AL TAn THL AL AL TARL

At 1 April 2018 R201854818 1,000 363112 455,862 12831 - 1070139 1,902,944

Profit attributable to equity holders AR A A MG A

of the Company - - - - - 861,780 861,780
Currency translation differences INEhEEE = = (210999) = - = (210999)
Total comprehensive income EXUN L - - (210,99) - - 861,780 650,781
Transaction with owners; HBEEARS

Share-based compensation AR AR 2 S T

expense (Note 25) (MizE2s) - - - 1,696 - - 1,696

Transfer to statutory reserve BRETTRHE = 32,620 - - - (32620) =

2017/2018 final dividends 20172018F K HfR & = - - - - (267,588) (267,588)

2018/2019 interim dividends 2018/20195 F Bk & = - - - - (462,856) (462,856)
Total transaction with owners ERBEARHEE - 32,620 - 169 = (763,064) (728,748)
At 31 March 2019 R2019F3A31H 1,000 395,732 244,863 14527 - 1,168,855 1,824,977
Representing: RiR:

Proposed final dividend (Note 29) &R & (Fi5E29) 361,606

Others Hit 807,249

1,168,855
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GENERRME ()
18 RESERVES (Cont‘d) 18 fik ()
Foreign
Capital Statutory currency Share-based Capital
reserve reserves  translation  compensation  redemption Retained
(Note (i) (Note (i) reserve reserve reserve earnings
SR &
ARk EERA o Efz g%
(Wata) (W) - AERE HeRme HBERE  REEN i
HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000
TR TR TR TERT TR TR TR
At 1 April 2019 ®2019F4A1H 1,000 395,732 244,863 14,527 - 1,168,855 1,824,977
Profit attributable to equity holders ~ R A HEZEH A
of the Company e F - - - - - 743,489 743,489
Currency translation differences I E = - - (158,981) - - - (158,981)
Total comprehensive income 2ERARE - - (158,981) - - 743,489 584,508
Transaction with owners: BEFARS :
Share-based compensation IR AR 2 e
expense (Note 25) X (M2s) - - - 1174 - - 1174
Lapse of share options BRERK - - - (2,146) - 2,146 -
Repurchase and cancellation B RE#HRN
of shares - - - - 1 (11) -
Transfer to statutory reserve BREETRE - 25,513 - - - (25,513) -
2018/2019 final dividends 2018/2019K RS - - - - - (361,606)  (361,606)
2019/2020 interim dividends 2019720204 HAR 5. - - - - - (375525 (3755525
Total transaction with owners SO - 25513 - (o7 no (760,509) | (735,957)
At 31 March 2020 7#202063A31H 1,000 421,245 85,882 13,555 n 1,151,835 1,673,528
Representing: Eo
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) BZARARS (5209) 254,017
Qthers it 897,818
1,151,835
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

18 RESERVES (Cont‘d)
Notes:

(i) Capital reserve represents the difference between the nominal value of shares
of subsidiaries acquired pursuant to a reorganisation in November 2004 over the
nominal value of the share capital of the Company issued in exchange thereof.

(i) Statutory reserves represent legal reserve of a subsidiary incorporated in Macau and
statutory reserves of a subsidiary incorporated in the PRC.

In accordance with the Macao Commercial Code, the subsidiary incorporated in
Macau is required to set aside a minimum of 25% of its after-tax profit to legal
reserve until the balance of this reserve reaches a level equivalent to 50% of its
capital. The amount of legal reserve of the subsidiary has reached 50% of its capital.

The subsidiary established in the PRC is required to make appropriations to certain
statutory reserves from profit for the year after offsetting accumulated losses from
prior years before any profit distribution to equity holders. The percentages to
be appropriated to different statutory reserves are determined according to the
relevant regulations in the PRC or at the discretion of the board of the subsidiary.
Such statutory reserves can only be used to offset accumulated losses, to increase
capital, or for special bonus or collective welfare of employees.

These statutory reserves cannot be distributed to equity holders of the subsidiary.

No other statutory reserves are required to be made by the Group in other
jurisdictions in which the Group operates.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEUBBRNE (B)
19 BORROWINGS 19 FE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHET
Non-current: ERE
Loan from a non-controlling interest — BT B8 A &) FE 12 Il 1 A 2=
of a subsidiary (Note (i)) R E R (M EEG) 125,049 146,225
Current: TE
Short-term bank loans (Note (ii) 52 ARER 1T B AR (M EEGi)) 737,190 300,000
Notes: B 5
(i) The loan from a non-controlling interest of a subsidiary is denominated in USS$, () —MEKTEA A FEIEF IR E A
unsecured, non-interest bearing, and not expected to be repayable within the next ELHE - AEEE . ff 8 RTEHE
12 months. The fair value of this balance approximates its carrying amount. ERRRIEARNEE - ZERZ DR
BHAENHEREE -
(i) The bank loans bear interest at floating rates. The fair values of the bank loans (i) RITEFRRZHFERTE - RITERZ
approximates their carrying amounts. ARENEREREE -
The Group's bank borrowings, after taking into account of repayable on demand RARIREREBEGT  KEBZRTT
clause, are repayable as follows: BEEZMRAOT
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T
Within 1 year or on demand AN FEARIRERER 737,190 300,000
The Group's bank borrowings repayable based on the scheduled repayment dates Rt 2 ERB P AEEEEEMNRITE
are as follows: BT :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET T T
Within 1 year 1R 737,190 300,000
Between 1 and 2 years 1226 - =
Between 2 and 5 years 2E545 - =
737,190 300,000
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEBBBRNE (B)
19 BORROWINGS (Cont‘d) 19 BE (&)
The carrying amounts of the Group'’s bank borrowings are denominated in the AREBRTEEZEEDAEZAUATEE ST
following currencies: & :
2020 2019
2020F 201945
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET T T
uss$ ET 737,190 -
HKS BT - 300,000
737,190 300,000
As at 31 March 2020 and 31 March 2019, no borrowings were guaranteed by the 20203431 H K%2019F3 8318 * #
Company. EEERARFER -
The exposure of the Group’s borrowings to interest rate changes and the AEBEBENFRE(LREABEAENER
contractual repricing dates were as follows: EE R HESI AT
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FET
6 months or less 7~ 18 A kA A 737,190 300,000
20 DEFERRED TAXATION 20 EEHR A
Deferred income tax assets and liabilities are offset when there is a legally EAETR T NBENBFREHREE
enforceable right to offset current income tax assets against current income tax LENERFT SR A EERE  BEEMRSEH
liabilities and when the deferred income tax assets and liabilities relate to income BENMBEY AR — SRS ER
taxes levied by the same taxation authority on either the taxable entity or different MELITRERTEREREZRAF
taxable entities where there is an intention to settle the balances on a net basis. FAEEEE ERE  BIASIELEREHR

BENRBETREN-

The net movement in the deferred income tax account is as follows: RS THIERFEHNT
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
TFE T FHET
At 1 April R4A1H (24,046) (25,007)

(Charged)/credited to the consolidated statement ~ RER&EBZFER (F1k)

of profit or loss (Note 27) A (i eE27) (9,185) 2,702
Currency translation differences AN = R 1,821 (1,741)
At 31 March M3H31H (31,410) (24,046)
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20

130 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

DEFERRED TAXATION (Cont‘d)

The movement in deferred income tax assets and liabilities, without taking into
consideration the offsetting of balances within the same tax jurisdiction, is as

follows:

Deferred income tax assets:

HaRBRENEE ()

20 EEEHIE (F)

EEFSHREE :

ELEFSHEERBERZS (Rt kA
— MR RE I Z AR T

Provisions Tax losses Total

BB BIEEE et

HK$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000

FExT THER FET

At 31 March 2018 74201863 A31H 6,262 10,622 16,884
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated RiF& Bz KXT A (F1K)

statement of profit or loss 15,071 (4,445) 10,626

Currency translation differences GNEE 4 B o= B - (114) (114)

At 31 March 2019 #2019%3H31H 21,333 6,063 27,396
Credited/(charged) to the consolidated R4R& BzExRt A (HR)

statement of profit or loss 6,453 (6,063) 390

Currency translation differences HINEE o= 2R 9) = 9)

At 31 March 2020 7"2020%3A31H 27,777 - 27,777

Deferred income tax liabilities: BEFMBRAERE :

Accelerated
tax
depreciation

Undistributed
profits of a

subsidiary and

allowance associates
=N
hnR | BN
rERE 7R 5 B s Fl Bar
HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET FET
At 31 March 2018 7A2018%F3H31H 12,629 29,262 41,891
Currency translation differences SN =R - 1,627 1,627
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated N EIERER
statement of profit or loss (&t A) /g (1,076) 9,000 7,924
At 31 March 2019 7A2019F3H31H 11,5193 39,889 51,442
Currency translation differences HNEE R = R 9 (1,839) (1,830)
(Credited)/charged to the consolidated REEEERRK
statement of profit or loss (st AN) k& (2,510) 12,085 9,575
At 31 March 2020 7202053 A31H 9,052 50,135 59,187
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BAMBERM:T (B)
21 TRADE AND BILLS PAYABLES 21 ERIRREE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TER FAT
Trade payables FETER K 629,312 545,758
Bills payables AR 16,379 22,727
645,691 568,485
The book carrying amounts of trade and bills payables approximate their fair ENEALREEZEEEERE AR EME
values. 2
Credit period granted by creditors generally ranges from 30 to 90 days. Trade and BEARTZEEHR RN F30E90X °
bills payables were aged as follows: ERNERRZRZERRNAT ¢
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FAT
0 - 60 days 0 - 60K 626,878 533,624
61 - 120 days 61 - 120K 11,286 26,691
121 days - 1 year 121K - 14 7,527 8,170
645,691 568,485
Trade and bills payables were denominated in the following currencies: EAEREEZEEN T EEE
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
THER FET
uss e 555,339 472,106
HKS BT 15,463 17,028
RMB AR 67,829 71,558
VND WEE 7,060 7,757
EUR BT - 36
645,691 568,485
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22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES 22 ErtEE RHEMESRIE
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TER FAT
Accrual for operating expenses ZiEMY 2 EFTIEE 21,627 21,082
Payables for purchase of property, BEWE  WE &REZEMNKRIE

plant and equipment 13,100 18,579
Provision for employee benefits expense EERFIZ HEE (BIRELL)

(including bonus) 99,523 96,120
Estimated customer claims HEt R RER 10,577 10,519
Provision for reinstatement costs BB R AN B 26,305 22,934
Value-added tax ("VAT") payable FEATIEER ([EER]) 2,354 =
Contract liabilities EHEaE 18,898 794
Others Hih 17,783 13,542

210,167 183,570
Less: non-current portion: W SEmENE Y
Provision for reinstatement costs 118 A A B (26,305) (22,934)
Current portion e E o 183,862 160,636
Movement of provision for reinstatement costs is as follows: BIEK AR EESH T :
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THER FAT
As at 1 April R4A1H 22,934 20,148
Addition 0 2,896 2,193
Imputed interest of provision for reinstatement 1S 18 Bk 2 7 18 HE 2 F1) 2,

costs (Note 26) (P 7%26) 1,229 1,175
Currency translation differences SNBSS = R (754) (582)
As at 31 March M3A318 26,305 22,934
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBRRME (E)

22 ACCRUALS AND OTHER PAYABLES (Cont‘d)
Accruals and other payables were denominated in the following currencies:

22 [EEHIE B RE MR RE (8D
FERHIR B R E A B SR A T 5 & ¥ 5

H:

2020 2019
20204 20194

HK$’000 HK$'000

FET T T

HKS BT 77,559 58,492
RMB AR 95,025 89,390
uss$ =S 7,553 8517
Others Hi 30,030 27,171
210,167 183,570

23 OTHER INCOME AND OTHER (LOSSES)/GAINS - NET

23 Hitte AR Efh (B18) s — FE

2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FET T
Other income: N
Sale of residual materials o6 R R W R 40,609 62,779
Sub-contracting income 2 eI A 1,889 4,681
Handling income B A 3,355 4,532
Rental income el A 4,046 4,436
Government grants I 48 B 85,127 20,678
Sundry income FEIEIA 69,682 59,816
204,708 156,922
Other (losses)/gains — net: Hib (Eia) s — FE

Derivative financial instruments PTEeHMT A
— forward foreign currency contracts —EZHIMES R (23,063) 5636
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  HEWE - BERKXE 2 EE (8,041) (1,791)
Net foreign exchange (losses)/gains HNE (B518) /W E (26,863) 22,456
,,,,,,,,,,, (57,967) . Lo
146,741 138208
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24 EXPENSES BY NATURE 24 RUEMD MR
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHxT FH&IT
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M BEREETE 153,656 155,190
Amortisation of land use rights = 3 50 PR A 8 - 3,427
Depreciation of right-of-use assets TRAEEENE 4,343 -
Cost of raw materials and consumables used {5 PR R M R BB FE fn = AR 2 PR AN 3,897,936 4,496,968
Employee benefits expense (including directors’ EEBAMAX (BEESHE)
emoluments) (Note 25) (Bt sE25) 641,216 663,079
Operating lease payments in respect of T b R AR FAE = KR
land and buildings 1,648 4,053
Provision/(reversal of provision) for slow-moving R RETFERE
and obsolete inventories, net (BfERE) F5 18,574 (52,363)
Auditor's remuneration 1% 2K R 37 B
— Audit services — Bz 2,906 2,845
— Non-audit services — EEZRB 225 266
Others Hh 85,018 42,575

Total cost of sales, distribution and selling expenses $HERK A « o $H R HE R S 4%

and general and administrative expenses B — R RATH X 4,805,522 5,316,040
25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 25 EERFBXZ (BEEEME)

2020 2019

20204 20194

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

TExT F& T

Wages, salaries, bonus and allowances IE  Hie - CARER 557,847 576,144
Retirement benefit — defined contribution BRINEF — EREH KA (K 5E@)

schemes (Note (a)) 42,164 46,214

Welfare and benefits & H & F &= 40,031 39,025

Share-based compensation expense LARR (0 B E T 2 B & 2 i 1,174 1,696

641,216 663,079
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) BAMBERM:T (B)
25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 25 EERABAX (BEESEME) (B
(Cont'd)
(a) Retirement benefit - defined contribution schemes (a) BIREFR — EHEERTE
The Company's subsidiary in the PRC is a member of the state-managed AREIRFRE 2 KB AR A+ BB
retirement benefits scheme operated by the Government of the PRC. The FETEREIEENRE R 2 2
Group contributes to the scheme at a fixed percentage of the basic salaries 8 - AEBZNEBAREEEAF®
of the subsidiary’s employees, subject to a cap, and has no further obligations ZEFEAD LA EEL R R
for the actual payment of pensions or post-retirement benefits beyond its BE—ER) - M EMER - W
contributions. The state-managed retirement plans are responsible for the BRI T RERESSBERERN 2 E—F
entire pension obligations payable to retired employees. B -BERERZRAGFEERERR
KEEXZNPBRAKSE -
The Group has arranged for its Hong Kong employees to join the Mandatory AEBELTHEBEES 2584 1%
Provident Fund Scheme (“the MPF Scheme”), a defined contribution scheme NEeE ([EESFTE]) o Zat
managed by an independent trustee. Under the MPF Scheme, the Group SIRHBUXEATE 2 ERBERG
and its employees make monthly contributions to the scheme at 5% of g - RIERIESE  AEBEKEE
the employees’ earnings as defined under the Mandatory Provident Fund BRRAEHEARSBRIER 2EE K
legislation. Both the Group’s and the employees’ contributions are subject to a AZ5%E ARGETEEL R o A&
cap of HK$1,500 per month and thereafter contributions are voluntary. B R B #HEIE A1,5008 T 5 L
R HEefEho#trEammEE -
The Company's subsidiary in Vietnam contributes to state-sponsored AABIREEZEARAHE BEE
employees’ social insurance scheme for its employees in Vietnam. The Group BMBERETZEEL S RIEFTEIE
contributes to the scheme at 18% of the basic salaries of the subsidiary’s HER REEIZFEAREEERK
employees, subject to a cap. The state-sponsored social insurance scheme is e 218% (THBBFE— ER) RaHE
responsible for the pension obligations payable to retired employees. E SR - BIRHET 2 1 & (REgE S
BERRRESRMEENKRS -
(b) Five highest paid individuals (b) EEREFAL
The five individuals whose emoluments were the highest in the Group for H E2020F3831HIEFE - KEE
the year ended 31 March 2020 include 4 directors (2019: 4 directors), whose Z5EmmB AT BEIBESE (2019
emoluments are disclosed in Note 35. The aggregate emolument payable to F4BEZ) BREZHNERME
the remaining individual (2019: The aggregate emolument payable to the BEFE BB TALTZHES B
remaining individual is as follow) is as follow: (2019%F : BN BA T AL 2Bl & 4258
WTWMT
2020 2019
20205 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHTT
Salaries and allowances e KR 3,686 3,090
Discretionary bonuses BB TEAL 522 128
Retirement benefit R ORAE
- defined contribution schemes — E M RETE - =
4,208 3,218
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25 EMPLOYEE BENEFITS EXPENSE (INCLUDING DIRECTORS’ EMOLUMENTS) 25 EEEMBEX (BEEEMS) (&)
(Cont'd)
(b) Five highest paid individuals (Cont’d) (b) BEBEHA L ()
The number of non-directors with emoluments fell within the following bands: FEEFALTZHMEETIHEEREZ A
2
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017% 7T 2 3,500,0007 7T - 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T £4,000,0007%8 7T - =
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007% 7T 1 =
1 1
(c) Senior management remuneration by band (c) SR EEBEHEE
The number of senior management with emoluments fell within the following EREEEABLMEEENAT
bands:
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$500,001 — HK$1,000,000 500,001 7T 2 1,000,0007% 7T 2 -
HK$1,000,001 — HK$2,000,000 1,000,001 7T & 2,000,0007% 7© 2 3
HK$2,000,001 — HK$2,500,000 2,000,0017%8 7T £ 2,500,000/ JT 3 5
HK$2,500,001 — HK$3,000,000 2,500,001/ JT 2 3,000,00078 JT 1 -
HK$3,000,001 — HK$3,500,000 3,000,0017%8 JT £ 3,500,000/ JT 2 1
HK$3,500,001 — HK$4,000,000 3,500,001/ 7T £4,000,0007%8 JT - =
HK$4,000,001 — HK$4,500,000 4,000,001 7T £4,500,0007 7T 1 -
11 9
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26 FINANCE INCOME AND COSTS 26 B AREAE
2020 2019
20205 20194F
HK$’000 HK$'000
FET FHET
Finance income: BB
- Bank interest income —HRITH B WA 12,172 11,673
— Net foreign exchange gain on bank loans —IRITE RV N e F 5 5,654 =
- Net foreign exchange gain on cash and cash —HEeRASEEEENER
equivalents Wz F 5 7,609 =
25,435 11,673
Finance costs: MRS
~ Interest expense on bank loans —RITERF EBHAX (10,137) (8,010)
— Net foreign exchange loss on cash and cash —“HekReEEBEENEL
equivalents BB F R - (4,981)
— Interest expenses arising from lease liabilities - HEABEANMERE (69) =
— Imputed interest of provision for reinstatement —EERABEETH S
cost (1,229) (1,175)
,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,,, (11,435 (4166
Net finance income/costs BBBA KA FE 14,000 (2,493)
27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE 27 FEBAX
The Group is subject to profits tax in Hong Kong, the PRC and Vietnam. Hong AEBEHMNEE  HE KLY FE
Kong profits tax has been provided for at the rate of 16.5% (2019: 16.5%) on the e BBRNEHMIMEANMGETERH G
estimated assessable profits for the year. PRC enterprise income tax has been F3216.5% (20195 : 16.5%) Z Fi T AE H #
provided for at the rate of 25% (2019: 25%) on the estimated assessable profits for & o B ERTSH IR E NG ER
the year. Vietnam enterprise income tax has been provided for at the rate of 20% Fim F3225% (20194F : 25%) 2 Fi R 1
(2019: 20%) on the estimated assessable profits for the year. B MECEMSHRIIMERNGEE
R FH220% (20199 : 20%) Z B K ME
s o
The Group's subsidiary in Vietnam is entitled to tax holiday and the profits are fully AEERBENNBEARZERTE -
exempted from Vietnam enterprise income tax for two years starting from its first KEHEEF—FEHBEBERZ  HuEE
year of profitable operations, which is the financial year ended 31 March 2017, FEE (BNEZ2017F3A8318 IEBBRF
after offsetting prior year tax losses, followed by 50% reduction in CIT in next four E)RBEME - B H 2 BASMERE
years. KRR - M2 B HEZH50%EEMS
BB R -
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27 INCOME TAX EXPENSE (Cont'd) 27 Fi8HiBAx (&)
The amount of income tax charged to the consolidated statement of profit or loss R BRRTIB 2SR ESHES
represents:
2020 2019
20204 20194F
HKS$’000 HK$'000
FET FAET
Current income tax BNERFT 1S HX
- Hong Kong profits tax —BBNEH 43,380 69,632
— Overseas income tax —HINETIS L 68,244 79,579
Deferred tax (Note 20) 5 JE 18 (B 5E20) 9,185 (2,702)
Over-provision in prior years BEFERREEE (17,811) (981)
102,998 145,528
The tax on the Group’s profit before income tax differs from the theoretical BLAN & B B 15 0 A 48 M) 2 A% 18 B 4% i AR
amount that would arise using the weighted average tax rate applicable to profits RIEEBERNZ MEFHFRRTE 2
of the consolidated entities as follows: EwmeBEsE2E20T ¢
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
TERT FAT
Profit before income tax FF 15 75 A1 & A 870,927 1,015,787
Less:
Associates results reported net of tax BMENRIZEREE(TSH) (37,340) (34,738)
833,587 981,049

Tax calculated at weighted average domestic tax ZiE AR AR R 2 Nk

rate applicable to profits in respective jurisdictions — F¥ih A T Rz E 2 Fi1E 132,594 148,811
Income not subject to tax AR BA (11,625) (9.732)
Expenses not deductible for tax purposes Db 4,973 1,141
Tax concession B ES (17,218) (2,711)
Tax on certain undistributed retained profit of a WBAR MBS ARETEADIK

subsidiary and associates RE & | 2 T 18 12,085 9,000
Over-provision in prior years BT FERERE (17,811) (981)

102,998 145,528
The weighted average applicable tax rate was 15.9% (2019: 15.2%). The change in I 25 38 B B R R15.9% (20194 ¢
weighted average applicable tax rate is due to a change in the profitability of the 15.2%) © HN#E 39 A i & & &) Jh [E K
Group's subsidiaries in the respective countries. SEBARESBBER AT EE %
EECRTE -
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28 EARNINGS PER SHARE

(a) Basic
Basic earnings per share is calculated by dividing the profit attributable to
equity holders of the Company by the weighted average number of shares in
issue, excluding treasury shares, during the year.

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
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HRBERNE (8)

28 BREF
(a) E7
SRERBIZA N RESEE AR
1t 3 M BR B A B BT AR (0 DA 19 2

Profit attributable to equity holders

ARRERTA ARIGEER

29 DIVIDENDS

of the Company 743,489 861,780
Weighted average number of shares TR 1 I HE 19 88
in issue (thousands) 1,443,679 1,446,423
Basic earnings per share (HK$ per share) FRERZF (FRBT) 0.51 0.60
(b) Diluted (b)
Diluted earnings per share is calculated by adjusting the weighted average RS B AR WA B
number of ordinary shares in issue to assume conversion of all dilutive SETImIS TR BT R AR 2 Nk
potential ordinary shares. The Company has share options to employees for TS o FAELE 20194 20204
years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020. 3A3HIEEEAQN A AR S 21T
EO B AR 7
Since the average market price of the Company's shares during the year is less HRAQAFBRGREANNEHYHE
than the assumed exercise price of the share options, the potential ordinary EREREBRTEE Bt s
shares were not included in the calculation of the diluted earnings per share B ERFETEST A BTG ST
as their inclusion would be anti-dilutive. Accordingly, diluted earnings per BAS  BAAT AZERMD S ER RS
share for the years ended 31 March 2019 and 2020 is the same as basic S o WU B E=2019%F &20204E3 8
earnings per share of the respective year. BHIFEEN SRS SR EEREE
EOERERBMAR -
29 iR 8

Interim dividend paid of HK26 cents
(2019: HK32 cents) (Note (i)

Proposed final dividend of HK18 cents
(2019: HK25 cents) (Note (ii))

(i)) 375,525 462,855

1‘ I(n)) 254,017 361,606

629,542 824,461

Notes:

() On 21 November 2019, the Company’s Board of Directors declared an interim
dividend of HK26 cents per share (2019: HK32 cents) for the six-month period
ended 30 September 2019. The amount was paid in December 2019.

(i) On 18 June 2020, the Company’s Board of Directors proposed a final dividend of
HK18 cents per share for the year ended 31 March 2020. This proposed dividend
has not been reflected as dividend payable in the consolidated financial statements

as at 31 March 2020.

GEE

() 20195118218 AARES
R A 220199 A30H 1E 7N 1ﬂ
%ﬁﬁﬁétﬁi/ﬁ%mmwow b
ill) - ZEFRIEE R2019612 HSE

=
J=EF

° K B o

i

=

(i) 5A2020¢6H18E| KRARIEER

&Eﬁ&zozo%ﬁmﬁtixiﬁ

'%&Hx/%ﬂ%wﬂh R IR B3

2020F3 A3 1A KR & BT I R N
REMKRE -

hi]

ﬁ‘:%ﬁ‘@ 43%@'&@

5]
SB T E Bk
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRME ()

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS

(a) Cash generated from operations

140 Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

v

30 ZEBEERERWE
(a) BEEEZHRS

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Profit before income tax FT15 75 Rl i A 870,927 1,015,787
Adjustments for: AT &IE 7 {5
Share of profits of associates D REEE R T Z & A (37,340) (34,738)
Depreciation of property, plant and equipment M WBEREETE 153,656 155,190
Depreciation of right-of-use assets EREEENE 4,343 -
Amortisation of land use rights o b {5 A R BH - 3427
Loss on disposal of property, plant and equipment  H&EWZ « BE M RE
ZEA 8,041 1,791
Share-based compensation expense LARR D A ERR 2 i€ X i 1,174 1,696
Provision for impairment of trade receivables JE 5 BR OB (B (2,172) 2,722
Net fair value loss/(gain) on derivative MESMIAARE
financial instruments ‘R, (k=) FE 23,063 (5,636)
Finance income BRI (25,435) (11,673)
Finance costs B 75 A AR 11,435 14,166
Operating profit before working capital changes EIEE & F BRI 2 L& T 1,007,692 1,142,732
(Increase)/decrease in inventories FEOEM RS (186,439) 120,831
(Increase)/decrease in trade and bills receivables FEUBR TR R =& (3 0)
NERAS (3,940) 177,896
(Increase)/decrease in deposits, prepayments %2e - BAREREAER
and other receivables FRIE (B R (2,943) 14,849
(Decrease)/increase in amounts due from associates & Bt & A T 38 (Rl 4)
0 23,257 (3,707)
Change in derivative financial instruments PTESHIAZS (7,955) 12,882
Increase/(decrease) in trade and bills payables FERNERREEE N CFd) 77,206 (213,166)
Increase/(decrease) in accruals and other payables — FE&tI8 B & E {th f& ft
RIEE N, O ) 41,805 (31,154)
Cash generated from operations BEEEES 948,683 1,221,163
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

30 NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED STATEMENT OF CASH FLOWS (Cont‘d)
(b) In the consolidated statement of cash flows, proceeds from disposals
of property, plant and equipment comprise:

(c)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ===

HaRBRENEE (8)

30 FEREMERMZE (H)

BBER

(b) REREREREBRRA - HEWE - BE

REBREREREARSE

2020 2019

20204 20194F

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

TExT FE T

Net book amount R FE 10,559 16,253
Loss on disposal of property, HEWE BWERREZER

plant and equipment (8,041) (1,7971)

Proceeds from disposal of property, HEME BEK
plant and equipment RAE T I8 2,518 14,462

Reconciliation of net debt in financing activities

() MEFDEKFHEYR

Loan from a
non-
controlling
interest of Bank Lease
a subsidiary borrowings liabilities
— B D A
FEHMER
REEN RITEE HEAE o
HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’'000
TET FTET TET TET
As at 31 March 2018 M201853H31H 146,169 313,264 - 459,433
New bank borrowings MERITEER = 500,000 = 500,000
Repayment of bank borrowings ERFIEE = (513,264) - (513,264)
Exchange currency alignment M 5 5 & 56 - - 56
As at 31 March 2019 R®2019%3831H 146,225 300,000 - 446,225
Adjustment for changes in SBRRESH AR
accounting policies = = 1,292 1,292
As at 1 April 2019 ®2019%481H 146,225 300,000 1,292 447,517
New bank borrowings HESETEE - 966,105 - 966,105
Repayment of bank borrowings EERITEE - (523,261) - (523,261)
Repayment of loan from a B8 — 8 A B FE 2 il 1t
non-controlling interest of a subsidiary ~ #Ezs 12 it 7 B 2 (19,493) - - (19,493)
Addition of leases HERE - - 727 727
Accrued interest FEETFIE - - 69 69
Payment for lease liabilities SNBEERE - - (944) (944)
Exchange currency alignment BE K, & (1,683) (5,654) - (7,337)
As at 31 March 2020 120203 A31H 125,049 737,190 1,144 863,383

EXHBEREBRAF
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FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBEREN T ()
31 CONTINGENT LIABILITIES 31 REAR
At 31 March 2020, the Group had no material contingent liabilities (2019: Nil). 202063310 AEBWEERNE

B {5 (20194 : &) o

For contingent liabilities relating to associates, please refer to Note 10(a). BEHEBERNRIZHBEEERL2HENFE
10(a) °
32 COMMITMENTS 32 EIE
(a) Capital commitments (a) BEAXRRE
Capital expenditure contracted for at the balance sheet date but not yet REERBFTHEMAEEZERA
incurred is as follows: T
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HK$'000
FHET FHET
Contracted but not provided for: EHEEE ST
Property, plant and equipment Y BEMEE 130,913 102,810
Leasehold land and land use rights TE 4 #b I T i F Rl 4 75,513 -
206,426 102,810
At 31 March 2020, the Group did not have any significant share of capital 202083 8318 + A K E I & ([
commitments of its associates (2019: Nil). 2Bk & A R B E KB AN AEHE (2019
Fm|) o
(b) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessor (b) REHNARE-EEEEREEA
The future aggregate minimum lease receivables under non-cancellable AR A 1 B 48 45 2 FE 4 FE W A9 oK 2R &%
operating leases are as follows: KBS FIBEARBENT :

2020 2019
20205 20195
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FHETT

As lessor: ERHMEA :
Not later than 1 year THEE1F 743 1,372
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BB BT HBASTF 35 134

778 1,506
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

32 COMMITMENTS (Cont‘d) 32
(c) Operating lease commitments — Group as lessee
The Group leases various office premises under non-cancellable operating
lease arrangements. The lease terms are between 0.5 and 5 years, and the
majority of lease arrangements are renewable at the end of the lease period.

From 1 April 2019, the Group has recognised right-of-use assets for these

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHEN

an (=] ,ﬁﬁ%#&ﬁﬁﬁ? (,.-ﬁ)

AIE ()

(0 REBPHNAE-AEEERRBAA
AEBBRBETAIRBLCEROLYR
RAETHAZEME - HEIN F0525
F - ABLBEELRHEAT N A TER
HE - B2019F4A18 AEEE

leases. NZEHERREAEEE -
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THER FAT

As lessee: fEREAMA :
Not later than 1 year THBIF - 753
Later than 1 year and not later than 5 years BB FETHBASTF - 689
- 1,442
33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS 33 AREALRS

Related parties are those parties that have the ability to control, jointly control or
exert significant influence over the other party in holding power over the investee;
exposure, or rights, to variable returns from its involvement with the investee; and
the ability to use its power over the investee to affect the amount of the investor's
returns. Parties are also considered to be related if they are subject to common
control or joint control. Related parties may be individuals or other entities.

The directors are of the view that the following entities were related parties that
had transactions or balances with the Group during the year.

Relationship with the Group

BEAREE @R

BRGEANTIRARENIES - B A 6w
BREDRHHMAHRRESTEREN
MATITEEAZENNAL  BAE
XEFEFAHZ2ERRESTME A Z DR
B LB S A B9 A £ 0 R AT R R AL AR
BRETNENZEREZELDRESEDHA
T o AR IR S E B A L TRR
EREME - FREATAREASE
EE -

E=ZRA TIHERRFAGEAKE
ETRHIERBHBIBEREAL -

Toray Industries, Inc.

REN®RAGHE

Teejay Lanka PLC
Teejay Lanka PLC

SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd.

ETER(EMN) REHBERBRAF

Source Smart Asia Ltd

HEEMERAE

A substantial shareholder

TEME

An associate
Hﬁk M/‘\

An associate
ﬁkM/‘\

A company controlled by son of a director

BEERTHEHZA

EXHBEREBRAF
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

FINANCIAL INFORMATION
BHER

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)
(a) The following transactions were carried out with related parties:

33

HaRBRENEE ()

FHEALRS (&)
(a) EEBEALETZRZWT :

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
FHET FET
Sales of goods HEER
~ Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (ii)) — SRR g1 (i aEan) 47,252 16,792
Purchase of materials BEMH
— Toray Industries, Inc. (Notes (i)) —REHRA g (FFEEW)) 153,510 116,444
Rental income AEWA
— Source Smart Asia Ltd (Note (iii)) —FEm e M A R A =) (B % i) 990 1,126
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (jii)) —EIEXR(EM) REA A
2 o A FR 2 &) (B & (i) 2,827 3,060
3,817 4,186
Sub-contracting income 2BWA
- SPM Automotive Textiles Co. Ltd. (Note (ii)) — I E K (BM) SE55
E B R A A (B EEG)) 1,784 3,112
Handling income BEEIWA
~ Teejay Lanka PLC (Note (iv)) — Teejay Lanka PLC (Fff 3E(iv)) 3,292 4,398
Notes: BT 5E
(i) Goods are purchased at prices mutually agreed by the Group and the () EmMBENEHBEKBREPIEAEE

substantial shareholder in the ordinary course of business. HEFrERRERGEZEBRETT -

(i) Goods are sold and sub-contracting income are received at prices mutually (i) EmEEESBIWATIER FEKBIE
RERAEBEEHEATRABEZE
ST RURER ©

agreed by the Group and its related parties in the ordinary course of business.

(i) WA TIERY) X EIREARE T IHE
REETE °

(iii

Rental income is determined based on the size of the property and the relevant
market rate.

(iv) [A—FEEE R RIRERIEE R ER
B AR REBEAETE THRENERR
2%E3INWE - MEEERAL XK E
7 H R o

(iv) Handling fee received from an associate is charged at 2% to 3% of the value
of certain purchases made as an agent of the associate, and the rates of the
handling fee were mutually agreed by both parties.
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd)

33 RELATED PARTY TRANSACTIONS (Cont‘d)
(b) Year-end balances

Amount due from SPM Automotive Textiles

FINANCIAL INFORMATION ==
BHEN

HaRBRENEE (8)

33 EEEALRS ()
(b) FRER

2020 2019
20205

20194
HK$'000
T

HK$’000
FiBT

EWETER (BEM) TEL

Co. Ltd. for sub-contracting income and EmARARDBRAR

rental income e A 560 381
Trade in nature: BEHMHE -
Amount due from Teejay Lanka PLC arising EREBEEREELZ

from purchase of goods on behalf Ji& Wi Teejay Lanka PLCFRIE 28,982 52,418
Amount due from Toray Industries, Inc. arising HERAHESEREL Y

from sales of goods on behalf FEW R B IR A &+t R IE 3,308 -

32,290 52,418

Trade in nature: BEH5ME
Amount due to Toray Industries, Inc. arising HEEMBEEZEN

from purchase of materials REBHRA L RIE 33,522 24,624

(c) Key management compensation

() TEEBAEME

2020 2019

20204 20194

HKS$’000 HKS$'000

FET FE T

Salaries, bonus and allowances & TEAL RERL 61,023 65,829
Retirement benefits — defined contribution BRIREF — EREH KA S

schemes 132 158

61,155 65,987
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBHRME ()

34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY
Balance sheet of the Company

34 ARAEERBRRFEZED
FRARNEERER

146

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THER FAT
ASSETS BE
Non-current assets IRBEE
Interests in subsidiaries NI e 1,421,249 1,454,905
Current assets REBEE
Amounts due from subsidiaries JiE W B /B A R FRIB 6,277,205 6,098,113
Cash and bank balances & RIRTTES 13,652 3,093
6,290,857 6,101,206
Total assets EEH#E 7,712,106 7,556,111
EQUITY fEm
Share capital A% 7% 1,435 1,446
Share premium A& 10 4 B 1,398,998 1,453,188
Treasury shares JEREiiah) (88,037) -
Reserves E 1,008,208 1,285,503
2,320,604 2,740,137
LIABILITIES =i
Current liabilities REEE
Borrowings BE 295,931 300,000
Accruals and other payables FESTIA B I H fih FE 5 RUR 3,945 3,296
Amounts due to subsidiaries FEH B AR FRIA 5,091,626 4,512,678
5,391,502 4,815,974
Total liabilites = &f#® = 5391502 sl T
Total equity and liabilities Ezk a8 BB 7,712,106 7,556,111
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMEREN T ()
34 BALANCE SHEET AND RESERVE MOVEMENT OF THE COMPANY (Cont’‘d) 3 KNG EEEBBRRFEEZEE ()
Reserve movement of the Company KATREZEE
Share-based Capital
compensation Retained  Redemption
reserve earnings reserve Total
DR ER =N
2SS R Fl M E Bt
HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000 HK$’000
FHET FHET FET FET
At 1 April 2018 201854811 12,831 906,301 = 919,132
Profit for the year FE % F = 1,095,119 = 1,095,119
Share-based compensation expense A% D A ERE 2
Bl & % H 1,696 = = 1,696
2017/2018 final dividends 2017/20184F KR EAf% B = (267,588) - (267,588)
2018/2019 interim dividends 2018/2019%F F HAM% & - (462,856) = (462,856)
At 31 March 2019 MA2019F3H31H 14,527 1,270,976 - 1,285,503
Representing: e
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) EEAHRE
(FF3E29) 361,606
Others Hih 909,370
1,270,976
At 1 April 2019 M2019%481H 14,527 1,270,976 - 1,285,503
Profit for the year FEEHEA - 458,662 - 458,662
Share-based compensation expense AR D A EE 2
B % H 1,174 - - 1,174
Lapse of share options B A 2K Ak (2,146) 2,146 - -
Repurchase of shares BB A1 - (11) 1 -
2018/2019 final dividends 2018/2019%F K B 2 - (361,606) - (361,606)
2019/2020 interim dividends 2019/202045 # HARR & - (375,525) - (375,525)
At 31 March 2020 202053 H31H 13,555 994,642 11 1,008,208
Representing: S b
Proposed final dividend (Note 29) EEAHRE
(HI5E29) 254,017
Others E A 740,625
994,642
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NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEMBEREN T ()
35 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’S EMOLUMENTS 35 EBRBETHRAEZHME
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments EERBRETHRAEZHE
The aggregate amounts of emoluments paid/payable to directors of the Company REBMEN,/ BAARNRRIEE 2B 4
by the Group are as follows: EER N
2020 2019
20204 20194
HK$’000 HKS$'000
THER T
Fees e 5,167 5,250
Salaries, bonus and allowances Frd - AL NOERL 31,478 39,895
Retirement benefit — defined contribution schemes R K& | — & 28 L &=t 2 18 18
36,663 45,163
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2020 are as follows: HE2020F3A31BIEFE  SES 2
BT
Retirement
benefit -
Salaries, defined
bonus and contribution
Name of directors Fees allowances schemes Total
e A BIREF —
EEHE ue KRR TEEMREE ot
HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$’000 HK$'000
FET THERT FExT FET
Executive directors HITES
Wan Wai Loi (Chief executive FER (1THAEE)
officer) 1,500 21,821 - 23,321
Masaru Okutomi BE B 750 2,040 - 2,790
Tou Kit Vai [ =354 1,000 3,912 18 4,930
Toshiya Ishii AHER 1,000 2,130 - 3,130

Non-executive directors (note) JEHITESE (F7E)
Lau Yiu Tong lp 167 1,575 - 1,742

Independent non-executive BYFHTES

directors
Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BR#8 250 - - 250
Ng Ching Wah hig%E 250 - - 250
Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel eSS 250 - - 250
5,167 31,478 18 36,663
Note: Upon being redesignated to NED on 1 June 2019, Mr. Lau has since then MisE : R2019F6 A1 AAEAIERITES
waived any emoluments for the year ended 31 March 2020. Mr. Choi Kin % BlEA gL E HEEZE20205F3
Chung, a former NED, resigned with effect from 12 June 2019 had waived B3R ItEE B4 o AT IERTT
emoluments during the year ended 31 March 2020. EEE R %A (R201956 8128
Bi{E) B ES E2020F3A31H IE
FEZHME -
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pHEsr

NOTES TO THE CONSOLIDATED FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (Cont'd) GEBBBRNE (B)
35 DIRECTORS’ AND CHIEF EXECUTIVE’'S EMOLUMENTS (Cont'd) 35 EERBETHAEZHME (&)
Directors’ and chief executive’s emoluments (Cont’d) EERBRETHRAEZHME (F)
The emoluments of each director for the year ended 31 March 2019 are as follows: HZE2019F3A3ALFE  SEE M
T -
Retirement
benefit -
Salaries, defined
bonus and contribution
Name of directors Fees allowances schemes Total
e A RIRER —
EEns we RFEM TEEMRKEE st
HK$'000 HK$’000 HKS$’000 HK$’000
THERT FET TERT THET
Executive directors HITES
Wan Wai Loi FHEKR (TTHEE)
(Chief executive officer) 1,500 23,247 - 24,747
Lau Yiu Tong 2B = 1,000 11,044 = 12,044
Tou Kit Vai Tt 45 B 1,000 3,474 18 4,492
Toshiya Ishii AHER 1,000 2,130 = 3,130
Non-executive directors FHITES
Choi Kin Chung g h - - - -
Tsang Kang Po ks - - - -

Independent non-executive BUHTES

directors

Chan Yue Kwong, Michael BeR 4 ¢ 250 - - 250

Ng Ching Wah hEZE 250 = = 250

Sze Kwok Wing, Nigel JiAEIES 250 = = 250

5,250 39,895 18 45,163

36 SUBSEQUENT EVENT 36 Hi#=1

Subsequent to 31 March 2020, the Company repurchased an additional 2,124,000 R2020%F3A31H%E KRR ARE
shares at consideration of HK$7,725,000. Such shares were cancelled in April 2020. 7,725,000/ JT #E — 25 B# [812,124,0000% I%

5 o ZERMD B R202054 A8 o
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. FINANCIAL SUMMARY
BBAR

CONSOLIDATED RESULTS o

Year ended 31 March,
BZE3A3MALEE

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20204 20194 20184 20174 2016%F

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

FHT FHET T T T

Revenue g A 5,476,196 6,119,081 6,098,153 5,993,632 6,927,614

Gross profit EF 924,578 1,060,901 947,162 1,116,484 1,302,504
Profit attributable to: THALTREMEER

Equity holders of the Company ~ ANAEIHEZEZH A 743,489 861,780 744,035 975,573 1,125,530

Non-controlling interests FE4E ) 15 M 2 24,440 8,479 (20,693) 13,655 (2,835)

767,929 870,259 723,342 989,228 1,122,695

CONSOLIDATED BALANCE SHEET ,,;\A’QEEE%
A = =5
As at 31 March,
M3H31H

2020 2019 2018 2017 2016

20204 20194 20184 20174 20164

HK$’000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000 HK$'000

F#&T T THT FHBT FBT

Non-current assets EmBEE 1,912,357 2,001,296 2,046,372 1,889,201 1,886,598

Current assets mENAE 2,900,817 2,528,941 2,806,338 3,122,567 3,544,846

Total assets BERE 4,813,174 4,530,237 4852710 5,011,768 5,431,444

Current liabilities mEEE 1,613,402 1,051,550 1,311,037 1,660,479 1,906,148

Total assets less current liabilities BEABERAIARE 3,199,772 3,478,687 3,541,673 3,351,289 3,525,296

Non-current liabilities FEmBEE 202,716 209,048 200,811 170,841 173,364

Total equity B 2,977,056 3,269,639 3,340,862 3,180,448 3,351,932

Net current assets mEEEFRE 1,287,415 1,477,391 1,495,301 1,462,088 1,638,698
Equity attributable to: TH AL :

Equity holders of the Company ~ ANAAERmFE A 2,985,924 3,279,611 3,357,578 3,177,168 3,360,099

Non-controlling interests FEE R RS 11,132 (9,972) (16,716) 3,280 (8,167)

2,997,056 3,269,639 3,340,862 3,180,448 3,351,932
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In this annual report (other than the Independent Auditor's Report and Financial

Information), unless the context otherwise requires, the following expressions shall

have the following meanings:

“2020 Financial Year”

"AGM”

“Articles”

“Board”

"CG Code" or “Corporate
Governance Code”

"China” or "PRC"

“Company”

“Director(s)”

"Group”

"HKD” or “$" or "HKS”

"HKSAR" or “Hong Kong”

“INED(s)"

"Listing Rules” or “Main Board
Listing Rules”

“LKR” or "RS”

“Model Code”

"Panyu Plant”

For the year ended 31 March 2020

Annual General Meeting of the Company

The Articles of Association of the Company, as
amended from time to time

The Board of Directors of the Company

The Corporate Governance Code, stated in the
Appendix 14 to the Main Board Listing Rules

The People’s Republic of China

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited, an exempted
company incorporated in Cayman Islands with
limited liability, the Shares of which are listed on
the Stock Exchange

The Director(s) of the Company

The Company and its subsidiaries

Hong Kong Dollar

Hong Kong Special Administrative Region of the
People’s Republic of China

The Independent Non-executive Director(s) of the
Company

The Rules Governing the Listing of Securities on
the Stock Exchange, as amended from time to
time

Sri Lankan Rupee
Model Code for Securities Transactions by
Directors of Listed Issuers, Appendix 10 to the

Main Board Listing Rules

the factory run by Pacific (Panyu) Textiles Limited
located in Nansha of Guangzhou City, the PRC

b

GLOSSARY =

SRAR

WA 5 ]9 (38 32 A% BUED i 25 B2 1 75 & BB
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75
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GLOSSARY
SHAR

"RMB" or “CNY”

SO
“Shares”
“Shareholder(s)"

“Share Option Scheme”
“Stock Exchange”

“Teejay Lanka PLC"

"Toray”

“USD” or "USS"

“ND”

Pacific Textiles Holdings Limited

“Renminbi/Chinese Yuan”

Securities and Futures Ordinance (Chapter 571 of
the laws of Hong Kong)

Shares of the Company, with a nominal value of
HK$0.001 each

The Company'’s Shareholder(s)

The Share Option Scheme adopted by the
Company pursuant to the written resolutions of
Shareholders passed on 27 April 2007, and expired
on 17 May 2017

The Stock Exchange of Hong Kong Limited

Teejay Lanka PLC (formerly known as Textured
Jersey Lanka PLC and Textured Jersey Lanka
(Private) Limited), a limited liability company
incorporated under the laws of Sri Lanka and
whose shares are listed on the Colombo Stock
Exchange of Sri Lanka

Toray Industries, Inc., a company incorporated
under the laws of Japan and whose shares are
listed on the Tokyo Stock Exchange in Japan, a
substantial Shareholder of the Company

United States Dollar

Vietnamese Dong
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PACIFIC TEXTILES HOLDINGS LIMITED
EXGHBERBRAGE

(Incorporated in the Cayman Islands with limited liability)
(REESREEMELZERARE)
(Stock Code BE #3135 : 01382)
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